
1 
 

Agenda 
                                                                                       MCCCDGB 

 

Friday February 8, 2019 – 9:00 a.m.        
 Originating at: Lake Havasu Campus  Room #508 
 Also Available via Interactive Television at: Neal Campus Kingman Room #508 
  Bullhead City Campus Room #508 
  North Mohave Campus Room #403 
   
 

(Action Items are in bold print) 
 
I. Call to Order (Dr. Julie Bare, President) 
 
II. Roll Call (Amy Curley, Executive Assistant) 
 

District #1, Vance Miller     
District #2, Julie Bare      
District #3, Ashley Pascual     
District #4, Susan McAlpine      
District #5, Judy Selberg 

 
III. Approval of Meeting Minutes (Board President)(Appendix 1) 
 

The draft minutes from the January 11, 2019 regular meeting appear in Appendix 1. 
 

Motion to approve the draft minutes from the January 11, 2019 regular meeting as they appear 
in Appendix 1.   
 
Motion to approve the draft minutes from the January 11, 2019 regular meeting as they appear 
in Appendix 1 with the following modifications:  
 

IV. Audience of Any Citizen (Board President) 
 

[NOTE:  This is an opportunity for any citizen to address the Board on any matter of concern to 
the citizen.  The Board will listen to the remarks, but may not respond or answer questions.  Unless 
the matter is already on the agenda for action, no action can be taken other than to instruct staff to 
include the matter on a future agenda.  The president of the Board may limit the time for individual 
presentation and may limit the total time for all presentations.  Citizens wishing to comment will 
be limited to one opportunity to speak.  If a citizens group wishes to speak on the same subject, 
the group should choose a representative to deliver the message. The Chairperson may set a limit 
for organized group presentations and may set limits for each side when many persons request to 
speak on an agenda item. During Interactive Television (ITV) meetings, the chair will query each 
campus for those who wish to speak.]  



2 
 

V. Staff Council Report (Meghan Knox, Staff Council President) 
 

An opportunity for the President of the MCC Staff Council to report to the Board 
 
VI. Faculty Council Report (Dr. Andra Goldberg, Faculty Council President) 
 

An opportunity for the President of the MCC Faculty Council to report to the Board.  
 
VII. Board Report (Bare) 
 

A. Meeting Dates & Locations (Bare)(Appendix 2) 
 
The 600 Building on the Neal Campus Kingman which will house the recently update 
Electrical Program, is scheduled to be completed by late April 2019.  The College 
would like to schedule a ribbon-cutting ceremony to coincide the June Board meeting.  
 
Motion to change the Thursday June 13, 2019 meeting location to the Neal Campus 
Kingman. 
 
Motion to change the Thursday June 13, 2019 meeting location to the Neal Campus 
Kingman with the following modifications:  
 

B. MCCCDGB 2018 Board Self-Evaluation (Bare)(Appendix 3) 
 
The Mohave County Community College District Governing Board completes an evaluation 
of its performance annually. The compiled results are presented in the appendix.   
 

C. AACCT Representative Report (Susan McAlpine) 
 

An opportunity for the AACCT representative to report to the Board on AACCT activities.   
 

D. Trustee Other Reports (Bare) 
 
An opportunity for individual trustees to speak regarding non-agenda informational items. 

 
VIII. President’s Report (Diana Stithem, Interim President) 

 
A. Mohave Minute Video Recap (James Jarman, Director of Marketing and Public Information) 

(Appendix 4) 
 

Welcome Back NCK • Vets OnBase •IT VMware work gets international interest • Dental 
program’s adult dental day • Dental program’s Give Kids a Smile day • Grad profile – Captain 
McShea • Dr. Cover research team invited AAAI Spring Symposium • Recruitment: Welding, 
CIS and Financial Aid at Kingman Alternative H.S. • NSLDS – cooperation between MCC 
offices help maintain low default rate • John Hansen - PTK Advisor Honors 
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B. Welding Program Update (Stithem, Stephen Eaton, Chief Academic Officer) 
 
Concerns were expressed regarding the college welding program during the public comment 
period of the January 11, 2019, Board meeting. The Chief Academic Officer subsequently 
visited with several students regarding the program format.  Additionally, during the course 
of looking into the matter, a safety concern was identified and is currently being addressed. 
 

C. Arizona Career Readiness Credential (Stithem) 
 

A major initiative set forth by Governor Ducey in partnership with ARIZONA@WORK and 
the Office of Economic Opportunity (OEO) makes the Arizona Career Readiness Credential 
available to job seekers across the state. This tool prepares job seekers for success by 
demonstrating their command of seven skill areas that are relevant to every occupation, 
industry and career pathway across the state.  
 

D. Transition Update (Stithem) 
 
Interim President Diana Stithem took over the helm of the College on Monday January 14, 
2019.  Priorities have included strengthening communication, keeping key issues and projects 
moving forward, and preparing the college community for the presidential transition to come.  
        

E. Strategic Plan Update (Stithem) 
 

IT Strategic Plan Update (Mark VanPelt, Chief Information Officer) (Appendix 6) 
 
Annually, the Information Technology Department updates its strategic planning document 
to reflect the upcoming needs of the College’s technology.  The document details the 
technology-enabled processes the College uses to guide operations and serves as a roadmap 
to technology related decision making.    

 
F. AZ Community College State-Level Council Reports (Stithem) 

  
The Arizona Community Colleges Coordinating Council met on January 24, 2019.  In addition 
to standing agenda items, the Council received a presentation by the Arizona Community 
College Communicators, a group consisting of the Marketing and Public Information Officers 
from the ten Arizona community college districts, who have been developing a statewide 
awareness campaign. The next meeting is scheduled for February 28 and will coincide with 
the All-Arizona Academic Team Luncheon.  
    

G. Legislative Update (Stithem)(Appendix 5) 
 

At the January 24 AC4 meeting, the Council discussed several legislative items including 
provisional districts, Proposition 301 and Student Success Centers. Other relevant legislation 
that the Council is tracking is provided in the appendix.    
 
 

 



4 
 

H. State Budget Update (Stithem)(Appendix 6) 
 

On January 18, Governor Ducey released a budget proposal that would devote $538 million in 
new funding to education, public safety and other longtime priorities while reserving another 
half-billion dollars to increase the state’s rainy-day fund.  The $12 billion conservative 
spending plan will be reviewed and revised by state lawmakers before returning to the 
Governor’s desk later in the year. 

 
I. Update of Current Events (Stithem) 

 
Updates on current events impacting the College. 
 

IX. Student Services (Ana Masterson, Chief Student Services Officer) 
 

Student Services Kiosks (Masterson, Mindy Silva, Director of Recruitment and Customer 
Service) 
 
Student Services collaborated with Information Technology to create and establish kiosks at all of 
Student Services front desks starting in February 2018. The kiosks provide a self-service option 
which helps students better identify their advising needs as well as potentially expedite their 
intake process. They also provide information for the department to make data-driven decisions 
regarding operations. 
 

X. Instruction (Stephen Eaton, Chief Academic Officer) 
 

2021-2022 Academic Calendar, First Reading (Eaton) (Appendix 7) 
 
Responding to changing federal requirements and deadlines, the College began developing a three 
year “rolling” academic calendar as opposed to single year in advance.  Numerous individuals, 
departments and committees, both instructional and administrative, review the calendars 
annually to ensure compliance with both federal regulations and accreditation standards.  Last 
year, the academic years 2018-2019, 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 were approved by the Board and 
submitted by the College to various agencies.  The 2021-2022 calendar is being presented for first 
reading as the final year of the rolling calendar. 
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XI. Administrative Services 
 

A. Financial Services (Sonni Marbury, Chief Financial Officer) 
 

i. Fiscal Year 2017-2018 Audit Report (Marbury)(Appendix 9a) 
 
Presented is the 2017/18 Consolidated Annual Financial Report. The auditor, Robert 
Snyder of Snyder & Butler, CPAs, PLLC, issued an unmodified opinion. An unmodified 
opinion means the District has presented financial statements that are accurate. 
 
Motion to accept the Consolidated Annual Financial Report for fiscal year 2017-2018 as 
issued by the auditors 
  
Motion to accept the Consolidated Annual Financial Report for fiscal year 2017-2019 as 
issued by the auditors with the following modifications:  

 
ii. Monthly Financial Reports (Appendix 9b & 9c) 

 
a. Monthly Cash Flow Report – A report that visually represents the College’s fund 

balance, expenses, deposits and amount invested with the state treasurer.   
 

b. Expenditures & Revenue Report – A report that visually represents the College’s 
expenditures by function and object and its primary revenue sources with Year to 
Date Actuals.   
 

B. Human Resources (Jennie Dixon, Chief Human Resources Officer) 
 
Human Resources Reports (Dixon) (Appendix 10) 
 
The College’s human resources reports for the month ending January 31, 2019, reflecting new 
hires, transfers, reclassifications, title changes and separations.  

Motion to approve the Human Resources report for the month ending January 31, 2019 as 
presented in the appendix. 
 
Motion to approve the Human Resources report for the month January 31, 2019 as presented 
in the appendix with the following modifications: 
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XII. Executive Session (Bare) 
 
Pursuant to ARS § 38-431.03(D), the Mohave County Community College District Governing 
Board (MCCCDGB) is allowed to hold an executive session for specific purposes.  Legal action 
involving a final vote or decision shall not be taken at an executive session.  The purpose of the 
executive sessions is as follows:  

 
The discussion or consideration of employment, assignment, appointment, promotion, demotion, 
salaries, discipline, resignation, or dismissal of a public officer, appointee, or employee of a public 
body, specifically discussion of applicants for employment or appointment even though the 
applicants may not be currently employed by the public body.  

Motion to hold an executive session for the purpose of discussing applicants for employment 
as College President. 

 
XIII. Reconvene Regular Meeting (Bare) 
 

A public vote shall be taken before any legal action binds the public body. 
 

Motion to take action on item discussed in executive session. 
 
XIV. Next Meeting (Bare) 
 

The next regular meeting of the Mohave County Community College District will be Friday March 
8, 2019 starting at 9:00 a.m., originating from the Neal Campus Kingman.    

XV. Adjournment (Bare) 
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Minutes 
                                                                                       MCCCDGB 

 

Friday January 11, 2019 – 9:00 a.m.        
 Originating at: Bullhead City Campus  Room #508 
 Also Available via Interactive Television at: Neal Campus Kingman Room #508 
  Lake Havasu Campus Room #508 
  North Mohave Campus Room #403 
   
 

(Action Items are in bold print) 
 
I. Call to Order (Dr. Julie Bare, 2018 Secretary) 
 

Dr. Bare called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

I pledge Allegiance to the flag 
of the United States of America 
and to the Republic for which it stands, 
one nation under God, indivisible, 
with Liberty and Justice for all. 
 

III. Recognition of Phyllis Smith, Board Member, 2012-2018 (Dr. Julie Bare, 2018 Secretary) 
 

Dr. Bare stated that Phyllis Smith was elected to the Mohave County Community College District 
Governing Board in November of 2012, having been a dynamic member of the Mohave 
Community College Foundation and a lifelong supporter of community colleges.  She served as 
an officer of the MCCCDGB for five years of her six year term, as Secretary of the Board in 2014 
and 2015 and President of the Board for 2016, 2017 and 2018.  Ms. Smith represented the College 
at both the state level, as the delegate to the Arizona Association of District Governing Boards, 
where she also served as an officer, and the national level, as the voting delegate to the Association 
of Community College Trustees (ACCT) during her tenure as President.  Throughout her term, 
she actively participated in trustee education and professional development, including ACCT pre-
Congress academies, the Arizona Governance Institute for Student Success and the Community 
College Governance Recognition Program.  The Board extends its sincerest thanks to Ms. Smith, 
for her dedicated service to Mohave Community College students and staff, and to the citizens of 
Mohave County. Her passion for education and drive for raising the educational bar are 
commendable and everlasting; her tireless energy and thoughtful insights will be missed. 
 
Ms. Smith was presented a plaque in recognition for her service and briefly spoke about her 
continued commitment to furthering the mission of Mohave Community College.   
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IV. District #3 Member Elect Ashley Pascual, District #4 Member Susan McAlpine, 
Oath of Office (Dr. Julie Bare, 2018 Secretary) 

 
Dr Bare stated that pursuant to A.R.S. 38-231 and Governing Board Policy 1.035, any newly elected 
or appointed members of the Governing Board shall be sworn in at the meeting following their 
election or appointment as prescribed below: 
 
In the State of Arizona, County of Mohave,  I, (Ashley Pascual)(Susan McAlpine), do solemnly affirm 
(swear) that I will support the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution and laws of the State 
of Arizona, that I will bear true faith and allegiance to the same and defend them against all enemies, foreign 
and domestic, and that I will faithfully and impartially discharge the duties of the office of Mohave County 
Community College District Governing Board member according to the best of my ability, so I do 
affirm(swear). 
 
Ms. Pascual and Ms. McAlpine recited their oaths.   

 
V. Roll Call (Amy Curley, Executive Assistant) 
 

Julie Bare  Present 
Susan McAlpine Present 
Vance Miller  Present 
Ashley Pascual Present 
Judy Selberg  Present 

 
VI. Board Elections (Dr. Julie Bare, 2018 Secretary) 
 

Dr. Bare stated that in January, the MCCCDGB elects members of the Board to the offices of 
president and secretary for the calendar year. It is customary to nominate one or more candidates; 
nominations need not be seconded. A vote will be taken on each nominee in the order in which he 
or she was nominated, until one is elected. The officer-elect assumes the responsibilities of his or 
her office immediately. 

Nominations for 2019 President of the Board:  
 
Judy Selberg nominated Julie Bare to be 2019 President of the Board.  There were no other 
nominations.  Without further discussion, the nomination carried 4-0-1 (McAlpine, Miller 
Pascual, Selberg, Bare abstained).    
 
Nominations for 2019 Secretary of the Board:  
 
Vance Miller nominated Judy Selberg to be the 2019 Secretary of the Board.  There were no 
other nominations. Without further discussion, the nomination carried 4-0-1 (Bare, McAlpine, 
Miller, Pascual, Selberg abstained) 
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VII. Approval of Meeting Minutes (Dr. Julie Bare, 2019 Board President)(Appendix 1) 
 

Dr. Bare stated that the draft minutes from the November 9, 2018 regular meeting appear in 
Appendix 1. 

 
Vance Miller moved, Susan McAlpine seconded, to approve the draft minutes from the 
November 9, 2018 regular meeting as they appear in Appendix 1.  Without further discussion, 
the motion carried 4-0-1 (Bare, McAlpine, Miller, Selberg, Pascual abstained) 
 

VIII. Audience of Any Citizen (Dr. Julie Bare, 2019 Board President) 
 

[NOTE:  This is an opportunity for any citizen to address the Board on any matter of concern to 
the citizen.  The Board will listen to the remarks, but may not respond or answer questions.  Unless 
the matter is already on the agenda for action, no action can be taken other than to instruct staff to 
include the matter on a future agenda.  The president of the Board may limit the time for individual 
presentation and may limit the total time for all presentations.  Citizens wishing to comment will 
be limited to one opportunity to speak.  If a citizens group wishes to speak on the same subject, 
the group should choose a representative to deliver the message. The Chairperson may set a limit 
for organized group presentations and may set limits for each side when many persons request to 
speak on an agenda item. During Interactive Television (ITV) meetings, the chair will query each 
campus for those who wish to speak.] 

 
The chair queried each campus individually.  There were no citizens wishing to address the Board 
from the North Mohave, Lake Havasu Campus or Kingman Campuses.  Mr. Sean Markoff, a 
welding student, addressed the Board from the Bullhead City Campus.  
 
Mr. Markoff thanked the Board for allowing him to speak again, as he addressed the Board in 
November 2018 regarding his concerns about the transition of the welding program from a 
traditional semester based model to a competency-based education (CBE) model.   Mr. Markoff 
spoke primarily to three issues.  Firstly, the amount of resources required to instruct the high 
school students, participating in the program via the Joint Technological Educational District 
(JTED) agreement.  Mr. Markoff stated that these students required much more attention, 
essentially detracting from the advanced student’s learning experience, as well as safety and 
equipment concerns.  Secondly, Mr. Markoff addressed the need for experienced and highly 
qualified instructors that prepare students for advanced level skills.  Lastly, Mr. Markoff 
questioned the number of learning objectives that are now part of the CBE classes, stating that 
there is not enough time to sufficiently learn the materials expected, citing WLD 107 as an example.  
Interim President Stithem was directed to report back to the Board.   
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IX. Faculty Council Report (Dr. Andra Goldberg, Faculty Council President) 
 

Dr. Goldberg reported that the Faculty Association met during LATTE in December and were 
asked to give their input regarding the titles for faculty. There has been some confusion with the 
Resident and Associate labels. By consensus, “Faculty” was the choice for those that instruct full 
time and “Adjunct Faculty” was the name choice for part-time faculty. 

The faculty had requested that the syllabus changes be made earlier in the year to allow for 
implementation. The administration has agreed that on May 1 of each year, the syllabus for the 
fall semester will be completed and no changes will be made by the administration until January. 
There are no changes for the spring 2019 syllabus. 

The next Faculty Council meeting will be on 2/22/18 and topics include scheduling the next Faculty 
Association meeting prior to graduation and where it will be able to meet. Meeting face-to-face is 
preferred and one possible option is in the new Field House center. 

Stacey Gilbert and Trish Hanks were elected as the “at large” members for the Executive Advisory 
Council that met for the first time yesterday. Erin Roper was appointed Chair and Brandi Swanner 
was appointed Recorder. The Council looks forward to working with this new format to bring 
issues forward to the President. The first agenda will include a discussion on how to best support 
the transition to MCC’s next new president. 

X. Staff Council Report (Megan Knox, Staff Council President) 
 

Ms. Knox reported that the Staff council has had their first meeting on November 15, 2018.  Ms. 
Knox, enrollment services manager was elected President of the Council, Chuck Dillree, BHC 
evening campus manager as Vice President, and NCK librarian Erin Roper as Secretary. The 
reoccurring meeting times/dates were scheduled for the 2nd Thursday of every other month at 10:30 
a.m. Plans for upcoming meetings include discussing and determining goals for Staff Council, 
discussing staff concerns that have already been brought to the representative’s attention and a 
plan of action on how to resolve said issues.   
 

XI. Board Report (Dr. Julie Bare, 2019 Board President) 
 

A. AACCT Representative and ACCT Delegate (Dr. Julie Bare, 2019 Board President) 
 

Dr. Bare stated that annually, the Board should designate a member to represent Mohave 
Community College in the Arizona Association of Community College Trustees (AACCT) and 
a member to be responsible as the voting delegate for MCC in the Association of Community 
College Trustees (ACCT).  Dr. Selberg asked if Ms. McAlpine would consider representing the 
Board this year.  Ms. McAlpine asked what is required of the representative.  Dr. Bare 
responded that the Arizona group meets monthly in Phoenix but does allow teleconferencing.  
The ACCT voting delegate would require attending the national conference or, if that were not 
possible, designating an alternate.  Ms. McAlpine accepted the positions.   
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B. MCCCDGB 2018  Board Evaluation (Dr. Julie Bare, 2019 Board President)(Appendix 2)  
 

Dr. Bare stated that the Mohave County Community College District Governing Board 
completes an evaluation of its performance annually.  Trustees are requested to complete the 
evaluation instrument and submit it to staff by January 25, 2019.  The compiled results will be 
presented at the February 8, 2019 regular meeting.  Dr. Bare reminded members that the 
instructions for the evaluation indicate it is based on their “individual self-evaluation prior to 
meeting with the board as a whole.” 
 

C. Trustee Other Reports (Dr. Julie Bare, 2019 Board President) 
 
Dr. Bare, Ms. McAlpine and Dr. Selberg to the opportunity to express their gratitude to 
outgoing President, Dr. Michael Kearns.  

 
XII. President’s Report (Diana Stithem, Interim President) 

 
A. Mohave Minutes Video Recap (James Jarman, MPIO Director)(Appendix 3) 

 
Mr. Jarman stated that the Marketing and Public Information Office (MPIO) had been tasked 
by the outgoing President with creating a more dynamic way to communicate the College’s 
achievements to its constituents.  With his extensive background in broadcasting, Mr. Jarman 
and his department developed a newscast style video recap of various College press releases 
from the last three months.  The video will be available on the College’s YouTube Channel, 
(https://www.youtube.com/user/mohaveccvideos) and also be distributed via its other social 
media platforms, (https://www.facebook.com/mohavecc, https://twitter.com/mohavecc).  
 
January 2019’s Mohave Minutes contained the following stories:   
 
1. Nursing Program: Sim Man Centers 
2. Veterans Centers: Expansion to LHC and BHC  
3. Welding Program: Growth to LHC and BHC 
4. Crisis Management: Naloxone Initiative  
5. Faculty Tonya Baxley: Online Learning Consortium Award 
6. Student Accounts/Bursar: ACE Award 
7. Faculty John Hansen: Kingman Daily Miner’s 40 under 40 
8. Information Technology: National exposure for innovative software usage 
9. MCC’s Economic Impact: New Value Stats 
10. Innovation & Transformation: Student Success Rates 
11. Campuses: Welcome Back Bashes 
12. Campuses: Mohave Community College Shines 
13. Neal Campus Kingman: Astronomical Observatory 
 
Board members expressed their enthusiasm for the new approach.  Dr. Selberg made two 
suggestions: limit the use of College specific acronyms and pursue broadcasting on local public 
access stations, as a significant part of the College’s constituents may not have social media 
accounts.   

https://www.youtube.com/user/mohaveccvideos
https://www.facebook.com/mohavecc
https://twitter.com/mohavecc
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B. Arizona Transfer Report (Stithem)(Appendix 4) 
 
Interim President Diana Stithem reported that the AZTransfer Steering Committee is the 
coordinating body that ensures Arizona's students have access to efficient, seamless, and 
simple ways to transfer from a community college to a university in Arizona. Academic leaders 
from each of Arizona's public postsecondary institutions collaborate year-round to support 
transfer student success. Annually the committee develops a report that highlights results, 
services, and innovations that help students make every credit count. 
 
Ms. Pascual stated that the report attached in appendix 4 indicated there was an AZTransfer 
Mobile App (page 23) and asked if there was any data on how many students use it? 
Anecdotally, it was conveyed that MCC students were provided AZTransfer resources during 
advising sessions, if they indicated their intent to transfer. Staff will conduct further research 
and provide quantifiable data, if available.          
 

C. Retention and Completion Initiative Award (Stithem) 
 
Interim President Stithem reported MCC’s newly established Student Accounts Office recently 
notified 513 students that they were recipients of the new Retention and Completion Initiative 
Award.  The majority of the 513 students awarded had not received any federal financial aid 
or scholarships.  The award is designed to assist students who may be experiencing 
unexpected short-term difficulties, such as transportation, employment or family issues that 
could prevent them from remaining enrolled and completing their coursework.   
 
Ms. McAlpine expressed concern about unexpected or unintended consequences of the 
program.  Chief Financial Officer Sonni Marbury responded that there are well thought out 
criteria in place, and oversight from three departments, to sufficiently prevent abuse.    
 

D. Executive Advisory Council (Stithem) 
 
Interim President Stithem reported that representatives from both the Staff and Faculty 
Councils, along with two independently elected representatives, form the body that makes 
recommendations to the President on behalf of all employees.  The Executive Advisory 
Council’s inaugural meeting was Thursday December 10, 2018. Erin Roper, Librarian on the 
Neal Campus Kingman was appointed to act as chair of the Council.  The Council decided its 
first priority would be developing strategies to assist with the presidential transition.   
 

E. 2019-2020 Budget Update (Stithem) 
 
Interim President Diana Stithem reported that budget planning is a year-long collaborative 
process coordinated with all departments and divisions of the college. Annual budgeting 
focuses on the college mission, goals and objectives of all divisions.  The budget process 
initiates in early fall of each year, with strategic planning, salary and benefit meetings, and 
actual-versus-budget analyses (student populations, actual revenues and revised cost 
forecasts), supported with the efforts of institutional effectiveness.  
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The President and the Chief Financial Officer prepare an estimate of the revenue available for 
expenses to be incurred in the forthcoming fiscal year and an estimated expenditure budget 
for the operation of the college to present to the Board during the spring semester.  
 
Dr. Bare expressed appreciation that the college administration continuously provides 
extensive information regarding budget development throughout the year.   
 

F. 2019-2020 Tuition and Fees (Stithem)(Appendix 5) 
 
Interim President Stithem proposed no changes to tuition rates for 2019-2020, based on how 
the budget is developing thus far.  Changes to course fees were minimal, if at all, and primarily 
reflect pass through expenses.    
 
Type of Student Cost (per credit hour) 
 
In-state students                                             $81.00 
Out-of-state students                                     $283.50 
Western Undergraduate Exchange      $121.50 
Active Duty Military                                        $121.50 
 
Western Undergraduate Exchange: Eligible states are Alaska, Arizona, California, Colorado, 
Hawaii, Idaho, Montana, Nevada, New Mexico, North Dakota, Oregon, South Dakota, Utah, 
Washington and Wyoming. Technology, laboratory, and course fees are the same as for in-
state students. MCC excludes Allied Health courses with the following prefixes from the WUE rate: 
DEH, EMS, NUR, PTA, RAD, and SGT. WUE students in these programs must pay out-of-state 
tuition.  
 
First Time Student Tuition Rate: To provide an opportunity for those who might not otherwise 
“try out” college, MCC offers first-time students a one course tuition rate of 50% of the 
approved tuition per credit hour. All fees for credit courses (technology fees, lab fees, etc.) are 
set at 100%. Only applicable on select courses.  
 
Active Duty Military Only: MCC has created a military-friendly environment by setting tuition 
for active duty military only that will be no higher than the established MCC Western 
Undergraduate Exchange (WUE) rate. MCC excludes Allied Health courses with the following 
prefixes from the WUE rate: DEH, EMS, NUR, PTA, RAD, and SGT. 
 
Senior Citizen Tuition Rate: A Senior Citizen Tuition Rate applies to students who meet 
Arizona state residency requirements and are at least 62 years of age at the time of registration. 
Tuition for credit courses is set at 50% of the regular tuition as set by the Governing Board. All 
fees for credit courses (technology fees, lab fees, etc.) are set at 100%. 
 
Vance Miller moved, Ashley Pascual, to approve the 2019-2020 tuition rates as outlined 
above and the 2019-2020 fees as presented in the appendix.  Without further discussion, the 
motion carried 5-0 (Bare, McAlpine, Miller, Pascual, Selberg).  
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G. AZ Community College State-Level Council Reports (Stithem) 
  

Interim President Stithem reported that she will begin attending meetings of Arizona 
Community Colleges Coordinating Council (AC4) later in January.  Arrangements have also 
been made for the Interim to participate in AC4’s “Community Colleges at the Capitol”, a 
program designed to elevate the community colleges in policy discussions by enhancing their 
presence at the Capitol. Visits are scheduled for Monday afternoons throughout the session, 
when the House Education and Senate Higher Education & Workforce meet.  
  

H. Legislative Update (Stithem) 
 
Governor Doug Ducey is set to deliver the 2019 State of the State address on Monday January 
14, 2019 where he will lay out Arizona’s 2019 legislative and budget priorities. The speech will 
be delivered at 2 p.m. 

 
I. State Budget Update (Stithem)(Appendix 6) 
 

Interim President Stithem reported that the College anticipates the release of Governor 
Ducey’s FY20 budget next week and does not anticipate any significant changes to 
community college appropriations.  
 

J. Update of Current Events (Stithem) 
 
Interim President Diana Stithem did not have any updates on current events impacting the 
College other than noting the continued progression of the Presidential Search.   
 

XIII. Administrative Services 
 

A. Financial Services (Sonni Marbury, Chief Financial Officer) 
 
i. RFP Equipment for Electrical Program (Marbury)(Appendix 7)  

 
Ms. Marbury reported that the 600 building at Neal Campus-Kingman will be complete in 
early spring of 2019. The electrical program will need training equipment for the new lab 
space to cover the required curriculum and prepare students for employment. The attached 
proposal will provide a robust learning experience and hands-on simulations for the 
students. The college suggests continuing purchases of the Hampden brand as a sole 
source provider due to current employment needs, as well as ensuring consistency college-
wide in the electrical program for the students. 

Jason Gee, Associate Dean for Career and Technical Education, reported that the College 
had worked with Unisource Energy Services in developing the program. Unisource 
representatives supported the use of this type of training equipment, which allows 
students to learn in a safe environment and provides a solid foundational education for 
further training in the industry.   
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Susan McAlpine moved, Judy Selberg seconded, to accept the Hampden Engineering 
Corporation quote covering the electrical trainers, on-site training of faculty, accessories, 
etc. at a cost not to exceed $345,207, which amount includes, shipping and handling fees 
and a 10% contingency. 
 
Mr. Miller asked where in the budget the funds were allocated. Ms. Marbury responded 
that the College budget carries a 1.5 million dollar reserve annually for new or revised 
program investment.    
 
Mr. Miller asked if other utility companies, such as the Mohave Electric Cooperative 
(MEC), tribal power plants or PG&E (Topock) were brought into discussions.  Mr. Gee 
responded that representatives from those companies would be asked to participate in the 
electrical program’s advisory committee.  Each CTE program has an advisory committee 
consisting of members and/or businesses with expertise in the field, to provide input on 
the program’s curriculum.     
 
Without further discussion the motion carried 5-0 (Bare, McAlpine, Miller, Pascual, and 
Selberg).   
 

ii. Monthly Financial Reports (Appendix 8) 
 
a. Ms. Marbury reviewed the College’s monthly cash flow report, which visually 

represents the College’s fund balance, expenses, deposits and amount invested with 
the state treasurer.  Ms. Marbury stated that since the Board approved additional 
investment with the State Treasury in Local Government Investment Pools, the 
College’s investment income has increased from $8,000 annually to close to $97,000 this 
last fiscal year.   
 

b. Ms. Marbury reviewed the College’s expenditures and revenue report, which visually 
represents the College’s expenditures by function and object and its primary revenue 
sources with Year to Date Actuals.  At fifty percent of the fiscal year, the College is 
tracking nine percent under budget.     
 

B. Human Resources (Jennie Dixon, Chief Human Resources Officer) 
 
Human Resources Reports (Dixon)(Appendix 9) 
 
Ms. Dixon presented the College’s human resources reports for the month ending November 
30, 2018 and December 31, 2018, reflecting new hires, transfers, reclassifications, title changes 
and separations.  

Vance Miller moved, Susan McAlpine, to approve the Human Resources report for the 
month ending November 30, 2018 and December 31, 2018 as presented in the appendix. 
Without further discussion, the motion carried 5-0 (Bare, McAlpine, Miller, Pascual, 
Selberg).  
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XIV. Next Meeting (Dr. Julie Bare, 2019 Board President) 
 

Dr. Bare announced that the next regular meeting of the Mohave County Community College 
District will be Friday February 8, 2019 starting at 9:00 a.m., originating from the Lake Havasu 
Campus.   

XV. Recess to Presidential Work Session (Bare) 
 

Dr. Bare recessed the regular meeting at 10:00 a.m. to convene the Presidential Search Work 
Session at 10:15 a.m.  The Presidential Search Work Session was noticed under a separate agenda.   

 
XVI. Reconvene Regular Meeting (Bare) 
 

Dr. Bare reconvened the regular meeting for the Open Meeting Law Training item.  Mr. Miller and 
Dr. Selberg were unable to remain.  Dr. Bare, Ms. McAlpine and Ms. Pascual were in attendance.   

 
XVII. Open Meeting Law Training (Danee Garone, Staff Attorney, AZ Ombudsman) 11:30 a.m. 
 

Mr. Garone stated that the Arizona Ombudsman-Citizens’ Aide is an independent agency of the 
Arizona Legislature that was established to make government more responsive to Arizona 
citizens. It is the public policy of the state of Arizona that meetings of public bodies be conducted 
openly and accordingly, Arizona’s Open Meeting Law must be construed in favor of open and 
public meetings. Mr. Garone covered the following topics during the training:  
 
What constitutes a meeting? A meeting is a gathering, in person or through technological devices 
of a quorum of a public body at which they discuss, propose or take legal action, including 
deliberations. This includes telephone and e-mail communications. 
 
Who must comply with Open Meeting Law? Public bodies. "Public body" means the legislature, 
all boards and commissions of this state or political subdivisions, all multimember governing 
bodies of departments, agencies, institutions and instrumentalities of the state or political 
subdivisions, including without limitation all corporations and other instrumentalities whose 
boards of directors are appointed or elected by the state or political subdivision. Public body 
includes all quasi-judicial bodies and all standing, special or advisory committees or 
subcommittees of, or appointed by, the public body. "Advisory committee" or "subcommittee" 
means any entity, however designated, that is officially established, on motion and order of a 
public body or by the presiding officer of the public body, and whose members have been 
appointed for the specific purpose of making a recommendation concerning a decision to be made 
or considered or a course of conduct to be taken or considered by the public body.  
 
What is required under the Open Meeting Law? 
 
Notice: Public bodies must post a disclosure statement on their website or file a disclosure 
statement as provided for by statute. The disclosure statement states where the public body will 
post individual meeting notices.  The open meeting law requires at least 24 hours’ notice of 
meetings to the members of the public body and the general public.  
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Notice must be posted on the public body’s website, unless otherwise permitted by statute. Notice 
must also be posted at any other electronic or physical locations identified in the disclosure 
statement and by giving additional notice as is reasonable and practicable.  
 
Agenda: Agendas must contain information reasonably necessary to inform the public of the 
matters to be discussed or decided. Agendas must be available at least 24 hours before the meeting. 
 
Calls to the Public: Calls to the public are permitted, but not required, should be added as an 
agenda item, may limit speaker’s time, may require speakers on the same side with no new 
comments to select spokesperson, may set ground rules regarding civility and language, should 
treat everyone the same. An individual public officer may respond to criticism, ask staff to review 
an item or ask that an item be placed on a future agenda, but he or she may not dialogue with the 
presenter or collectively discuss, consider, or decide an item that is not listed on the agenda. Note 
that individual members of the public body may respond to criticism by individuals who 
addressed the public body during the call to the public, but the public body may not collectively 
discuss or take action on the complaint unless the matter is specifically listed on the agenda. 
 
Minutes: Public bodies must take meeting minutes of all meetings, including executive sessions. 
May be recorded or written, keeping in mind that permanent records must be on paper. Public 
session meeting minutes must include: 
 
• Date, time and place of meeting; 
• Names of members of the public body present or absent; 
• A general description of matters considered; and 
• An accurate description of all legal actions proposed, discussed or taken, and the names of 

members who propose each motion.  
• The minutes shall also include the names of the persons, as given, making statements or 

presenting material to the public body and a reference to the legal action about which they 
made statements or presented material. 

 
The minutes or a recording of the public session must be open for public inspection no later than 
three working days after the meeting, except as otherwise provided in the statute. Cities and towns 
with a population of more than 2,500 persons must post approved city and town council minutes 
on its website within two working days following approval. How long meeting minutes are 
maintained is determined by the public body’s record retention and destruction schedule 
authorized by Arizona State Library and Archives. 
 
Persons in attendance may record any portion of a public meeting, as long as the recording does 
not actively interfere with the meeting. Acceptable recording equipment includes tape recorders, 
cameras, or other means of reproduction.  
 
Executive Sessions: Public bodies may hold private executive sessions under a few limited 
circumstances. In executive sessions, the public is not allowed to attend or listen to the discussions, 
and the public body is not permitted to take final action. Members of the public body may not vote 
or take a poll in executive sessions.  
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There are seven authorized topics for executive sessions: 
 
1. Personnel (must provide 24 hours written notice to employee). 
2. Discussion or consideration of records exempt by law from public inspection. 
3. Legal advice – with public body’s own lawyer(s). 
4. Discussion or consultation with public body’s lawyer(s) to consider pending or contemplated 

litigation, settlement discussions, negotiated contracts. 
5. Discuss and instruct its representative regarding labor negotiations. 
6. Discuss international, interstate, and tribal negotiations. 
7. Discuss the purchase, sale, or lease of real property. 
 
Agendas for executive sessions may describe the matters to be discussed more generally than 
agendas for public meetings in order to preserve confidentiality or to prevent compromising the 
attorney-client privilege.  Nonetheless, the agenda must provide more than a recital of the statute 
that authorizes the executive session. Minutes of executive sessions must be kept confidential 
except from certain individuals.  
  

XVIII. Adjournment (Dr. Julie Bare, 2019 Board President) 
 

With the conclusion of the Open Meeting Law training presentation, the regular meeting 
adjourned at 1:00 p.m. 



                                              
MCCCDGB 2018-2019 Meeting Dates 

 

 

 

 

July 2017 No Meeting N/A N/A 

August 2018 Friday August 10, 2018 
Neal Campus 

Kingman  

9:00 A.M. 

ITV ROOM #508 

September 2018 Friday September 14, 2018 Bullhead City Campus 
9:00 A.M. 

ITV ROOM #508 

October 2018 Friday October 12, 2018 Lake Havasu Campus 
9:00 A.M. 

ITV ROOM #508 

ACCT Congress October 23-28, 2018 New York, NY  

November 2018 Friday November 9, 2018 
Neal Campus 

Kingman 

9:00 A.M. 

ITV ROOM #508 

December 2018 No Meeting N/A N/A 

January 2019 Friday January 11, 2019 Bullhead City Campus 
9:00 A.M. 

ITV ROOM #508 

February 2019 Friday February 8, 2019 Lake Havasu Campus 
9:00 A.M. 

ITV ROOM #508 

March 2019 Friday March 8, 2019 
Neal Campus 

Kingman 

9:00 A.M. 

ITV ROOM #508 

April 2019 Friday April 12, 2019 
North Mohave 

Campus 

12:00 P.M. 

ITV ROOM #103 

May 2019 Friday May 10, 2019 Bullhead City Campus 
12:00 P.M. 

ITV ROOM #508 

COMMENCEMENT Friday May 10, 2019 
Anderson Auto Group 

Field House 
3:00 P.M. 

June 2019 Thursday June 13, 2019 
Neal Campus 

Kingman 

9:00 A.M. 

ITV ROOM #508 



 

 

 

 

 
 

2018 
 
 

MCCCDGB Annual Board Evaluation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mohave County Community College District 

Governing Board 



 

 

 

The mission of Mohave Community College is to be a learning-centered institution, serving all constituencies, 

inspiring excellence through innovation and empowering students to succeed. Mohave Community College 

strives to be recognized as a resource for educational, cultural and civic activities by the communities it 

serves. 

 

 

The Process: 

 

 Each board member is encouraged to review the document and complete individual self-evaluation prior 

to meeting with the board as a whole. 

 

 Items in the document were selected from the ACCT website and are consistent with MCC GBP 1.065 - 

Powers and Duties of the Governing Board. 

 

 ACCT recommends that Governing Board Members establish annual board goals. This is collaboratively 

accomplished during the GB review. 

 

 Link: http://www.mohave.edu/Assets/documents/Admin/P&P_Manual.pdf 
 

 
 

 

INDICATORS: 

 

1 O I (we) operate at an optimum level of performance. 

2 S I (we) operate at a sustainable level that is satisfactory to me as I review my performance and consider 

areas of strength/growth. 

3 G I (we) operate at an acceptable level, but my (our) growth in this area would lead to optimal 

performance. 

4 I I (we) suggest improvement for me (the board). 
   

http://www.mohave.edu/Assets/documents/Admin/P%26P_Manual.pdf


 

 

 

1. BOARD OPERATIONS 
Scale: 1 = “O”; 2 = “S”; 3 = “G”; 4 = “I” (see indicators) 

Avg. 

1.1 The Board holds annual workshop(s) for professional development and to explore 
contemporary issues in community college governance. 

2.25 
 

1.2 The Board regularly reviews reports on student learning outcomes, and demonstrates 
a concern for the success of all students. 

1.5 

1.3 The Board spends sufficient time discussing the future direction of the College, and 
maintains a visionary focus during board discussions. 

2.25 

1.4 Trustees treat one another with respect and work together in a spirit of harmony and 
cooperation to accomplish the work of the Board. 

1 

1.5 The Board considers and respects minority opinions. 1.5 

1.6 The Board openly discusses issues and maintains appropriate relations with 
constituent groups. 

2.5 

1.7 The Board accommodates the differences of opinion that arise during debates of 
issues and once a decision is made, Trustees cease debate and uphold the decision of 
the Board 

1.25 

1.8 The Chair serves as the voice of the Board when dealing with the public and media 1.75 

   

 

 

 
 

1 = Optimal, 2 = Satisfactory, 3 = Acceptable, 4 = Improvement 
  

2.25

1.5

2.25

1

1.5

2.5

1.25

1.75

1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 1.5 1.6 1.7 1.8

Board Operations
Catagory Average, All Members 

1.6

2.3

1.6 1.5
1.75

Bare McAlpine Miller Selberg Average

Board Operations, 
Member Average, All Catagories



 

 

 KNOWLEDGE & UNDERSTANDING 
Scale: 1 = “O”; 2 = “S”; 3 = “G”; 4 = “I” (see indicators) 

Avg. 

2.1 The board understands and adheres to its roles, responsibilities, and a code of ethics. 1.75 

2.2 An examination of the Board's work provides clear evidence that the Board 
understands that its primary function is to establish the policies by which the 
community college is administered 

1.5 

2.3 The Board understands the budget, the budget process and the financial health of the 
college 

2.25 

2.4 The Board is knowledgeable about the mission and purposes of the institution. 1.25 

2.5 The Board is knowledgeable about the educational programs and services of the 
College, and seeks appropriate information about same from the President. 

1.75 

2.6 The Board is knowledgeable about major social and economic trends and issues that 
affect the community college institution. 

2 

2.7 The Board understands state and federal accountability requirements, and reviews 
accountability reports to state and federal agencies. 

1.75 

2.8 The Board understands and protects the academic freedom of the faculty, 
administration, staff, and students. 

1.75 

2.9 The Board understands the political implications of its actions, and considers the 
implications once a decision is made. 

1.75 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1 = Optimal, 2 = Satisfactory, 3 = Acceptable, 4 = Improvement

1.75
1.5

2.25

1.25

1.75
2

1.75 1.75 1.75

2.1 2.2 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.6 2.7 2.8 2.9

Knowledge & Experience,
Individual Catagory Average, All Members

1.7 1.7

1.8

1.9

1.75

1.6

1.6

1.7

1.7

1.8

1.8

1.9

1.9

2.0

Bare McAlpine Miller Selberg Average

Knowledge & Experience, 
Member Average, All Catagories



 

 

 

3. MISSION AND POLICY 
Scale: 1 = “O”; 2 = “S”; 3 = “G”; 4 = “I” (see indicators) 

Avg. 

3.1 The Board focuses on policy in board discussions, not administrative matters 2 

3.2 The Board requires and is involved in long-range fiscal planning. 2 

3.3 The Board monitors the effectiveness of the college in fulfilling the mission, and 
requires the college to regularly evaluate program effectiveness. 

2 

3.4 Decisions about budget allocations are based on evidence of program effectiveness 
and linked to plans to increase rates of student success 

1.75 

3.5 The College routinely evaluates effectiveness of efforts to improve student success 
and uses the results to improve policy and practice 

1.25 

3.6 The Board has policies that require fair and equitable employment processes, and is 
committed to equal opportunity. 

1.25 

3.7 Annual review of all facilities is conducted by the President, and presented to the GB. 
In turn, GB policies adequately address parameters for facilities maintenance, 
appearance, safety, and security. 

1.25 

3.8 The Board has a long-range facilities plan. 1.25 

3.9 The vision and goals of the institution adequately address community needs. 2 
 

 

 

 

1 = Optimal, 2 = Satisfactory, 3 = Acceptable, 4 = Improvement  

2 2 2
1.75

1.25 1.25 1.25 1.25

2

3.1 3.2 3.3 3.4 3.5 3.6 3.7 3.8 3.9

Mission & Policy, Catagory Average, 
All Members

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

Bare McAlpine Miller Selberg Average

Mission & Policy
Member Average, All Catagories



 

 

 

4. BOARD – PRESIDENT RELATIONSHIP 
Scale: 1 = “O”; 2 = “S”; 3 = “G”; 4 = “I” (see indicators) 

Avg. 

4.1 The Board maintains open and effective communication with the President 1 

4.2 The Board and President have a positive, cooperative relationship that reflects mutual 
trust and respect. 

1 

4.3 The Board clearly delegates the administration of the college to the President. 1 

4.4 Through its behavior, the Board sets a positive example for the President and other 
employees. 

1.25 

4.5 The Board has policies that require adequate participation in decision-making within 
the institution and through the President, seeks advice and recommendations from 
faculty, staff and students in developing policies. 

2 

4.6 The Board spends sufficient time planning and providing clear priorities for the 
President and the College 

2 

4.7 The Board encourages the professional growth of the President 1.25 

 

 

 

 
1 = Optimal, 2 = Satisfactory, 3 = Acceptable, 4 = Improvement 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

  

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

4.1 4.2 4.3 4.4 4.5 4.6 4.7

Board/President Relationship
Catagory Average, All Members

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

Bare McAlpine Miller Selberg Average

Board/President Relationship
Member Average, All Catagories



 

 

5. TRUSTEESHIP 
Scale: 1 = “O”; 2 = “S”; 3 = “G”; 4 = “I” (see indicators) 

Avg. 

5.1 Trustees understand that they have no legal authority outside board meetings. 1 

5.2 As a Trustee, I adhere to confidentiality expectations and requirements. 1 

5.3 Trustees are prepared for board meetings and meetings are conducted in such a 
manner that the purposes are achieved effectively and efficiently 

1.5 

5.4 The information requested by and provided to Trustees does not put an undue 
burden on staff. 

1.25 

5.5 Trustees are knowledgeable about the college, recognizing positive accomplishments 
and speaking positively about the institution in the community. 

1.25 

5.6 Trustees are knowledgeable about state and national laws and educational policy 
issues. 

2 

5.7 The time I dedicate to my responsibilities as a Trustee is worthwhile. 1.25 

5.8 As a Trustee, I am satisfied with the overall effectiveness of board management and 
organization. 

1.75 

5.9 I enjoy and am satisfied with my role as a Trustee. 1.5 

6.0 Trustees actively support the MCC foundation and its efforts. 2.5 
 

  

  
1 = Optimal, 2 = Satisfactory, 3 = Acceptable, 4 = Improvement  

1 1

1.5
1.25 1.25

2

1.25

1.75
1.5

2.5

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

5.1 5.2 5.3 5.4 5.5 5.6 5.7 5.8 5.9 6.0

Trusteeship
Catagory Average, All Members

0

0.5

1

1.5

2

Bare McAlpine Miller Selberg Average

Trusteeship, 
Member Average, All Catagories



 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

 

McAlpine:  

“I find it difficult to rank many of these as “outstanding” since I am still on the uphill climb with regard to much of it” 

“I find open meeting requirements put a damper on all questions related to “discussions”.  I feel that we express 
comments but don’t really have discussion in open meeting; but understand the need for adhering to them.” 

“Our only workshops during my tenure have been related to the presidential hiring process; but ACCT conference was 
fabulous and well worth the time, effort and money invested!” 

“When we do get a chance to have discussions, they are open, respectful and forthright and help us come to 
decisions” 

Selberg:  

“I am looking forward to working with our new Board member and with our interim President.  I think we are doing 
everything we can to insure a smooth transition and selecting a President that will follow in Dr. Kearns’ outstanding 
role and abilities! Good wishes & luck to us all!” 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 



MCC dental care for adults, no charge on 
United Way Day 
 

Mohave Wire 
 
Friday January 25th was United Way Day. This was a day that River Cities United Way assisted by 
Delta Dental and MCC had a chance to help the adults in our community with complimentary cleaning 
services. Ashley Wood of River Cities United got the funding approved for the event. 

  “The reason for doing an event like this in 
our area is because at River Cities United 
Way there are numerous times that an adult 
has called in looking for oral health 
resources. The concern of cost and limited 
access to affordable care always gets 
brought up. We do refer clients to MCC for 
the dental care they provide but even with 
minimal out of pocket expenses, the cost 
still poses an issue to some.” 

 

Second year dental hygiene students along with Greg 
Sindad, DDS., got to help approximately thirty patients 
with a variety of oral needs many of whom had been to 
the dental clinic at MCC before. 

Dr. Sindad spoke about the event. “Anytime that there is 
outreach to the community to make essential services 
such as dental care available, it is always a good thing. 
The frustration is that there is so much need and so few 
resources. We all need to redouble our efforts to make 
essential health care services available to everyone.” 

The event doesn’t just benefit the community or River 
Cities United Way, it also benefits the dental students 
who are getting in valuable, and required, clinic hours. 

 

 



 

 “By partnering together, we create an opportunity for 
those in need to get access to care while giving the dental 
department opportunity to get required community service 
completed and help reach their goals for their degrees as 
well. It’s a win-win-win.” Says Ashley Wood. “United Way 
has amazing results with supply and demand being met. 
MCC student’s gets credit and the Dental Clinic at the 
school gains some public awareness letting the 
community know they are here to help, and the 
community’s needs are being met! Plus, who doesn’t love 
a fresh clean mouth to smile and make a better first 
impressions with.” 

A huge thank you to Ashely Wood of River Cities United Way for getting the funding for this event 
approved. 

Get more information on the MCC Dental Hygiene School. You can also call 1-866-MOHAVECC and 
ask to be transferred to the dental hygiene school. 

 

Layla Powell,BHC Student Multimedia Reporter 

lpowell@mohave.edu 
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Welding Presentation for PASS/PALS Students 
by MCC. 
 

Mohave Wire 
Contributed By Julie Napier,  MCC Student Services Technician 
 

Back in November, Buddy May, a welding instructor over at MCC, presented information on Mohave 
Community College’s Welding Technology program to approximately 30 students at Kingman Unified 
School District’s PASS/PALS. 

So, what is welding? 

The simple explanation given was that welding is 
basically making one piece of metal from two 
pieces of metal. The type of welding process used 
is determined by the type and thickness of the 
metals being joined. 

There are four different types of welds: Mig, Tig, 
Stick, and Flux-cored. 

Mig, short for “metal inert gas,” uses continuous feed wire. Tig, tungsten inert gas, uses long welding 
rods that are slowly fed. Shielded metal arc, commonly called “stick welding,” uses electricity to 
create an arc between the stick and the metals being joined. Flux-cored is a wire-feed process but 
differs in that self-shielded flux-cored welding does not require a shielding gas. 

The students passed samples around as Buddy explained how welds are examined for quality when 
completing certification testing. He showed how the 1-inch thick bars were cut and acid etched to 
show the weld which couldn’t be seen otherwise. A cut-away piece was passed around so that the 
students could see and feel the difference. He showed that thinner plates are cut into “straps” and 
bent 180o to show the strength of that weld. The welded pipe piece was passed among the students 
while Buddy explained that the sample had a weld that would need to withstand 900 psi and up to 
1500oF to be used in a steam plant. 

The students were interested in how much opportunity is really out there for them in the welding field. 
It was estimated that the welding field has a shortage of 250,000 or more workers with that number 
continuing to grow due to the current welders nearing retirement more rapidly than new welders are 
coming into the field. 

The students learned that the income for welders can range depending on experience, difficulty, and 
danger level. An entry level welder might only make $12 per hour while a welder with many years’ 
experience could earn around $100 per hour. 



There are many careers available in the welding field, ranging from shipyards, railroads, construction, 
and pipeline. There were questions about underwater welding and what those welders earn and the 
danger involved in that industry line. The students were a bit surprised to learn that the equipment 
worn, just to go into the water, weighs around 200 pounds! The weight of the gear can often be the 
deciding factor in a welder choosing not to go that route. 

The students learned that movement from entry level can take place within 3-6 months of being hired, 
how quickly and how far they move up in the field will be determined by their knowledge, 
performance, skills, and attendance. Welders must be able to pass background and drug testing as 
part of certification and many employers will provide on-site certification in order to hire a welder. 

In addition to joining metals, welders often have to cut metals. MCC’s welding students use oxy, 
plasma arc, and a cutting track. The oxy and plasma can be used for many cuts, but the cutting track 
is used when the goal is to have a long, relatively straight cut. 

The students inquired about program costs and it was explained that the WAVE/JTED program would 
pay for them to take classes during their junior and senior years of high school. After high school, 
they should complete the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA). Mandy, Student 
Services Technician, advised that in addition to the tuition, technology fees, and student activities 
fees, the program has course fees which vary by course and they may need to purchase books, too. 
Buddy reminded everyone that they will also have the expense of purchasing their own protective 
equipment which includes a hood, jacket, and gloves. 

 



 







 



Mohave Community College 
Information Technology Strategic Plan 
Mohave Community College Mission 
The mission of Mohave Community College is to be a learning-centered institution, serving all 
constituencies, inspiring excellence through innovation and empowering students to succeed. 

MCC-IT Vision
Technology empowers students, faculty, and staff to become leaders.  MCC-IT enriches the 
college environment with technology that inspires constituents to achieve the amazing. 

IT Guiding Principles 
The following principles guide the pursuit of the MCC-IT strategy: 

• The students are the mission, and MCC-IT will work tirelessly to enhance the student
experience.

• Technology will support and encourage learning, research, and collaboration.
• Systems will be designed to share data among processes wherever possible while

respecting limits for privacy, regulatory compliance, and security.
• Technology choices will favor solutions that are as close as possible to real world

hardware and software to provide students with learning experiences that mirror the
professional workplace.

• Services will contain all elements for best use, including training, support, adequate
funding, and accessibility.

• MCC-IT will partner with other departments and divisions to limit redundant or outdated
services, combine processes, and seek automation wherever possible so that investments
in information technology are wise, effective, and productive.

MCC-IT Strategic Goals

1. Reduce Administrative Burden for Mission Related Work

Changing compliance requirements add complexity to business processes and consume time 
and resources better directed to teaching, positive student experiences, and providing services 
to the community.  MCC-IT will take an end to end approach to process and service design to 
eliminate waste and make administrative processes and compliance requirements less 
burdensome, automating wherever possible. 

2. Support a Classroom Environment Geared Towards Active Learning

MCC-IT will partner with faculty to capture data relevant to the learning experience and then
use that data to develop innovative approaches to teaching and learning.

3. Create an Environment Where Information is Easily Leveraged to Support Strategic and
Operational Initiatives

Data driven decision making requires data driven applications and services that allow the 
capture, analysis, and application of data trends to the college administration and learning 



environment.  At the same time, security, privacy, and regulatory compliance are often 
competing needs that must be addressed carefully and completely to ensure appropriate use 
of data in decision making.  MCC-IT will strive to ensure that data is available, usable, and useful 
to the various departments on campus.  

4. Set the Standard for Collaboration

MCC-IT will continue to provide hardware, software, and tools to enhance collaboration 
between and among students, faculty, and staff.  Excellent collaboration improves the ability 
of constituents to work together to achieve goals and provide the best learning experience for 
students. MCC-IT will also continue to partner with vendors to provide leading edge hardware 
and software, cost effective enterprise solutions, and better offerings for faculty, staff, and 
students.  Finally, MCC-IT will utilize partnerships with other Arizona higher education institutions to 
provide students with new opportunities to learn and collaborate with their peers.

     5. Mobilize Teaching and Learning Experiences
The IT department will constantly seek software solutions that are platform agnostic and 
reachable from any device in any location.  In addition, MCC-IT will leverage partnerships with 
businesses and organizations that offer opportunities to enhance technology offerings, analytics, 
and new opportunities to improve the technology environment. 

6. Enhance Information Security

MCC-IT will strive to minimize the attack surface area of the college, reduce threat exposure
time, investigate and remediate threats, and utilize scanning and AI to prevent potential threats
to the environment.  MCC-IT will work to reduce risk to the institution, educate faculty, staff and
students about information security, and establish policies that maximize compliance with laws,
regulations, and generally accepted best practices in information security.

7. Explore

Technology changes constantly and brings new challenges, opportunities, and threats each 
day.  MCC-IT will be fearless explorers of new hardware, software, and services that lead to 
improved efficiency and student experiences, and will work to ensure that key drivers and use 
cases are supported by our technology environment.  This mission expands beyond the college 
and will include collaborations with local and state government for infrastructure improvements, 
programs designed to produce productive workers for local business and industry, and 
partnerships with educational and social organizations geared towards degree completion and 
educational attainment. 

MCC-IT Strategic Initiatives

1. Create a consistent learning environment that offers students the same tools, equipment,
and software no matter the campus, class, or initiative.  To achieve this goal the
department will analyze current offerings with the input of faculty and begin
standardizing classroom technology offerings. 2, 4, 5

a. Classroom refresh
b. Projector->TV replacements
c. Zoom upgrades



2. Ensure data integrity across applications by leveraging services and systems to
interoperate cleanly and securely, particularly the document workflow and student
information systems.  1, 3, 4, 6

a. Jenzabar Permissions project
b. OnBase Migration
c. Departmental security audits

3. Harden the physical and virtual environment to provide the best data protection
possible. 6

a. Firewall replacement
b. Jenzabar Permissions Project
c. Internal audit
d. Annual Arizona State Audit

4. Leverage OnBase to automate, where possible, processes and procedures. 1, 3, 7
a. OnBase Migration
b. Student Application

5. Redeploy or replace current student information system. 1, 7
a. Jenzabar One Project

6. Remain an influential stakeholder in the I-40 Corridor project and work to bring this vision
to fruition.  2, 7

a. National Science Foundation Grant
b. Regional Connectivity Project

7. Increase awareness of information security best practices through outreach, training,
and mentoring. 6

a. Online onboarding of employees security video
b. Phishing project
c. Departmental Audits

8. Leverage new Hyper-converged data center environment to create an infrastructure
that is responsive, agile, and scalable to the needs of the college. 1, 3, 5, 7

a. VMWare View update project
b. Lab buildout for technology enabled classes

9. Partner with students and faculty to improve programs and offerings.
a. MCC-IT associate faculty initiative
b. Virtualized servers and networking course offerings
c. Low cost computers for students
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AC4

Posted Calendars and Committee Hearings

H2002: EDUCATORS; ETHICS; PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 Calendar:1/31 House Caucus
H2061: FOSTER TUITION WAIVER SCHOLARSHIP; AGE 
 Hearing:House Education (Monday 02/04/19 at 2:00 PM, House Rm. 1) 
H2064: CTEDS; 9TH GRADE; WORKFORCE NEED 
 Hearing:House Education (Monday 02/04/19 at 2:00 PM, House Rm. 1) 
H2082: JUNIOR RESERVE OFFICER TRAINING; CTE 

 Hearing:House Military & Veterans Affairs (Monday 02/04/19 at 2:00 PM, House
Rm. 3) 

H2303: COMPUTER SCIENCE; CREDIT; MATHEMATICS; SCIENCE 
 Hearing:House Education (Monday 02/04/19 at 2:00 PM, House Rm. 1) 
H2321: PUBLIC SERVICE SCHOLARSHIP FUND 
 Hearing:House Education (Monday 02/04/19 at 2:00 PM, House Rm. 1) 
S1010: ASRS; WAITING PERIOD; REPEAL 
 Calendar:1/30 Senate Consent
S1016: ASRS; INELIGIBLE CONTRIBUTIONS; UNFUNDED LIABILITY 
 Calendar:1/30 Senate Consent
S1018: ASRS; COMPENSATION; DEFINITION 
 Calendar:1/30 Senate Consent
S1019: APPROPRIATION; COMMISSION FOR POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION 
 Hearing:Senate Appropriations (Tuesday 02/05/19 at 2:00 PM, Senate Rm. 109) 
S1037: TPT; DISTRIBUTION; COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS 
 Calendar:1/30 Senate Consent
S1065: CTEDS; FOURTH-YEAR FUNDING 
 Calendar:1/30 Senate Consent
S1191: STUDENTS; COMMUNITY COLLEGE GRANTS 

 Hearing:Senate Higher Education & Workforce Development (Monday 02/04/19 at
2:00 PM, Senate Rm. 1) 

S1217: ARIZONA HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATES; TUITION 

 Hearing:Senate Higher Education & Workforce Development (Monday 02/04/19 at
2:00 PM, Senate Rm. 1) 

Priority

Bill Summaries

H2061: FOSTER TUITION WAIVER SCHOLARSHIP; AGE 

The Arizona Board of Regents is required to provide a "tuition" (defined) waiver
scholarship to an Arizona resident who was either in foster care when the person was at
least 14 years of age, decreased from 16, or was adopted from foster care and the
adoption was finalized when the person was at least 14 years of age, decreased from
16, and who meets the other specified qualifications.
First sponsor: Rep. Barto (R - Dist 15) 
Others: Rep. Petersen (R - Dist 12) 

 



H2061 Daily History  Date Action

FOSTER TUITION WAIVER SCHOLARSHIP; AGE 1/24 referred to House educ, appro. 

H2123: TPT; DISTRIBUTION; COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS 

Modifies the distribution of revenues from the 0.6 percent transaction privilege tax
levied for education purposes so that the transfer of 3 percent of remaining monies to
the Workforce Development Account of each community college district occurs after the
appropriation to the Classroom Site Fund and simultaneous to the transfer of 12 percent
of remaining monies to the Technology and Research Initiative Fund (TRIF) for
universities, instead of after the transfer to the TRIF.
First sponsor: Rep. Udall (R - Dist 25) 
Others: Rep. Biasiucci (R - Dist 5), Rep. Blackman (R - Dist 6), Rep. Bolding (D - Dist 27), Rep. Cobb (R - Dist 5), 
Rep. Shope (R - Dist 8) 

 

H2123 Daily History  Date Action

TPT; DISTRIBUTION; COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS 1/29 from House educ do pass. 

TPT; DISTRIBUTION; COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS 1/28 House educ do pass; report awaited. 

TPT; DISTRIBUTION; COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS 1/22 referred to House educ. 

H2242: POSTSECONDARY STUDENTS; DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS 

A community college district or university cannot prohibit an accused student, an accused
student organization or an alleged victim from having a "legal representative" at a
"disciplinary proceeding" (both defined), and cannot prohibit a legal representative from
"full participation" (defined) in the proceeding. A community college district or university
shall establish policies and procedures to provide written notice of the accused student's,
accused student organization's or alleged victim's rights as soon as practicable but at
least seven days before a disciplinary proceeding. The parties to a disciplinary proceeding
are required to make a good faith effort to exchange any evidence. Establishes
requirements for investigators in a disciplinary action. If the Attorney General determines
and notifies the State Treasurer that a community college district or university has
violated these requirements, the State Treasurer is required to withhold up to 10 percent
of the state funding that would otherwise be distributed to that community college
district or university until the Attorney General notifies the State Treasurer that the
violation has been resolved.
First sponsor: Rep. Kern (R - Dist 20) 

 

H2242 Daily History  Date Action

POSTSECONDARY STUDENTS; DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS 1/28 referred to House educ, jud. 

H2321: PUBLIC SERVICE SCHOLARSHIP FUND 

Establishes the John McCain Public Service Scholarship Fund, to be administered by the
Commission for Postsecondary Education and used to provide scholarships to students
who complete a term of service in a national service program, receive a federal
postservice education award, and use the award to attend an educational institution or
program in Arizona. Appropriates the following amounts from the general fund to the
Fund, $1 million in FY2019-20, either $1 million or $2 million in FY2020-21 depending on
the amount of scholarship monies awarded in FY2019-20, and in FY2021-22, either $3
million or the amount deposited in FY2020-21 depending on the amount of scholarship
monies awarded in FY2020-21.
First sponsor: Rep. Lieberman (D - Dist 28) 
Others: Rep. Biasiucci (R - Dist 5), Rep. Blackman (R - Dist 6), Rep. Bolding (D - Dist 27), Rep. Bowers (R - Dist
25), Sen. Bowie (D - Dist 18), Rep. Cano (D - Dist 3), Sen. Carter (R - Dist 15), Rep. Cobb (R - Dist 5), Rep. A.
Hernandez (D - Dist 3), Rep. Pawlik (D - Dist 17), Rep. Toma (R - Dist 22), Rep. Udall (R - Dist 25) 

 

H2321 Daily History  Date Action

PUBLIC SERVICE SCHOLARSHIP FUND 1/30 referred to House educ, appro. 



S1037: TPT; DISTRIBUTION; COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS 

Modifies the distribution of revenues from the 0.6 percent transaction privilege tax
levied for education purposes so that the transfer of 3 percent of remaining monies to
the Workforce Development Account of each community college district occurs after the
appropriation to the Classroom Site Fund and simultaneous to the transfer of 12 percent
of remaining monies to the Technology and Research Initiative Fund (TRIF) for
universities, instead of after the transfer to the TRIF.
First sponsor: Sen. Brophy McGee (R - Dist 28) 

 

S1037 Daily History  Date Action

TPT; DISTRIBUTION; COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS 1/29 to Senate consent calendar. From Senate rules okay. 

TPT; DISTRIBUTION; COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS 1/23 from Senate educ do pass. 

TPT; DISTRIBUTION; COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS 1/22 Senate educ do pass; report awaited. 

TPT; DISTRIBUTION; COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTS 1/14 referred to Senate educ. 

S1048: COMMUNITY COLLEGES; ADMISSIONS CRITERIA 

The admissions criteria for community colleges in Arizona is updated to require
community colleges to grant admission to students who are under 18 years of age and
who achieve either a minimum score of 720, instead of 93, on the preliminary
scholastic aptitude test, a minimum score of 720, instead of 930, on the scholastic
aptitude test, or a minimum score of 12, instead of 22, on the American college test.
First sponsor: Sen. Bowie (D - Dist 18) 

 

S1048 Daily History  Date Action

COMMUNITY COLLEGES; ADMISSIONS CRITERIA 1/28 from Senate higher ed-work dev with amend #4010. 

COMMUNITY COLLEGES; ADMISSIONS CRITERIA 1/24 Senate higher ed-work dev amended; report awaited. 

COMMUNITY COLLEGES; ADMISSIONS CRITERIA 1/14 referred to Senate higher ed-work dev. 

S1191: STUDENTS; COMMUNITY COLLEGE GRANTS 

Beginning August 1, 2019, each community college district governing board is required
to administer Arizona works community college grants for students who are enrolled in
career and technical education programs at a community college in that district. Grants
must be used to pay for tuition and fees. Eligibility requirements for grants are
established. Establishes the Arizona Works Community College Grant Fund and
appropriates $10 million from the general fund in each of FY2019-20 through FY2023-24
to the Fund. The grant program self-repeals July 1, 2026. Retroactive to August 1, 2019.
First sponsor: Sen. Bowie (D - Dist 18) 
Others: Sen. Bradley (D - Dist 10), Sen. Carter (R - Dist 15), Sen. Gonzales (D - Dist 3), Rep. Jermaine (D - Dist
18), Rep. Lieberman (D - Dist 28), Sen. Navarrete (D - Dist 30) 

 

S1191 Daily History  Date Action

STUDENTS; COMMUNITY COLLEGE GRANTS 1/28 referred to Senate higher ed-work dev, appro. 

S1217: ARIZONA HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATES; TUITION 

A person who applies for admission to a state university or community college up to 4
years after graduating from a public or private high school in Arizona is entitled to the
arizona high school graduate tuition rate in an amount prescribed by the Arizona Board
of Regents or the community college district governing board. A person who has
previously qualified for the Arizona high school graduate tuition rate remains qualified for
that tuition rate as long as that person remains "continuously enrolled" (defined) at that
educational institution. Session law provides that a person who applies for admission to a
state university or community college before July 1, 2021 and up to 12 years after
graduating from a public or private high school in Arizona is entitled to the Arizona high

 



school graduate tuition rate in an amount prescribed by the Arizona Board of Regents or
the community college district governing board.
First sponsor: Sen. Carter (R - Dist 15) 
Others: Sen. Brophy McGee (R - Dist 28), Sen. Gonzales (D - Dist 3), Sen. Navarrete (D - Dist 30), Sen. Peshlakai (D
- Dist 7) 

S1217 Daily History  Date Action

ARIZONA HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATES; TUITION 1/28 referred to Senate higher ed-work dev. 

S1319: POSTSECONDARY INSTITUTIONS; COURSES; CONSTITUTIONS 

Each university under the jurisdiction of the Arizona Board of Regents and each
community college in each community college district in Arizona is required to offer
one or more elective credit courses on the constitutions of the U.S. and Arizona.
First sponsor: Sen. Livingston (R - Dist 22) 
Others: Sen. S. Allen (R - Dist 6) 

 

S1319 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

CTEDS

Bill Summaries

H2064: CTEDS; 9TH GRADE; WORKFORCE NEED 

A student in 9th grade who enrolls in a program offered by a career technical education
district (CTED) may be included in the CTED's student count or average daily
membership if the Department of Education determines that the program serves a
workforce need in the subject area of agriscience, automotive technologies, construction
technologies, manufacturing or engineering. Makes a supplemental appropriation of
$4.4 million from the general fund in FY2019-20 to the Department of Education for
state aid to CTEDs.
First sponsor: Rep. Engel (D - Dist 10) 
Others: Rep. Blackman (R - Dist 6), Rep. Butler (D - Dist 28), Rep. Cobb (R - Dist 5), Rep. Epstein (D - Dist 18), 
Rep. Gabaldon (D - Dist 2), Rep. A. Hernandez (D - Dist 3), Rep. Jermaine (D - Dist 18), Rep. Pawlik (D - Dist 17) 

 

H2064 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

H2353: CTEDS; SCHOOL DISTRICTS; GOVERNING BOARDS 

An employee of a school district that is a member of a Career Technical Education
District (CTED) or that contracts for services with a CTED, including a person who
provides services to that school district as an employee of a third-party contractor, and
the spouse of such an employee are prohibited from being a member of the governing
board of that CTED. Session law provides for the retention of current CTED governing
board members until the expiration of their normal terms.
First sponsor: Rep. Bowers (R - Dist 25) 

 

H2353 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

S1065: CTEDS; FOURTH-YEAR FUNDING 

 



Students in 9th grade and students in the school year immediately following graduation
who are enrolled in courses that are approved jointly by the governing board of the
Career Technical Education District (CTED) and each participating school district or
charter school may be included in a CTED's calculation of student count or average daily
membership. Funding cannot be provided for more than four years for the same
student. Funding is not provided until a student reaches grade 10, and at that time
funding is provided for that student for grade 9 and for any subsequent year in which
the student is eligible for funding.
First sponsor: Sen. Mesnard (R - Dist 17) 

 

S1065 Daily History  Date Action

CTEDS; FOURTH-YEAR FUNDING 1/29 stricken from Senate consent calendar by Alston. 

CTEDS; FOURTH-YEAR FUNDING 1/29 to Senate consent calendar. From Senate rules okay. 

CTEDS; FOURTH-YEAR FUNDING 1/23 from Senate educ do pass. 

CTEDS; FOURTH-YEAR FUNDING 1/22 Senate educ do pass; report awaited. 

CTEDS; FOURTH-YEAR FUNDING 1/16 referred to Senate educ. 

S1335: CTEDS; ADM; DUAL ENROLLMENT 

The average daily membership (ADM) of a full-time Career Technical Education District
(CTED) student is 1.0 if the student is enrolled in one or more courses that meet for at
least 600 hours. The ADM of a part-time CTED student is 0.5 if the student is enrolled in
an instructional program of one or two courses that meet at least 300 hours. Students in
an approved CTED centralized program may generate an ADM of up to 1.0 during any
day of the week and at any time between July 1 and June 30 of each fiscal year. ADM is
calculated by dividing the instructional hours as reported in the student information
system by 600 hours, except that between 150 hours and 249 hours equals 0.25 ADM,
between 300 hours and 449 hours equals 0.5 ADM, and between 450 hours and 599
hours equals 0.75 ADM. Also, the ADM for a student enrolled in a career technical
education course and who does not meet other specified is 0.25 for every five community
college credits, except that the sum of the ADM cannot statutory limits. Retroactive to
January 1, 2018.
First sponsor: Sen. Carter (R - Dist 15) 

 

S1335 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

Prop 301

Bill Summaries

H2563: EDUCATION FUNDING; USE TAX; TPT 

Establishes a required distribution formula for all monies collected from a new article in
the state Constitution. Requires monies generated from the tax to be paid in monthly
installments as follows: 70 percent to the Classroom Site Fund; 20 percent to universities,
with 34 percent of that amount appropriated to the Technology and Research Initiative
Fund and 66 percent of that amount appropriated to the Arizona Board of Regents to be
distributed proportionally to each university based on the number of students who receive
in-state tuition to maintain an in-state tuition rate that is consistent with the state
Constitutional requirement for tuition to be as nearly free as possible; 5 percent for
community college trade and workforce development programs; and 5 percent to be
allocated to the general fund for the low-income tax credit for excises taxes paid, to the
Department of Education for school safety and the education learning and accountability
system, and to the Auditor General for related reporting. Repeals the additional
transaction privilege tax rate increment of 0.6 percent imposed from July 1, 2022 through
June 30, 2041 that would have been distributed for specified education purposes, and
repeals statute specifying the distribution of those revenues. Repeals the individual
income tax credit for increased transaction privilege or excise taxes paid for education.
Modifies the purposes for which monies from the Classroom Site Fund must be spent to
remove assessment intervention programs and teacher liability insurance premiums and

 



remove assessment intervention programs and teacher liability insurance premiums and
add educational interventions, voluntary full-day kindergarten, the cost of additional
school days, student support services, school resource officers and career and technical
education. Deletes the requirement for school districts and charter schools to allocate 40
percent of the monies received from the Classroom Site Fund for teacher compensation
increases based on performance and employment related expenses, 20 percent of the
monies for teacher base salary increases and employment related expenses, and 40
percent of the monies for maintenance and operation purposes. Requires the Department
of Education to annually use $86,280 of the monies in the Classroom Site Fund to fund
basic state aid for schools. Conditionally enacted effective July 1, 2021 if the state
Constitution is amended by a vote of the people at the 2020 general election by passage
of an unspecified House Concurrent Resolution (blank in original). [Capitol Reports Note:
The new article in the state Constitution referred to in this legislation is established by
HCR2024.]
First sponsor: Rep. Udall (R - Dist 25) 

H2563 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

HCR2024: TPT AND USE TAX; EDUCATION 

The 2020 general election ballot is to carry the question of whether to amend the state
Constitution to levy a separate 1 percent transaction privilege tax beginning July 1, 2021
for the purpose of raising revenues for education. The net revenues derived from the tax
are appropriated as follows: 70 percent for primary and secondary classroom education
purposes, 20 percent for maintaining an in-state tuition rate that is consistent with the
state Constitutional requirement for tuition to be as nearly free as possible, 5 percent for
community college trade and workforce development programs, and 5 percent for
oversight and accountability.
First sponsor: Rep. Udall (R - Dist 25) 

 

HCR2024 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

S1080: TPT; USE TAX; EDUCATION 

Establishes a required distribution formula for all monies collected from a new article in
the state Constitution. Requires monies generated from the tax to be paid in monthly
installments as follows: 73 percent to the Classroom Site Fund, 22 percent to the Arizona
Board of Regents to be distributed proportionally to each university based on the number
of students who receive in-state tuition to maintain an in-state tuition rate that is
consistent with the state Constitutional requirement for tuition to be as nearly free as
possible, and 5 percent for community college trade and workforce development
programs. Repeals the additional transaction privilege tax rate increment of 0.6 percent
imposed from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2041 that would have been distributed for
specified education purposes, and repeals statute specifying the distribution of those
revenues. Repeals the individual income tax credit for increased transaction privilege or
excise taxes paid for education. Modifies the purposes for which monies from the
Classroom Site Fund must be spent to remove class size reduction and add voluntary
full-day kindergarten, the cost of additional school days, student support services and
school resource officers. Deletes the requirement for school districts and charter schools
to allocate 40 percent of the monies received from the Classroom Site Fund for teacher
compensation increases based on performance and employment related expenses, 20
percent of the monies for teacher base salary increases and employment related
expenses, and 40 percent of the monies for maintenance and operation purposes.
Conditionally enacted effective July 1, 2021 if the state Constitution is amended by a vote
of the people at the 2020 general election by passage of an unspecified House Concurrent
Resolution (blank in original). [Capitol Reports Note: The new article in the state
Constitution referred to in this legislation is established by SCR1001.]
First sponsor: Sen. S. Allen (R - Dist 6) 

 



S1080 Daily History  Date Action

TPT; USE TAX; EDUCATION 1/23 from Senate educ with amend #4004. 

TPT; USE TAX; EDUCATION 1/22 Senate educ amended; report awaited. 

TPT; USE TAX; EDUCATION 1/17 referred to Senate educ. 

S1345: EDUCATION FUNDING; TPT; USE TAX 

Establishes a required distribution formula for all monies collected from a new article in
the state Constitution. Requires monies generated from the tax to be paid in monthly
installments as follows: 70 percent to the Classroom Site Fund; 20 percent to universities,
with 34 percent of that amount appropriated to the Technology and Research Initiative
Fund and 66 percent of that amount appropriated to the Arizona Board of Regents to be
distributed proportionally to each university based on the number of students who receive
in-state tuition to maintain an in-state tuition rate that is consistent with the state
Constitutional requirement for tuition to be as nearly free as possible; 5 percent for
community college trade and workforce development programs; and 5 percent to be
allocated to the general fund for the low-income tax credit for excises taxes paid, to the
Department of Education for school safety and the education learning and accountability
system, and to the Auditor General for related reporting. Repeals the additional
transaction privilege tax rate increment of 0.6 percent imposed from July 1, 2022 through
June 30, 2041 that would have been distributed for specified education purposes, and
repeals statute specifying the distribution of those revenues. Repeals the individual
income tax credit for increased transaction privilege or excise taxes paid for education.
Modifies the purposes for which monies from the Classroom Site Fund must be spent to
remove assessment intervention programs and teacher liability insurance premiums and
add educational interventions, voluntary full-day kindergarten, the cost of additional
school days, student support services, school resource officers and career and technical
education. Deletes the requirement for school districts and charter schools to allocate 40
percent of the monies received from the Classroom Site Fund for teacher compensation
increases based on performance and employment related expenses, 20 percent of the
monies for teacher base salary increases and employment related expenses, and 40
percent of the monies for maintenance and operation purposes. Requires the Department
of Education to annually use $86,280 of the monies in the Classroom Site Fund to fund
basic state aid for schools. Conditionally enacted effective July 1, 2021 if the state
Constitution is amended by a vote of the people at the 2020 general election by passage
of an unspecified Senate Concurrent Resolution (blank in original). [Capitol Reports Note:
The new article in the state Constitution referred to in this legislation is established by
SCR1011.]
First sponsor: Sen. Brophy McGee (R - Dist 28) 
Others: Sen. Carter (R - Dist 15) 

 

S1345 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

SCR1001: EDUCATION; TPT; USE TAX 

The 2020 general election ballot is to carry the question of whether to amend the state
Constitution to levy a separate 1 percent transaction privilege tax beginning July 1, 2021
for the purpose of raising revenues for education. The net revenues derived from the tax
are appropriated as follows: 73 percent for primary and secondary classroom education
purposes, 22 percent for maintaining an in-state tuition rate that is consistent with the
state Constitutional requirement for tuition to be as nearly free as possible, and 5
percent for community college trade and workforce development programs.
First sponsor: Sen. S. Allen (R - Dist 6) 
Others: Rep. Biasiucci (R - Dist 5), Rep. Blackman (R - Dist 6) 

 

SCR1001 Daily History  Date Action

EDUCATION; TPT; USE TAX 1/23 from Senate educ do pass. 

EDUCATION; TPT; USE TAX 1/22 Senate educ do pass; report awaited. 

EDUCATION; TPT; USE TAX 1/15 referred to Senate educ, appro. 



SCR1011: TPT AND USE TAX; EDUCATION 

The 2020 general election ballot is to carry the question of whether to amend the state
Constitution to levy a separate 1 percent transaction privilege tax beginning July 1, 2021
for the purpose of raising revenues for education. The net revenues derived from the tax
are appropriated as follows: 70 percent for primary and secondary classroom education
purposes, 20 percent for maintaining an in-state tuition rate that is consistent with the
state Constitutional requirement for tuition to be as nearly free as possible, 5 percent for
community college trade and workforce development programs, and 5 percent for
oversight and accountability.
First sponsor: Sen. Brophy McGee (R - Dist 28) 
Others: Sen. Boyer (R - Dist 20), Sen. Carter (R - Dist 15) 

 

SCR1011 Daily History  Date Action

TPT AND USE TAX; EDUCATION 1/30 referred to Senate educ. 

ASRS

Bill Summaries

H2007: ASRS; POLITICAL SUBDIVISION PLANS; ADJUSTMENTS 

An employee of a political subdivision who was previously a member of another public
employee retirement system and who receives or is eligible to receive retirement
benefits from that system is ineligible to receive service credit from the Arizona State
Retirement System (ASRS) for the same period of employment. ASRS employers are
permitted to correct a contributions error by making payment adjustments through the
employer's payroll reporting if the adjustment is made within the same fiscal year and
the employer obtains written consent from the employee.
First sponsor: Rep. Kavanagh (R - Dist 23) 

 

H2007 Daily History  Date Action

ASRS; POLITICAL SUBDIVISION PLANS; ADJUSTMENTS 1/24 from House gov do pass. 

ASRS; POLITICAL SUBDIVISION PLANS; ADJUSTMENTS 1/24 House gov do pass; report awaited. 

ASRS; POLITICAL SUBDIVISION PLANS; ADJUSTMENTS 1/14 referred to House gov. 

S1010: ASRS; WAITING PERIOD; REPEAL 

Statute requiring any state employee initially hired on or after July 20, 2011 to wait
until the 27th week of employment to become a member of the Arizona State
Retirement System (ASRS) or the ASRS Long-Term Disability Program is repealed.
First sponsor: Sen. Livingston (R - Dist 22) 

 

S1010 Daily History  Date Action

ASRS; WAITING PERIOD; REPEAL 1/29 to Senate consent calendar. From Senate rules okay. 

ASRS; WAITING PERIOD; REPEAL 1/17 from Senate fin do pass. 

ASRS; WAITING PERIOD; REPEAL 1/16 Senate fin do pass; report awaited. 

ASRS; WAITING PERIOD; REPEAL 1/14 referred to Senate fin. 

S1016: ASRS; INELIGIBLE CONTRIBUTIONS; UNFUNDED LIABILITY 

 



The requirement for an employer to pay to Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) any
unfunded liability resulting from providing benefits or credits to a person who is ineligible
by statute for ASRS membership is expanded to apply if an employer pays contributions
to the on behalf of any person who is ineligible by rule for ASRS membership or on
compensation that is not eligible by statute or rule for ASRS contributions. The definition
of "unfunded liability" is modified to establish a calculation for determining the unfunded
liability for contributions on compensation that is not eligible by statute or rule for ASRS
contributions.
First sponsor: Sen. Livingston (R - Dist 22) 

 

S1016 Daily History  Date Action

ASRS; INELIGIBLE CONTRIBUTIONS; UNFUNDED LIABILITY 1/29 to Senate consent calendar. From Senate rules
okay. 

ASRS; INELIGIBLE CONTRIBUTIONS; UNFUNDED LIABILITY 1/23 from Senate fin do pass. 

ASRS; INELIGIBLE CONTRIBUTIONS; UNFUNDED LIABILITY 1/23 Senate fin do pass; report awaited. 

ASRS; INELIGIBLE CONTRIBUTIONS; UNFUNDED LIABILITY 1/14 referred to Senate fin. 

S1017: ASRS; PAYING INTEREST; AUTHORIZATION 

The Arizona State Retirement System is prohibited from paying interest on any
amount paid to a member, an alternate payee or an employer unless specifically
authorized by statute.
First sponsor: Sen. Livingston (R - Dist 22) 

 

S1017 Daily History  Date Action

ASRS; PAYING INTEREST; AUTHORIZATION 1/29 from Senate rules okay. 

ASRS; PAYING INTEREST; AUTHORIZATION 1/24 from Senate fin with amend #4006. 

ASRS; PAYING INTEREST; AUTHORIZATION 1/23 Senate fin amended; report awaited. 

ASRS; PAYING INTEREST; AUTHORIZATION 1/14 referred to Senate fin. 

S1018: ASRS; COMPENSATION; DEFINITION 

For members of the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS) whose membership
began on or after January 1, 2020, the definition of "compensation" for the purpose of
calculating retirement benefits is modified to mean only gross wages paid to the
member by the employer for services rendered during the period considered as
credited service, with a list of specified exclusions.
First sponsor: Sen. Livingston (R - Dist 22) 

 

S1018 Daily History  Date Action

ASRS; COMPENSATION; DEFINITION 1/29 to Senate consent calendar. From Senate rules okay. 

ASRS; COMPENSATION; DEFINITION 1/23 from Senate fin do pass. 

ASRS; COMPENSATION; DEFINITION 1/23 Senate fin do pass; report awaited. 

ASRS; COMPENSATION; DEFINITION 1/14 referred to Senate fin. 

(No Category Assigned)

Bill Summaries

H2002: EDUCATORS; ETHICS; PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY 

The State Board of Education is required to adopt rules to provide for an educator code
of ethics and professional responsibility. Requirements for the rules are specified,
including a list of prohibited acts by teachers during class time in a public educational
institutions, required training for teachers regarding the rules, and penalties for
violations.
First sponsor: Rep. Finchem (R - Dist 11) 

 



H2002 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

H2003: UNIVERSITY EMPLOYEES; TENURE; RETIREMENT ELIGIBILITY 

The personnel policies adopted by the Board of Regents must prohibit university
employees from obtaining tenure or continued status as a tenured employee after the
employee reaches the normal retirement date under the Arizona State Retirement
System.
First sponsor: Rep. Finchem (R - Dist 11) 

 

H2003 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

H2026: PUBLIC RESOURCES; INFLUENCING ELECTIONS; PENALTIES 

Any resident of a jurisdiction that is alleged to have used county, municipal, school
district or charter school resources or employees to influence elections is authorized to
initiate a suit in the superior court for the purpose of enforcing compliance. Civil
penalties paid for violations must be paid to the Attorney General or County Attorney in
actions filed by those officers, and must be paid to the resident in an action filed by a
resident.
First sponsor: Rep. Kavanagh (R - Dist 23) 

 

H2026 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

H2031: APPRENTICESHIPS; LICENSURE; LICENSING AUTHORITIES 

Unless other cause for denial of a license exists, a "licensing authority" (defined) is
required to grant a license to an applicant who possess a high school or general
equivalency diploma, completes an "apprenticeship" (defined) program that requires the
applicant to learn the skills and knowledge relevant to the profession under the direct
supervision and instruction of a licensed professional, passes any required licensing
examination, and pays the required fees. Each licensing authority is required to
determine the duration of an apprenticeship for that profession. Each licensing authority
is required to require an apprentice to register and establish fees for registration. An
apprentice is authorized to engage in acts that require licensure under the direct
supervision and instruction of a license professional, except that the licensing authority
may set limits on the apprentice's practice as are reasonably necessary to protect public
health, safety and welfare. Does not require licensing authorities to establish an
apprenticeship program.
First sponsor: Rep. Lawrence (R - Dist 23) 

 

H2031 Daily History  Date Action

APPRENTICESHIPS; LICENSURE; LICENSING AUTHORITIES 1/15 referred to House reg affairs. 

H2036: DUAL ENROLLMENT; REPORTED INFORMATION; DATE 

 



The due date for community college districts to annually report to the Joint Legislative
Budget Committee exceptions to the requirement for dual enrollment students to be
high school juniors or seniors and the justification for the exceptions is moved to
December 1, from October 1.
First sponsor: Rep. Cook (R - Dist 8) 

 

H2036 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

H2040: COMMUNITY COLLEGES; BACCALAUREATE DEGREES 

Community college districts are authorized to offer four-year baccalaureate degrees
that are accredited by a regional accreditation agency approved by the U.S.
Department of Education.
First sponsor: Rep. Fillmore (R - Dist 16) 

 

H2040 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

H2044: STATEWIDE ASSESSMENT; COLLEGE PLACEMENT EXAMS 

Beginning in the 2019-20 school year, the statewide assessment to measure student
achievement is required to consist of at least three nationally recognized college
entrance examinations selected by the State Board of Education.
First sponsor: Rep. Fillmore (R - Dist 16) 

 

H2044 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

H2078: LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL 

For the purpose of local government investment pools, "political subdivision" is defined
as any governmental entity operating under the authority of this state, including a
city, town, county, school district or community college district or any other entity
organized under state law.
First sponsor: Rep. Kavanagh (R - Dist 23) 

 

H2078 Daily History  Date Action

LOCAL GOVERNMENT INVESTMENT POOL 1/30 referred to House gov. 

H2082: JUNIOR RESERVE OFFICER TRAINING; CTE 

A school district, charter school or Career Technical Education District (CTED) that offers
a Junior Reserve Officer Training Corps (JROTC) program is required to classify the
program as a career technical education course or program. Appropriates $500,000
from the general fund in FY2019-20 to the Department of Education for distribution on a
prorated per student basis to CTEDs and school districts that offer a JROTC program.
First sponsor: Rep. Blackman (R - Dist 6) 
Others: Rep. Carroll (R - Dist 22), Rep. A. Hernandez (D - Dist 3), Rep. Lieberman (D - Dist 28) 

 

H2082 Daily History  Date Action

JUNIOR RESERVE OFFICER TRAINING; CTE 1/24 referred to House mil-vet, educ. 



H2106: SCHOOLS; PROHIBITED COURSES; REPEAL 

Repeals statute prohibiting school districts or charter schools from offering classes that
promote the overthrow of the U.S. government, promote resentment toward a race or
class of people, are designed primarily for students of a particular ethnic group or
advocate ethnic solidarity.
First sponsor: Rep. Espinoza (D - Dist 19) 
Others: Rep. Andrade (D - Dist 29), Rep. Blanc (D - Dist 26), Rep. Cano (D - Dist 3), Rep. Fernandez (D - Dist
4), Rep. Friese (D - Dist 9), Rep. Gabaldon (D - Dist 2), Rep. A. Hernandez (D - Dist 3), Rep. Jermaine (D - Dist
18), Rep. Longdon (D - Dist 24), Rep. Meza (D - Dist 30), Rep. Rodriguez (D - Dist 27), Rep. Sierra (D - Dist 19) 

 

H2106 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

H2176: COLLEGE CREDIT BY EXAMINATION; PAYMENTS 

The monies received by school districts and charter schools as incentive bonuses under
the College Credit by Examination Incentive Program that must be distributed to the
associated classroom teacher may be distributed to other teachers of relevant subjects
who instructed that student as identified by the school principal. Bonus monies must be
distributed to school by the Department of Education by March 1 of each year, and must
be provided to the teacher no later than 30 days after the end of the school year. The
list of authorized uses for remaining bonus monies after distribution to teachers is
expanded to include reimbursement of examination fees.
First sponsor: Rep. Weninger (R - Dist 17) 

 

H2176 Daily History  Date Action

COLLEGE CREDIT BY EXAMINATION; PAYMENTS 1/29 from House educ do pass. 

COLLEGE CREDIT BY EXAMINATION; PAYMENTS 1/28 House educ do pass; report awaited. 

COLLEGE CREDIT BY EXAMINATION; PAYMENTS 1/22 referred to House educ. 

H2193: HIGH SCHOOLS; COLLEGE ACCESSIBILITY AWARENESS 

Each high school is required to communicate information to students enrolled at that
school to increase college accessibility awareness. Each report card issued to students
in grades 9 through 12 is required to include a checklist that indicates that student's
progress toward completing the admissions requirements for universities under the
jurisdiction of the Arizona Board of Regents.
First sponsor: Rep. Bolding (D - Dist 27) 

 

H2193 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

H2241: JLAC; POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS; INVESTIGATION 

Each political subdivision and person that files forms and reports using the uniform
expenditure reporting system is required to comply with the uniform expenditure
reporting system, instructions and forms prescribed by the Auditor General. The Auditor
General is authorized to notify the Joint Legislative Audit Committee (JLAC) and the
Attorney General if any political subdivision or person does not comply, and JLAC is
required to request that the Attorney General investigate any official action that is
adopted or taken by the governing body of a county or municipality that violates uniform
expenditure reporting requirements. The Attorney General is authorized to apply for
injunctive relief in any court of competent jurisdiction to enjoin any political subdivision
or person from violating uniform expenditure reporting requirements.
First sponsor: Rep. Kern (R - Dist 20) 

 



First sponsor: Rep. Kern (R - Dist 20) 

H2241 Daily History  Date Action

JLAC; POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS; INVESTIGATION 1/28 referred to House gov. 

H2243: POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS; JLAC; SHARED REVENUES 

Each political subdivision and person that files forms and reports using the uniform
expenditure reporting system is required to comply with the uniform expenditure
reporting system, instructions and forms prescribed by the Auditor General. The Auditor
General is authorized to notify the Joint Legislative Audit Committee (JLAC) and the
Attorney General if any political subdivision or person does not comply, and JLAC is
required to notify a county or municipality that it is not in compliance and that it has 30
days to comply. If JLAC determines that the county or municipality has failed to comply
within 30 days, JLAC is required to notify the State Treasurer, who is required to withhold
and redistribute state shared monies from the county or municipality until the county or
municipality complies. The Attorney General is authorized to apply for injunctive relief in
any court of competent jurisdiction to enjoin any political subdivision or person from
violating uniform expenditure reporting requirements.
First sponsor: Rep. Kern (R - Dist 20) 

 

H2243 Daily History  Date Action

POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS; JLAC; SHARED REVENUES 1/28 referred to House gov. 

H2257: CIVIL LIABILITY; GUN-FREE ZONES 

A person, organization or entity or an agency, commission, board or political subdivision
of the state that establishes a "gun-free zone" (defined) is liable for any damages
claimed by a person who was harmed by criminal conduct in the gun-free zone if a
reasonable person would believe that possession of a firearm could have helped the
person defend against the criminal conduct. The court is authorized to award treble
damages to the person who was harmed if the criminal conduct is found to be a terrorist
attack or the person harmed is disabled, a member of a minority group, under 16 years
of age or over 65 years of age at the time of the criminal conduct.
First sponsor: Rep. Thorpe (R - Dist 6) 

 

H2257 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

H2268: APPROP; COMMUNITY COLLEGES 

Makes supplemental appropriations of $20.9 million from the general fund in FY2019-20
to community college districts (CCDs) for specified purposes: $7.1 million to Pima
County CCD, $8.8 million to Maricopa County CCD, and $500,000 each to Cochise
County CCD, Coconino County CCD, Gila County CCD, Graham County CCD, Mohave
County CCD, Navajo County CCD, Pinal County CCD, Santa Cruz County CCD, Yavapai
County CCD, and Yuma/La Paz County CCD.
First sponsor: Rep. Cano (D - Dist 3) 
Others: Rep. Andrade (D - Dist 29), Rep. Bolding (D - Dist 27), Rep. Chavez (D - Dist 29), Rep. DeGrazia (D - Dist
10), Rep. Engel (D - Dist 10), Rep. Espinoza (D - Dist 19), Rep. Gabaldon (D - Dist 2), Rep. Jermaine (D - Dist
18), Rep. Powers Hannley (D - Dist 9), Rep. Rodriguez (D - Dist 27), Rep. Salman (D - Dist 26), Rep. Sierra (D -
Dist 19), Rep. Terán (D - Dist 30), Rep. Tsosie (D - Dist 7) 

 

H2268 Daily History  Date Action

APPROP; COMMUNITY COLLEGES 1/30 referred to House educ, appro. 

H2291: APPROPRIATION; SANTA CRUZ COMMUNITY COLLEGE 



Appropriates $250,000 from the general fund in FY2019-20 to the the Santa Cruz
County Provisional Community College District for workforce development aid.
First sponsor: Rep. Gabaldon (D - Dist 2) 
Others: Rep. Andrade (D - Dist 29), Rep. Blanc (D - Dist 26), Rep. Chavez (D - Dist 29), Rep. Espinoza (D - Dist
19), Rep. Friese (D - Dist 9), Sen. Gonzales (D - Dist 3), Rep. Longdon (D - Dist 24), Rep. Pawlik (D - Dist 17), 
Rep. Rodriguez (D - Dist 27), Rep. Salman (D - Dist 26), Rep. Teller (D - Dist 7), Rep. Terán (D - Dist 30) 

 

H2291 Daily History  Date Action

APPROPRIATION; SANTA CRUZ COMMUNITY COLLEGE 1/28 referred to House appro. 

H2293: APPROPRIATION; ARIZONA TEACHER ACADEMY 

Appropriates $5.5 million from the general fund in FY2019-20 to the Arizona Board
of Regents for the operation of the Arizona Teacher Academy.
First sponsor: Rep. Fernandez (D - Dist 4) 
Others: Rep. Andrade (D - Dist 29), Rep. Friese (D - Dist 9), Rep. Pawlik (D - Dist 17), Rep. Salman (D -
Dist 26), Rep. Sierra (D - Dist 19) 

 

H2293 Daily History  Date Action

APPROPRIATION; ARIZONA TEACHER ACADEMY 1/28 referred to House educ, appro. 

H2303: COMPUTER SCIENCE; CREDIT; MATHEMATICS; SCIENCE 

School district governing boards are authorized to approve a rigorous computer science
course that would fulfill either a mathematics or science course required for graduation
from high school, instead of that would fulfill a mathematics course only. The university
admission qualifications prescribed by the Arizona Board of Regents must require each
university to count a computer science course that is approved by a school board as a
mathematics or science course as designated by the school board.
First sponsor: Rep. Udall (R - Dist 25) 

 

H2303 Daily History  Date Action

COMPUTER SCIENCE; CREDIT; MATHEMATICS; SCIENCE 1/30 referred to House educ. 

H2335: STUDENT LOAN SERVICERS; LICENSURE 

Adds a chapter to Title 6 (Banks & Financial Institutions) requiring a person acting as a
"student loan servicer" (defined) to obtain a license from the Superintendent of Financial
Institutions. Some exceptions. Establishes license application requirements and fees.
Student loan servicer licenses expire on September 30 of each odd-numbered year and
may be biannually renewed. Establishes requirements and prohibited practices for
licensees as well as penalties for violations. Establishes a student loan ombudsman in the
Department of Financial Institutions to attempt to resolve complaints from student loan
borrowers and establish a student loan borrower education course by October 1, 2019.
Due to a potential increase in state revenue, this legislation requires the affirmative vote
of at least 2/3 of the members of each house of the Legislature for passage, and
becomes effective on signature of the Governor.
First sponsor: Rep. Salman (D - Dist 26) 
Others: Rep. Andrade (D - Dist 29), Rep. Bolding (D - Dist 27), Sen. Bowie (D - Dist 18), Rep. Butler (D - Dist 28), 
Rep. Engel (D - Dist 10), Rep. Epstein (D - Dist 18), Rep. Fernandez (D - Dist 4), Rep. Gabaldon (D - Dist 2), Rep. A.
Hernandez (D - Dist 3), Sen. Mendez (D - Dist 26), Rep. Powers Hannley (D - Dist 9), Rep. Rodriguez (D - Dist 27), 
Rep. Sierra (D - Dist 19), Rep. Teller (D - Dist 7), Rep. Tsosie (D - Dist 7) 

 

H2335 Daily History  Date Action

STUDENT LOAN SERVICERS; LICENSURE 1/30 referred to House reg affairs, appro. 

H2348: COLLEGE CREDIT BY EXAMINATION; REPEAL 



Repeals the College Credit by Examination Incentive Program. Appropriates $5
million from the general fund in FY2019-20 to the Arizona Board of Regents to fund
the Arizona Teacher Academy.
First sponsor: Rep. Butler (D - Dist 28) 
Others: Rep. Blanc (D - Dist 26), Rep. Bolding (D - Dist 27) 

 

H2348 Daily History  Date Action

COLLEGE CREDIT BY EXAMINATION; REPEAL 1/29 referred to House educ, appro. 

H2354: SCHOOLS; FINANCIAL LITERACY; MATHEMATICS CREDIT 

School district governing boards are authorized to approve a financial literacy
course that would fulfill a mathematics course required for high school graduation.
First sponsor: Rep. Bowers (R - Dist 25) 

 

H2354 Daily History  Date Action

SCHOOLS; FINANCIAL LITERACY; MATHEMATICS CREDIT 1/29 referred to House educ. 

H2364: SCHOOL SUPPLIES GRANTS PILOT PROGRAM 

The Department of Education is required to conduct a one-year teacher school supplies
grants pilot program to provide grants of up to $200 for participating teachers. The Dept
is required to establish application procedures for teachers wishing to participate, and
must limit the number of teachers selected to ensure that the cost does not exceed the
appropriations. The Dept is required to submit a report on the pilot program to the
Governor, the Superintendent of Public Instruction and the Legislature by December 31,
2020. The pilot program self-repeals February 16, 2021. Appropriates $12 million from
the general fund in FY2019-20 to the Dept for the pilot program.
First sponsor: Rep. Toma (R - Dist 22) 
Others: Rep. Engel (D - Dist 10), Rep. Rodriguez (D - Dist 27) 

 

H2364 Daily History  Date Action

SCHOOL SUPPLIES GRANTS PILOT PROGRAM 1/30 referred to House educ, appro. 

H2417: APPROPRIATIONS; COMMUNITY COLLEGES; PIMA; MARICOPA 

Appropriates the following amounts from the general fund in FY2019-20 to Pima County
Community College District: $6.49 million for operating state aid, and $600,000 for
science, technology, engineering and mathematics and workforce programs state aid.
Appropriates the following amounts from the general fund in FY2019-20 to Maricopa
County Community College District: $7.41 million for operating state aid, and $1.4
million for science, technology, engineering and mathematics and workforce programs
state aid.
First sponsor: Rep. Powers Hannley (D - Dist 9) 
Others: Rep. Andrade (D - Dist 29), Rep. Blanc (D - Dist 26), Rep. Cano (D - Dist 3), Rep. Engel (D - Dist 10), Rep.
Epstein (D - Dist 18), Rep. Gabaldon (D - Dist 2), Sen. Gonzales (D - Dist 3), Rep. Peten (D - Dist 4), Rep.
Rodriguez (D - Dist 27), Rep. Salman (D - Dist 26), Rep. Teller (D - Dist 7), Rep. Terán (D - Dist 30) 

 

H2417 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

H2427: POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION; RESIDENTS; FINANCIAL AID 

 



The Commission for Postsecondary Education is required to establish the Arizona Higher
Education Financial Aid Program, and to establish application, evaluation and approval
procedures and criteria for persons to apply to participate in the Program. Beginning July
1, 2020, each county treasurer is required to hold all property taxes collected in an
interest-bearing account for 15 calendar days, and to transfer the total amount of
interest earned annually to the State Treasurer for deposit in the Arizona Higher
Education Financial Aid Program Fund. Beginning in 2024, the State Treasurer is required
to annually transfer monies in the Fund to the Commission for deposit in the newly
established Arizona Higher Education Financial Aid Program Distribution Fund. the
Commission is required to distribute monies in the Distribution Fund to qualifying
students to cover the full amount of each student's tuition and fees at the university or
community college where the student is enrolled. Establishes requirements for a person
to qualify for distributions from the Distribution Fund. The Program terminates on July 1,
2029.
First sponsor: Rep. Sierra (D - Dist 19) 
Others: Rep. Blanc (D - Dist 26), Rep. Bolding (D - Dist 27), Sen. Bowie (D - Dist 18), Rep. Cano (D - Dist 3), Rep.
Chavez (D - Dist 29), Rep. Espinoza (D - Dist 19), Rep. Friese (D - Dist 9), Rep. A. Hernandez (D - Dist 3), Rep.
Jermaine (D - Dist 18), Sen. Mendez (D - Dist 26), Rep. Pawlik (D - Dist 17), Rep. Rodriguez (D - Dist 27), Rep.
Salman (D - Dist 26), Rep. Teller (D - Dist 7), Rep. Terán (D - Dist 30), Rep. Toma (R - Dist 22) 

 

H2427 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

H2447: INCOME TAX CREDIT; COMMUNITY COLLEGES 

An individual income tax credit is established for cash contributions made by a taxpayer
during the taxable year to a community college district located in Arizona for the
purpose of providing financial assistance to students with verifiable financial need. The
amount of the credit is $250 for a single individual or head of household, or $500 for a
married couple filing jointly. If the allowable amount of the credit exceeds taxes due, the
unused amount may be carried forward for up to five consecutive taxable years. By
February 28 of each year, a community college district that receives cash contributions is
required to report specified information to the Department of Revenue.
First sponsor: Rep. Griffin (R - Dist 14) 

 

H2447 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

H2511: STUDENT LOAN OMBUDSMAN; LOAN SERVICERS 

Adds a chapter to Title 6 (Banks & Financial Institutions) requiring a person acting as a
"student loan servicer" (defined) to obtain a license from the Superintendent of Financial
Institutions. Some exceptions. Establishes license application requirements and fees.
Student loan servicer licenses expire on September 30 of each odd-numbered year and
may be biannually renewed. Establishes requirements and prohibited practices for
licensees as well as penalties for violations. The Superintendent is required to designate a
Student Loan Ombudsman within the Department of Financial Institutions to provide
timely assistance to any student loan borrower. Duties of the Ombudsman are
established, including to establish a student loan borrower education course by October
1, 2022. Appropriates $500,000 from the general fund in FY2019-20 to the Dept for
implementation. Due to a potential increase in state revenue, this legislation requires the
affirmative vote of at least 2/3 of the members of each house of the Legislature for
passage, and becomes effective on signature of the Governor.
First sponsor: Rep. A. Hernandez (D - Dist 3) 
Others: Rep. Chavez (D - Dist 29), Rep. Epstein (D - Dist 18), Rep. D. Hernandez (D - Dist 2), Sen. Mendez (D - Dist
26), Sen. Navarrete (D - Dist 30), Rep. Rodriguez (D - Dist 27), Rep. Salman (D - Dist 26), Rep. Sierra (D - Dist 19), 
Rep. Teller (D - Dist 7), Rep. Tsosie (D - Dist 7) 

 

H2511 Daily History  Date Action

STUDENT LOAN OMBUDSMAN; LOAN SERVICERS 1/30 referred to House reg affairs, appro. 



S1014: ELL; INSTRUCTION; BUDGETING 

The State Board of Education is required to adopt and approve research-based models of
structured English immersion for school districts and charter schools to use, and
minimum amounts of English language that must be included in the models are specified.
School districts and charter schools are authorized to submit models of structured
English immersion and alternative English instruction to the Board for approval. The
Board is required to establish a framework for evaluating the models and ensure that
approved models meet a list of specified criteria. Repeals the requirement for students
previously classified as an English language learner within the last two years to be
annually tested for English language proficiency. Modifies reporting requirements related
to English immersion programs.
First sponsor: Sen. Boyer (R - Dist 20) 
Others: Sen. S. Allen (R - Dist 6), Sen. Alston (D - Dist 24), Rep. Barto (R - Dist 15), Rep. Bolding (D - Dist 27), 
Sen. Brophy McGee (R - Dist 28), Sen. Carter (R - Dist 15), Rep. Cobb (R - Dist 5), Rep. Dunn (R - Dist 13), Sen.
Gray (R - Dist 21), Sen. Kerr (R - Dist 13), Sen. Navarrete (D - Dist 30), Sen. Rios (D - Dist 27) 

 

S1014 Daily History  Date Action

ELL; INSTRUCTION; BUDGETING 1/29 from Senate rules okay. 

ELL; INSTRUCTION; BUDGETING 1/17 from Senate educ with amend #4001. 

ELL; INSTRUCTION; BUDGETING 1/15 Senate educ amended; report awaited. 

ELL; INSTRUCTION; BUDGETING 1/14 referred to Senate educ. 

S1019: APPROPRIATION; COMMISSION FOR POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION 

Appropriates $25,200 from the general fund in FY2019-20 to the Commission for
Postsecondary Education to migrate the Commission's information technology and
telephone services.
First sponsor: Sen. S. Allen (R - Dist 6) 

 

S1019 Daily History  Date Action

APPROPRIATION; COMMISSION FOR POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION 1/28 from Senate higher ed-work dev do pass. 

APPROPRIATION; COMMISSION FOR POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION 1/24 Senate higher ed-work dev do pass; report
awaited. 

APPROPRIATION; COMMISSION FOR POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION 1/14 referred to Senate higher ed-work dev, 
appro. 

S1021: COMMISSION FOR POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION; CONTINUATION 

The statutory life of the Commission for Postsecondary Education is extended
eight years to July 1, 2027. Retroactive to July 1, 2019.
First sponsor: Sen. S. Allen (R - Dist 6) 

 

S1021 Daily History  Date Action

COMMISSION FOR POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION; CONTINUATION 1/28 from Senate higher ed-work dev do pass. 

COMMISSION FOR POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION; CONTINUATION 1/24 Senate higher ed-work dev do pass; report
awaited. 

COMMISSION FOR POSTSECONDARY EDUCATION; CONTINUATION 1/14 referred to Senate higher ed-work dev. 

S1025: VOCATIONAL AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION; EVALUATION 

School district boards are required to provide for the evaluation of vocational and
technical education programs annually, instead of once every five years.
First sponsor: Sen. Leach (R - Dist 11) 

 

S1025 Daily History  Date Action



VOCATIONAL AND TECHNICAL EDUCATION; EVALUATION 1/14 referred to Senate educ. 

S1042: TECH CORRECTION; VOCATIONAL; TECHNICAL EDUCATION 

Minor change in Title 15 (Education) related to evaluation of vocational and
technical education programs. Apparent striker bus.
First sponsor: Sen. Brophy McGee (R - Dist 28) 

 

S1042 Daily History  Date Action

TECH CORRECTION; VOCATIONAL; TECHNICAL EDUCATION 1/14 referred to Senate rules only. 

S1049: GPLET; DEFINITIONS 

Beginning January 1, 2020, a school district, community college district and the Arizona
Board of Regents are added to the definition of "government lessor" for the purpose of
government property lease excise tax (GPLET). The definition of "government property
improvement" for GPLET does not include a building that is used predominantly for an
academic purpose or student housing or that is located in an area designated as a
research park.
First sponsor: Sen. Leach (R - Dist 11) 

 

S1049 Daily
History  

Date Action

GPLET; DEFINITIONS 1/15 referred to Senate fin. 

S1106: APPROPRIATION; STEM INTERNSHIPS 

Appropriates $2 million from the general fund in FY2019-20 to the Arizona Commerce
Authority for matching monies for educational stipends for high school, college and
university students and for teachers of kindergarten programs and any of grades one
through twelve in this state who participate in "STEM" (defined) internships. Provides
for allocation of the appropriation and establishes maximum amounts for stipends.
Requires the Authority to establish guidelines and procedures for awarding the stipends.
First sponsor: Sen. Carter (R - Dist 15) 
Others: Sen. Brophy McGee (R - Dist 28), Rep. Lawrence (R - Dist 23) 

 

S1106 Daily History  Date Action

APPROPRIATION; STEM INTERNSHIPS 1/22 referred to Senate educ, appro. 

S1129: POSTSECONDARY INSTITUTIONS; SEXUAL CONSENT POLICIES 

Each public and private college, university and community college in Arizona is
required to adopt policies to define consent to sexual activity that contain specified
provisions.
First sponsor: Sen. Mendez (D - Dist 26) 
Others: Sen. Quezada (D - Dist 29), Rep. Salman (D - Dist 26) 

 

S1129 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

S1177: TECH CORRECTION; COMMUNITY COLLEGES; BENEFITS 

 



Minor change in Title 15 (Education) related to community colleges. Apparent
striker bus.
First sponsor: Sen. S. Allen (R - Dist 6) 

 

S1177 Daily History  Date Action

TECH CORRECTION; COMMUNITY COLLEGES; BENEFITS 1/24 referred to Senate rules only. 

S1195: PUBLIC FACILITIES; ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES 

By July 1, 2024, all state agencies, universities, school districts, and community college
districts must purchase at least 10 percent of their energy from "green sources"
(defined), and all existing state buildings that are more than 50,000 square feet must
conform to the leadership in energy and environmental design (LEED) existing building
standards. All new or leased state buildings must conform to the LEED rating system. The
Department of Administration, Department of Transportation, and Arizona Board of
Regents must reduce energy use in public buildings they administer by 20 percent per
square foot by July 1, 2026, using FY2001-2002 as the baseline year. Establishes the
Energy & Water Efficiency Fund for public facilities to be administered by the Arizona
Commerce Authority. The Fund will provide loans to finance energy and water efficiency
measures for public facilities and terminates on July 1, 2029. By December 31, 2020,
school districts and charter schools are required to adopt green cleaning policies and
purchase and use environmentally sensitive cleaning products. Also establishes an
11-member Green Public Schools Task Force to recommend a model green cleaning
policy for public schools. The Task Force must submit a report to the Governor and the
Legislature by November 1, 2020 and self-repeals January 1, 2021.
First sponsor: Sen. Mendez (D - Dist 26) 
Others: Sen. Dalessandro (D - Dist 2), Rep. Longdon (D - Dist 24), Sen. Peshlakai (D - Dist 7), Sen. Rios (D - Dist
27), Rep. Rodriguez (D - Dist 27), Rep. Salman (D - Dist 26) 

 

S1195 Daily History  Date Action

PUBLIC FACILITIES; ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES 1/28 referred to Senate nat res-energy, educ. 

S1238: SCHOOLS; GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS; ADJUSTMENT 

The State Board of Education is required to adjust the minimum number of credits
necessary for high school graduation for a student who is in grades 9 through 12 and
who is homeless, is a former dependent child or foster child or has been placed in
out-of-home placement, or is a delinquent juvenile or an incorrigible child who has been
ordered by a court to the Department of Juvenile Corrections, a probation department or
private agency, or to receive residential treatment services. A student who qualifies for
an adjustment is required to take all required statewide assessments or an achievement
assessment from the menu of assessments, and is required to correctly answer at least
60 of the 100 questions on a civics test unless otherwise exempt. School districts and
charter schools are required to establish a process for requesting qualification for an
adjustment, and to identify and inform students who may qualify.
First sponsor: Sen. Brophy McGee (R - Dist 28) 

 

S1238 Daily History  Date Action

SCHOOLS; GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS; ADJUSTMENT 1/29 referred to Senate educ. 

S1266: APPROP; DINÉ COLLEGE 

Appropriates $2 million from the general fund in FY2019-20 to the Governor's Office on
Tribal Relations for distribution to the Diné College Board of Regents for the remedial
education of students who graduated from a public high school in Arizona and are
enrolled in classes conducted at a Diné College campus in Arizona.
First sponsor: Sen. Peshlakai (D - Dist 7) 
Others: Sen. Alston (D - Dist 24), Sen. Bradley (D - Dist 10), Sen. Contreras (D - Dist 19), Sen. Dalessandro (D -
Dist 2), Sen. Gonzales (D - Dist 3), Sen. Mendez (D - Dist 26), Sen. Navarrete (D - Dist 30), Sen. Otondo (D -
Dist 4), Sen. Quezada (D - Dist 29), Sen. Rios (D - Dist 27), Sen. Steele (D - Dist 9), Rep. Teller (D - Dist 7), Rep.

 



Dist 4), Sen. Quezada (D - Dist 29), Sen. Rios (D - Dist 27), Sen. Steele (D - Dist 9), Rep. Teller (D - Dist 7), Rep.
Tsosie (D - Dist 7) 

S1266 Daily History  Date Action

APPROP; DINÉ COLLEGE 1/30 referred to Senate higher ed-work dev, appro. 

S1268: TPT; DISTRIBUTION; TRIBAL COLLEGE COMPACT 

The maximum amount of transaction privilege tax (TPT) revenue received from sources
located on an Indian Reservation that may be distributed to a technical university
located on an Indian Reservation is temporarily increased to $1.875 million or 15.7
percent of TPT revenues from sources located on an Indian Reservation, whichever is
less, for FY2019-20 through FY2026-27, from $875,000 or 5 percent of TPT revenues
from sources located on an Indian Reservation, whichever is less.
First sponsor: Sen. Peshlakai (D - Dist 7) 
Others: Sen. Alston (D - Dist 24), Sen. Bradley (D - Dist 10), Sen. Contreras (D - Dist 19), Sen. Dalessandro (D -
Dist 2), Sen. Gonzales (D - Dist 3), Sen. Mendez (D - Dist 26), Sen. Navarrete (D - Dist 30), Sen. Otondo (D - Dist
4), Sen. Quezada (D - Dist 29), Sen. Rios (D - Dist 27), Sen. Steele (D - Dist 9), Rep. Teller (D - Dist 7), Rep.
Tsosie (D - Dist 7) 

 

S1268 Daily History  Date Action

TPT; DISTRIBUTION; TRIBAL COLLEGE COMPACT 1/30 referred to Senate fin, appro. 

S1340: ABOR; REGENTS SCHOLARSHIPS; REPORT 

By December 15, 2019, the Arizona Board of Regents is required to submit a report
to the Governor and the Legislature on the history of regents scholarships.
Information that must be included in the report is listed. Self-repeals July 1, 2020.
First sponsor: Sen. Carter (R - Dist 15) 

 

S1340 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 

S1349: FAMILY COLLEGE SAVINGS PROGRAM; TREASURER 

The Family College Savings Program Oversight Commission and responsbility for the
Family College Savings Program are moved to the Office of the State Treasurer, from the
Commission for Postsecondary Education. For the purpose of the Program, the definition
of "qualified higher education expenses" is expanded to include tuition to enroll or attend
an elementary or secondary public, private or religious school pursuant to the Internal
Revenue Code, and to include expenses to purchase a computer, peripheral equipment,
computer software or internet access and related services if the computer equipment,
software or services are to be used primarily by the beneficiary during the years the
beneficiary is enrolled at an eligible educational institution and if these expenses meet
the definition of qualified higher education expenses in the Internal Revenue Code.
First sponsor: Sen. Livingston (R - Dist 22) 

 

S1349 Daily History  Date Action

No actions posted for this bill within the requested time
frame. 
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December 2018 General Fund collections 
totaled $968.9 million, an amount which was 
(4.7)% below December 2017. The decline in 
revenues was expected, as the state set a 
record for December revenues last year due 
to a significant one-time surge in Individual 
Income Tax (IIT) payments.  
 
While we expected IIT payments to decline 
in December 2018, the fall was greater than 
expected. Corporate Income and Sales Tax 
collections, however, both grew more 
quickly than forecasted.  Overall, there was 
a $24.7 million forecast gain for the month.   
  
Corporate Income Tax (CIT) collections 
continued their exceptional growth for the 
year, coming in at $42.7 million above 
forecast during December. Year-to-date, CIT 
revenues have growth by 85.7% and are 
$109.6 million above forecast.  One potential 
reason is the shifting of income by 
corporations into Tax Year 2018 (Fiscal Year 
2019). The lower TY 2018 federal corporate 
tax rate enacted as part of the Tax Cuts and 
Jobs Act (TCJA) would encourage such a 
shift.   
 
Reflecting November business activity, 
December Sales Tax collections grew by 
7.8% and were $17.5 million above forecast. 
The category has continued to see strong 
performance in the Retail and Contracting 
subcategories, along with the Restaurant/Bar 
subcategory.  

The state's third largest revenue category, the 
Insurance Premium Tax, was $11.1 million above 
forecast for the month. 
 
All these gains were partially offset by a 
significant decline in Individual Income Tax (IIT) 
collections, which fell by (23.0)% overall and 
were $(39.9) million below forecast. As noted 
above, IIT collections were expected to drop 
given the record performance of December 
2017 – however, these declines significantly 
exceeded the enacted forecast. 
 
The December 2017 IIT gains may have also 
been related to TCJA.  Wealthy taxpayers 
would have been incentivized to increase their 
state Individual Income Tax payments since 
TCJA started to cap the federal deduction for 
state and local taxes at $10,000 starting in 
January 2018.  As evidence, IIT payments grew 
from $101 million in December 2016 to $217 
million in December 2017.  
 
Since the SALT cap shift was one-time, 
December 2018 payments were expected to 
fall back close to the 2016 level. At $51 million, 
however, the December 2018 payments were 
substantially lower than 2016.   
 
In some years, December payment results are 
misleading as taxpayers have until January 15 
to make their estimated payments.   As a result, 
January gains can offset December losses 
solely as a timing issue. The January month-to- 
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Summary (Continued) 
date data, however, is not encouraging.  Through 
January 18, payments are significantly below the level 
seen in prior years.  

Year-to-Date Results 

Year-to-date, excluding Urban Revenue Sharing and 
fund transfers, FY 2019 General Fund revenues are 6.8% 
above the prior year and are $200.1 million above 
forecast. 

In comparison to December revenue collections of 
$968.9 million, December 2018 spending was $680.5 
million, which is an increase of $81.9 million above the 
prior year.  

Fiscal year-to-date, General Fund revenues of $5.28 
billion have been offset by $6.11 billion of expenditures. 

The operating fund balance consists of the General 
Fund and certain dedicated funds.  The operating 
balance as of mid-January 2019 is $1.94 billion.   

In addition, the state Budget Stabilization Fund (BSF) has 
a balance of $438.2 million. This amount is lower than the 
typical balance (approximately $460 million), due to the 
Department of Public Safety's usage of BSF bridge loan 
authority. This bridge loan was authorized by the FY 2019 
budget. 

JLBC Baseline Summary 
On January 18, JLBC Staff released its FY 2020 
Baseline budget, including the following 
documents: 

• FY 2020 Baseline – Includes a summary
overview and individual agency budget
narratives.

• FY 2020 Baseline Presentation – A slideshow
summarizing the main highlights of the FY 2020
Baseline.

The Baseline reflects a consensus economic 
forecast and statutory funding formula 
requirements. The following summarizes the FY 2020 
Baseline: 

• For FY 2020, projected General Fund revenues
are $12.12 billion and projected spending is
$10.78 billion, leading to an estimated FY 2020
cash balance of $1.34 billion.

• That amount, however, cannot be entirely
designated for permanent initiatives in FY 2020
(such as tax reductions or spending increases).

• Under the 3-year budget projections, the state
can only commit approximately $200+ million
in FY 2020 for permanent initiatives and still
retain a long term structural balance through
FY 2022.

• The FY 2020 ending balance projection
excludes the state's Budget Stabilization Fund.

Table 1 
General Fund Revenues ($ in Millions) 

FY 2019 
Collections 

Difference From 
Budget Forecast 

Difference 
From FY 2018 

December $     968.9  $  24.7   $     (47.8) 
Year-to-Date $  5,275.8 $   200.1 $    464.4 

Sales Tax collections of $418.7 million were 7.8% 
above December of last year and $17.5 million above 
the forecast for the month.  December tax collections 
reflect sales activity in November.  Year-to-date, sales 
tax collections are 7.1% above the prior year and are 
$84.6 million above forecast.  Tax collections by 
category for December are shown in Table 2.  The 5 
major categories of the state’s sales tax shown in the 
table account for approximately 90% of total 
collections.   

As displayed in Table 2 below, several of the 
major categories performed well in December, 
including the retail, contracting and restaurant 
and bar classifications.  Retail sales tax collections 
increased by 10.1%, the second highest year-
over-year growth rate in the last 3 years.  Prime 
contracting continues to perform strongly with a 
year-over-year growth rate of 14.2%.   

December Revenues 

http://www.azleg.gov/jlbc/20Baseline/20BaselineLinks.pdf
http://www.azleg.gov/jlbc/20baseline/20BaselineSlideshow.pdf
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December Revenues (Continued) 

 

 

The high growth in contracting tax collections is 
consistent with data reported for both construction 
employment and building permitting activity.  Tax 
collections from sales in the restaurant and bar category 
increased by 9.3% in December, the second highest 
growth rate reported in the last 12 months.  The utility 
category continues to perform poorly with a decline of 
(2.8)% for December and (0.5)% year to date.   
 

Table 2 
Sales Tax Growth Rates 
Compared to Prior Year 

 December     YTD 
Retail 10.1% 7.3% 
Contracting 14.2% 15.7% 
Use 0.6% 7.9% 
Restaurant & Bar 9.3% 6.8% 
Utilities (2.8)% (0.5)% 

 
Individual Income Tax net revenues of $441.9 million in 
December were $(39.8) million below forecast for the 
month. Year-to-date, Individual Income Tax revenues 
are 0.6% above the prior year and are $(3.3) million 
below forecast.    
 
As indicated in Table 3, December withholding revenues 
of $401.8 million were 11.7% above last year and $16.2 
million above the forecast.  Withholding has grown by 
7.6% YTD and is $56.4 million above forecast. 
 
December estimated and final payments of $50.9 million 
were (76.6)% below last year and $(62.5) million below 
forecast.   
 
Even taking this into account, current year December 
payment collections were abnormally low.  The JLBC 
Staff lacks sufficient information to determine the exact 
cause of the decrease.  
 
December Individual Income Tax refunds totaled $(10.8) 
million, which compares to $(3.2) million from last year. 
With a forecasted refund level of $(17.3) million, the 
lower level of refunds produced a forecast gain of $6.5 
million.   
 

 Table 3 
Individual Income Tax Growth Rates 

Compared to Prior Year 
 December YTD 
Withholding 11.7% 7.6% 
Estimated/Final Payments (76.6)% (24.9)% 
Refunds 237.7% 12.4% 

 
 

Corporate Income Tax net collections were $90.2 
million in December, an increase of 143.5% over the 
year prior.  Collections have been strong through the 
fiscal year, up 85.7% year-to-date. 
 
Insurance Premium Tax net collections were $56.0 
million in December, which was 7.4% above the prior 
year and $11.1 million above forecast.  Year-to-date, 
collections are 2.6% above the prior year and $19.3 
million above forecast. 
 
In November, tobacco tax revenues were $1.7 
million.  This amount is about equal to the prior year 
and $0.2 above the forecast. Liquor collections 
during the month were $3.5 million.  This amount is 
$0.2 million, or (6.0)% below November 2017 and $0.3 
million above forecast.  Due to the delay in receiving 
December data, December collections are reported 
at forecast. 
 
The Lottery Commission reports that December ticket 
sales were $86.7 million, which is $2.0 million, or 2.3% 
above sales in December 2017. Year-to-date, ticket 
sales are $526.3 million, 14.1% above sales in the prior 
year.  
  
Highway User Revenue Fund (HURF) collections of 
$127.3 million in December were up 2.9% compared 
to December of last year and were $1.3 million 
above the forecast. Year-to-date, collections have 
increased by 5.1% above the prior year and are 
$13.3 million above forecast. 
 
Due to delays in reporting final October revenues for 
various revenues sources, DOR has made technical 
adjustments to prior month collection figures. For 
November, DOR has increased the amount of prior 
General Fund revenue collections by $518,000 and 
the adjustment has been included in the reported 
year-to-date results.   
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Table 4 

General Fund Revenue: 
Change from Previous Year and Budget Forecast  

December 2018 
 

 
 

Actual Actual
December 2018 Amount Amount December 2018 Amount Amount

Taxes
     Sales and Use $418,682,790 $30,355,344 7.8 % $17,545,354 4.4 % $2,473,043,001 $164,383,578 7.1 % $84,565,552 3.5 %
     Income  - Individual 441,884,870 (132,153,763) (23.0) (39,852,823) (8.3) 2,400,786,547 13,196,646 0.6 (3,429,325) (0.1)
                  - Corporate 90,219,024 53,174,719 143.5 42,658,225 89.7 271,850,153 125,438,541 85.7 109,593,174 67.5
     Property 2,804,723 1,421,419 102.8 (1,114,602) (28.4) 16,057,194 (2,465,092) (13.3) (3,787,465) (19.1)
     Luxury - Tobacco 1,905,264 (165,087) (8.0) 0 -- 10,942,958 10,942,958 -- 146,692 1.4
                  - Liquor 3,326,675 35,921 1.1 0 -- 17,647,287 17,647,287 -- 366,884 2.1
     Insurance Premium 56,036,734 3,860,213 7.4 11,097,841 24.7 214,115,288 5,488,593 2.6 19,325,330 9.9
     Other Taxes 575,526 535,973 -- 561,950 -- 4,702,232 4,448,070 -- 4,480,220 --

Sub-Total Taxes $1,015,435,607 ($42,935,262) (4.1) % $30,895,945 3.1 % $5,409,144,659 $339,080,580 6.7 % $211,261,061 4.1 %

Other Revenue
     Lottery 0 (6,286,112) (100.0) 0 -- 41,383,177 14,317,790 52.9 1,807,395 4.6
     License, Fees and Permits 2,236,395 (689,528) (23.6) (1,100,041) (33.0) 17,467,102 (3,222,665) (15.6) (1,869,606) (9.7)
     Interest 5,210 2,053 65.1 (9,285) (64.1) 1,577,729 1,311,326 492.2 1,313,487 497.1
     Sales and Services 890,187 (226,540) (20.3) (666,645) (42.8) 10,683,749 1,407,015 15.2 567 0.0
     Other Miscellaneous 1,119,138 (676,535) (37.7) (2,119,690) (65.4) 6,303,242 (4,182,847) (39.9) (7,666,343) (54.9)
     Disproport ionate Share 0 0 -- 0 -- 0 0 -- 0 --
     Transfers and Reimbursements 1,562,362 (1,293,990) (45.3) (2,320,188) (59.8) 13,200,951 (668,799) (4.8) (4,745,559) (26.4)

Sub-Total Other Revenue $5,813,290 ($9,170,651) (61.2) % ($6,215,850) (51.7) % $90,615,952 $8,961,821 11.0 % ($11,160,060) (11.0) %

TOTAL BASE REVENUE $1,021,248,897 ($52,105,914) (4.9) % $24,680,095 2.5 % $5,499,760,611 $348,042,401 6.8 % $200,101,002 3.8 %

Other Adjustments
     Urban Revenue Sharing (56,233,703) 497,137 (0.9) (0) 0.0 (337,402,219) 2,982,821 (0.9) (0) 0.0
     One-Time Transfers 0 0 -- 0 -- 94,158,056 94,158,056 -- 0 0.0
     Public Safety Transfers 3,851,318 3,851,318 -- (0) (0.0) 19,256,590 19,256,590 -- (0) (0.0)

Sub-Total Other Adjustments (52,382,385) 4,348,455 (7.7) % (0) 0.0 % (223,987,572) 116,397,468 (34.2) % (0) 0.0 %

TOTAL GENERAL FUND REVENUE $968,866,512 ($47,757,459) (4.7) % $24,680,095 2.6 % $5,275,773,039 $464,439,869 9.7 % $200,101,001 3.9 %

Non-General Funds

     Highway User Revenue Fund 127,344,942 3,569,799 2.9 % 1,342,554 1.1 % 751,140,267 36,484,558 5.1 % 13,259,206 1.8 %

Current Month FY 2019 YTD (Six Months)
Change From Change from

December 2017 Budget Forecast December 2017 Budget Forecast
Percent Percent Percent Percent
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Monthly Indicators  
 

  

NATIONAL 
 
According to the U.S. Department of Commerce Bureau 
of Economic Analysis' (BEA) third and final estimate of 
the growth of the U.S. Real Gross Domestic Product 
(GDP) in the third quarter of 2018, the economy 
increased at an annual rate of 3.4%, down from 4.2% in 
the prior quarter.  This was a (0.1)% revision from the 
second estimate of real GDP growth released in 
November.  The slight downward revision was primarily 
due to a larger negative contribution from net exports.  
  
The Conference Board’s U.S. Consumer Confidence 
Index, which is based on consumers' perceptions of 
current conditions, as well as their expectations 6 months 
into the future, decreased by (6.1)%, or (8.3) points, from 
136.4 in November to 128.1 in December.  This was the 
largest one-month decline since July 2015 and the lowest 
reading in 5 months.  The decline was primarily driven by 
worsened consumer expectations.  However, the views 
on the present situation also worsened somewhat.  The 
decline of the index is likely related to the sharp fall in 
equity prices that occurred in December.   
 
According to the U.S. Department of Commerce Bureau 
of Economic Analysis, the U.S. Personal Consumption 
Expenditure (PCE) Price Index increased by 0.1% from 
October to November.  Compared to November 2017, 
the price index is up by 1.8%.  The "core" PCI price index 
excludes food and energy prices and is the Federal 
Reserve's (Fed) preferred inflation measure. This core 
index increased year over year by 1.9% in November, 
which is slightly below the Fed's inflation target of 2.0%.   
 
Consumer prices, as measured by the U.S. Consumer 
Price Index (CPI), decreased (0.1)% in December and 
increased 1.9% above December 2017 prices. The 
primary cause of the monthly decrease was a (3.5)% 
decline in the energy index, headlined by a (7.5)% 
decrease in the gasoline index. The decrease was only 
partially offset by increases in the indexes for food, 
shelter, and several energy components. Like the 
previous 2 months, core inflation (all items less food and 
energy) increased 0.2% for the month.  Other indexes 
with monthly increases include recreation, medical care, 
and furnishings.  The indexes for airline fares, used 
vehicles, and vehicle insurance saw monthly decreases. 
 
The Conference Board's U.S. Leading Economic Index 
increased 0.2% in November to 111.8 and is 5.2% above 
its November 2017 reading.  The building permits index 
was the primary positive contributor for the month, 
followed closely by the Institute for Supply Management 
(ISM) new orders index. The consumer expectations 
index also made a strong positive contribution for the 
month.  However, the stock prices index continues to 

negatively contribute.  Of the index's 10 components, 7 
made positive contributions for the month.   
  

ARIZONA 
 
Tourism 
Revenue per available room was $79.91 in November, 
(9.2)% below the same month in the prior year.   
  
Employment 
According to information released by the Office of 
Economic Opportunity (OEO), the state lost (5,900) 
nonfarm jobs in December over the prior month.  This 
was the first time since 2008 that the state experienced 
a month-over-month job loss in December. 
  
Year over year, the state added 93,900 net new jobs in 
December, which corresponds to a job growth rate of 
3.3%.  The average employment gain for all of 
calendar 2018 was 77,800, or 2.8%, of which 97.3% was 
attributable to private sector employment. The last 
time Arizona added more nonfarm jobs was in 2006 
when the state gained 126,600 net new jobs.    
 
The state’s unemployment rate increased from 4.7% in 
November to 4.8% in December.  This is (0.1)% less than 
in December 2017.  The U.S. unemployment rate 
increased from 3.7% in November to 3.9% in December. 
Over the last 10 years, the Arizona jobless rate has 
been on average 0.6% higher than the U.S. 
unemployment rate.    
 
OEO reported that 12,964 initial claims for 
unemployment insurance were filed in December, a 
decrease of (9.6)% compared to the same month last 
year.   
 
According to OEO, the state had a total of 12,853 
claimants receiving unemployment insurance benefits 
in December, a decrease of (34.8)% from November. 
This figure is (37.1)% below the December 2017 level, 
the largest year-over-year decrease since May 2005. 
 
Average Weekly Hours 
In November, the Average Weekly Hours worked by 
individuals in Arizona’s private sector was 34.7 hours. 
This was 0.3% above the level during the prior month, 
and (0.6)% below the level in November 2017.  
 
Average Hourly Earnings 
The Average Hourly Earnings received by private sector 
workers in November was $25.77, which was (0.4)% 
below the average in the prior month. Year-over-year 
growth in earnings increased from 0.2% in October to 
0.7% in November. 
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Monthly Indicators (Continued) 
 

  

State Agency Data 
At the beginning of January 2019, the total AHCCCS 
caseload was 1.82 million members.  Since the federal 
health care expansion in January 2014, the overall 
AHCCCS population has grown by 561,800 members. 
 
Total monthly enrollment increased by 0.3% in January 
but was (1.2)% lower than a year ago.  Parent and child 
enrollment in the Traditional population was flat in 
January and was (2.4)% lower than a year ago.   
Through January 1, 2019, enrollment in the KidsCare 
program was 32,500, an increase of 0.5% from the 
month prior and 31.3% above last year.  
 
In January 2014, the state started accepting new 
enrollment to the Proposition 204 childless adults 
program. In January 2019, the childless adult population 
increased by 1.0%. At 316,400, this population is 1.1% 
higher than a year ago. 
 
The state also opted to expand adult Medicaid 
coverage to 133% of FPL.  Their enrollment increased 
0.6%, in December and totals 77,500 individuals.  
Enrollment is (3.5)% lower than a year ago.  The federal 
share of this population's cost was 93% in January 2019.   
 
There were 14,512 TANF recipients in the state in 
December, representing a (2.2)% monthly caseload 
decrease from November.  The year-over-year number 
of TANF recipients has declined by (14.1)%.  The 
statutory lifetime limit on cash assistance is 24 months.  
 
The Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP), 
formerly known as Food Stamps, provides assistance to 
low-income households to purchase food.  In 
December, 824,623 people received food stamp 
assistance in the state, representing a (1.2)% decrease 
below November caseloads.  Compared to December 
2017, the level of food stamp participation has declined 
by (6.7)%.  
 
Based on information the Department of Child Safety 
provided for November 2018, reports of child 
maltreatment totaled 46,953 over the last 12 months, a 
decrease of (1.4)% over the prior year.  There were 
14,209 children in out-of-home care as of October 2018, 
or (9.9)% less than in October 2017.  Compared to the 
prior month, growth in the number of out-of-home 
children was flat. 
 
The inmate population was 41,946 as of December 31, 
2018.  This was essentially unchanged from November 
30, and a (0.3)% decrease since October and 
essentially unchanged since last December. 
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Table 5 
MONTHLY INDICATORS 

Indicator Time Period Current Value  
Change From 

Prior Period 
Change From 

Prior Year  

Arizona     
  Employment       
- Regular Unemployment Rate December 4.8% 0.1% 0.1% 
- Total Unemployment Rate 
(discouraged/underemployed) 

3rd Q 2018 9.3% 0.2% (0.6)% 

- Initial Unemployment Insurance Claims December 12,964 (6.0)% (9.6)% 
- Unemployment Insurance Recipients December 12,853 (34.8)% (37.1)% 
- Non-Farm Employment - Total 
 Manufacturing 
 Construction 

December 
December 
December 

2,932,100 
177,600 
170,300 

(0.2)% 
0.4% 
0.4% 

3.3% 
4.5% 

12.7% 
- Average Weekly Hours, Private Sector November 34.7 0.3% (0.6)% 
- Average Hourly Earnings, Private Sector November $25.77 (0.4)% 0.7% 
  Building     

- Residential Building Permits (12-
month avg) Single-family 
Multi-family 

 
October   
October 

 
30,630 
10,597 

 
0.9% 

(7.2)% 

 
13.0% 
(5.8)% 

- Maricopa County/Other, Home 
Sales (ARMLS) Single-Family 
(Pending Sales) 

 
October 

 
4,388 

 
(1.8)% 

 
(17.0)% 

- Maricopa County/Other, Median Home 
Price (ARMLS) Single-Family (Pending 
Sales) 

 
October 

 
$285,000 

 
0.0% 

 
7.6% 

- Phoenix S&P/C Home Price Index (2000 = 100) October 186.87 0.7% 7.7% 
- Maricopa Pending Foreclosures November 2,666 1.5% (7.7)% 
- Greater Phoenix Total Housing Inventory, (ARMLS) November 21,477 (1.2)% (1.7)% 

  Tourism     
- Phoenix Sky Harbor Air Passengers October 4,278,501 17.8% 4.0% 
- State Park Visitors September 228,125 9.5% 2.5% 
- Revenue Per Available Hotel Room November $79.91  (9.2)%  7.5% 
  General Measures     
- Arizona Leading Index – 6-month projected growth September 3.1% (2.7)% (0.9)% 
- Arizona Personal Income 3rd Q 2018 $313.1 billion 1.3% 4.7% 
- Arizona Population July 2018 7,171,646 N/A 1.7% 
- State Debt Rating 
  Standards & Poor’s/Moody’s 
 Outlook 

 
May 
May 

 
AA / Aa2 

Stable 

 
N/A 
N/A 

 
N/A 
N/A 

  Agency Measures     
- AHCCCS Recipients January 1st 1,819,907 0.3% (1.2)% 
 Acute Care Traditional  1,031,355 0.0% (2.4)% 
 Prop 204 Childless Adults  316,362 1.0% 1.1% 
 Other Prop 204  185,713 0.1% (1.3)% 
 Adult Expansion  77,461 0.6% (3.5)% 
 Kids Care I  32,522 0.5% 31.3% 
 Long-Term Care – Elderly & DD  63,930 0.4% 4.8% 
 Emergency Services  112,564 0.1% (5.0)% 
-  Department of Child Safety (DCS)  
 Annual Reports of Child Maltreatment (12-month      
total) 

  DCS Out-of-Home Children 

 
November 

 
October 

 
46,953 

 
14,209 

 
(0.4)% 

 
0.0% 

 
(1.4)% 

 
(9.9)% 

 Filled Caseworkers (1406 Budgeted) November 1,326 (1) (3) 
- ADC Inmate Growth December 41,946 (0.3)% 0.0% 
- Department of Economic Security     
 - TANF Recipients December 14,512 (2.2)% (14.1)% 
 - SNAP (Food Stamps) Recipients December 824,623 (1.2)% (6.7)% 
- Judiciary Probation Caseload  
      Non-Maricopa 

 Maricopa County 

 
October 
October 

 
19,074 
28,381 

 
             (17) 
            152 

 
(181) 
   92 

United States     
- Gross Domestic Product 
    (Chained 2012 dollars, SAAR) 

3rd Q, 2018 (3rd 
Estimate) 

$18.7 trillion 3.4% 3.0% 

- Consumer Confidence Index (1985 = 100) December 128.1 (6.1)% 4.1% 
- Leading Indicators Index (2016 = 100) November 111.8 0.2% 5.2% 
- Consumer Price Index, SA (1982-84 = 100) December 252.7 (0.1)% 1.9% 
- Personal Consumption Expenditure Price Index  
    (2012 = 100) 

November 108.9 0.1% 1.8% 
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Summary of Recent Agency Reports 

 

 
 
 

AHCCCS – Report on Interstate Agreement with Hawaii 
– Pursuant to A.R.S. § 36-2925H, the Arizona Health 
Care Cost Containment System (AHCCCS) submitted 
its annual report on the status of an Interstate 
Agreement with the State of Hawaii.  Under the 
agreement, AHCCCS continues to provide ongoing IT 
operations and maintenance for Hawaii's Medicaid 
program.  Hawaii reimburses AHCCCS for work done 
by AHCCCS staff and independent contractors on its 
behalf, a specified percentage of other AHCCCS' IT 
personnel costs, as well as other direct and indirect 
costs associated with the agreement. 
 
In FY 2018, Arizona received $8.5 million in revenues 
from Hawaii while spending $7.2 million for staffing and 
automation costs associated with implementing the 
agreement.  During FY 2018, the balance of 2 funds 
used for the agreement increased by $1.2 million, from 
$2.5 million to $3.7 million.  (Patrick Moran) 
 
Arizona Community Colleges – Annual Report – 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 15-1427, the Arizona Community 
Colleges are required to report by December 1 of 
each year on their progress during the previous year.  
They recently submitted their FY 2018 report, which 
includes the following summary information on the 
state system:  
 
• 281,069 students (headcount) were enrolled for 

credit, resulting in a Full-Time Student Equivalent 
(FTSE) count of 116,506.  

• 90% of enrolled students resided within the district, 
while 10.0% did not reside within the district. 

• Total number of instructors employed was 9,292, of 
which 2,476 (27%) were full-time and 6,816 (73%) 
were part-time.  

• Total operating revenues were $1.6 billion (this 
amount excludes bond proceeds and fund 
balance which total $70.2 million).  

• Total expenditures were $1.6 billion.  
(Micaela Larkin) 
 
Arizona Community Colleges – Report on Workforce 
Development and STEM Expenditures – Pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 15-1472, Arizona community colleges recently 
reported their Proposition 301 workforce development 
expenditures for FY 2017 and FY 2018.  Total reported 
expenditures were $12.4 million for FY 2017 and $16.3 
million for FY 2018.  Proposition 301 provided Arizona 
community colleges with $19.3 million in revenues for 
workforce development for FY 2017 and $18.1 million 
for FY 2018.  Unspent revenues were carried forward to 
the next fiscal year.   
  

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 15-1464, Arizona community 
colleges also recently reported their General Fund 
expenditures for Science, Technology, Engineering, 
and Mathematics (STEM) and Workforce Program 
State Aid for FY 2017 and FY 2018.  Total reported 
expenditures were $4.8 million for FY 2017 and $4.7 
million for FY 2018.  There were no unspent revenues. 
 
The reports detail each district's strategic initiatives 
and expenditures.  The General Fund and Proposition 
301 revenues were primarily used for instructional and 
equipment costs for specific STEM and workforce 
development programs, such as automotive repair, 
nursing and allied health, and building 
construction/trade programs.  (Micaela Larkin) 
 
Arizona Community Colleges – Report on Dual 
Enrollment Threshold - Pursuant to A.R.S. § 15-1821.01, 
the Arizona Community Colleges are required to 
report by October 1 of each year if dual enrollment by 
high school freshman and sophomore students at a 
community college are in excess of 25% of the high 
school students enrolled in dual enrollment at that 
college.  For FY 2018, the community colleges did not 
exceed the 25% cap.  (Micaela Larkin) 
 
Arizona Criminal Justice Commission – Report on State 
Aid to County Attorneys Fund and the State Aid to 
Indigent Defense Fund – Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-2409E, 
the Arizona Criminal Justice Commission (ACJC) 
reported on expenditures for the prior fiscal year from 
the State Aid to County Attorneys Fund and State Aid 
to Indigent Defense Fund.   
 
In FY 2018, the State Aid to County Attorneys Fund 
received revenues totaling $791,200.  ACJC reports 
that county attorneys, out of their $973,700 
appropriation, had expenditures of $794,000 in FY 
2018, leaving an ending cash balance of $650,200 in 
the State Aid to County Attorneys Fund.  Of the 
$794,000, $759,700 was spent on salary and benefits, 
$21,400 on case management software, $5,500 on 
equipment, $3,300 for contractual services, $3,300 on 
operating costs and supplies, and $800 on other 
expenses. 
 
ACJC reports that counties used the monies in 3 main 
areas:  staffing, technological purchases, and training 
on data systems.   
 
Of the 15 agencies, only 1 agency (Gila County 
Attorney's Office) reported adjudicating 100% of 
eligible felony cases within 180 days of filing.  Out of 
the 14 agencies that provided case processing 
statistics, 8 reported an increase in the number of 
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felony cases filed in FY 2018.  Of the 14 agencies that 
provided statistics on the percentage of felony cases 
adjudicated within 180 days between FY 2017 and FY 
2018, 8 agencies reported a decrease in the 
percentage of felony cases that were adjudicated 
within 180 days.  A total of 40.1% of the 27,715 cases 
adjudicated in Arizona during FY 2018 were finalized 
within 180 days of arrest. 
 
ACJC did not distribute State Aid to Indigent Defense 
Fund revenues to counties in FY 2018, as they were 
appropriated for other non-Indigent Defense areas.  
(Josh Hope) 
 
Department of Education – Budget Status Report – 
Pursuant to a General Appropriation Act footnote and 
A.R.S. § 35-131D, the Arizona Department of Education 
(ADE) recently provided an update regarding its 
budget status for FY 2019.  In that report, ADE estimates 
that it will experience a $13.2 million net funding surplus 
for formula programs for FY 2019.  This consists of an 
estimated $15.3 million surplus for Basic State Aid and 
estimated $(2.1) million shortfall for Additional State Aid 
(the Homeowner’s Rebate and 1% Cap programs 
combined).  ADE’s current $13.2 million shortfall 
estimate is tentative and subject to considerable 
revision as additional data become available.   (Steve 
Schimpp) 
 
JLBC Staff – Public Programs Eligibility Report – As 
enacted in the 2006 election, Proposition 300 limits 
participation in certain state programs to citizens, legal 
residents, or other persons lawfully present in the United 
States, and requires semi-annual reports to the Joint 
Legislative Budget Committee.  Below is a summary of 
the reports: 
 
Universities – Across the 3 public universities, 187,169 
students registered for fall 2018. The universities were 
able to verify legal citizenship or immigration status of 
171,906 students. In addition, 19,066 students did not 
require verification because they did not request in-
state tuition or receive state-supported financial aid.  
The universities reported no students who were unable 
to provide required verification of their lawful 
immigration status/lawful presence in the United States. 
 
Department of Economic Security – Between June 1, 
2018 and November 30, 2018, the department 
reported 7,932 applications for child care assistance.  
Of those, 23 applications were denied because 
applicants failed to provide the necessary 
documentation to meet the criteria for citizenship or 
legal residency. 
 

Community Colleges– In the fall 2018 semester, 
204,198 students were entitled to be classified as in-
state by Arizona community colleges.  The community 
colleges reported 279 students were not entitled to 
classification as an in-state student due to lack of 
citizenship or lawful presence in the United States.  The 
community colleges received 12,293 individual 
applications for financial aid funded by state monies.  
Of those applications, 6 were not entitled to financial 
aid with state monies because the student was not a 
citizen or legal resident of the United States or was not 
lawfully present in the United States. 
 
Department of Education – Between June 2018 and 
December 2018, the department reported that 10,209 
individuals applied for instruction in Arizona Adult 
Education.  Of these applicants, 405 individuals were 
denied instruction because of failure to provide 
acceptable evidence of citizenship or legal residence 
in the United States.  All students must provide 
documentation of legal residency at the time of 
enrollment.  The Arizona Adult Education program is 
funded with a combination of state and Federal 
Funds. (Elizabeth Dagle) 
 
Ombudsman-Citizens' Aide Office – Annual Report – 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-1376, the Ombudsman-Citizens' 
Aide is to submit an annual written report by January 1 
summarizing their activities during the previous fiscal 
year (FY).   The FY 2018 annual report cites examples of 
cases in the office’s 3 focus areas: general complaints 
about state agencies, Department of Child Safety 
(DCS) cases, and public access cases.  There were 
6,000 total cases in FY 2018 including 4,439 involving 
coaching, 1,197 needing assistance, and 364 
requesting investigations.  Department of Child Safety 
cases now account for 38.75% of the total workload.  
(Steve Grunig) 



10 JLBC – MONTHLY FISCAL HIGHLIGHTS – JANUARY 2019 

   December Spending

Dec 18
Change From

Dec 17 Year-to-Date
YTD Change 
from FY 18

Agency
AHCCCS 167.4 22.3 957.8 (11.2)

Corrections 58.8 (6.7) 607.2 64.9

Child Safety 12.2 (9.1) 158.2 (28.1)

Economic Security 6.8 (2.5) 541.6 37.1 

Education 320.8 52.5 2,769.3 197.9

Health Serv ices 6.8 1.2 47.2 (0.4)

Public Safety 2.8 0.6 84.9 36.3 

School Facilities Board       0.0 (0.1) 201.6 (9.4)

Univ ersities 58.1 (0.7) 362.4 7.9

Leaseback Debt Serv ice 0.0 0.0 84.1 (0.0)

Other 46.8 24.4 298.8 (5.6)

  Total 680.5 81.9 6,113.1 289.4 

Table 6
General Fund Spending ($ in Millions)

December 2018 General Fund spending was 
$680.5 million, which is an increase of $81.9 million 
above December 2017. (See Tables 6 & 7).   

• Year-to-date, Department of Education (ADE)
spending has increased by $197.9 million
compared to the prior year. The FY 2019 budget
added funding for a 10% teacher salary
increase and included $100 million to restore a
portion of K-12 "Additional Assistance" funding.

• Year-to-date, Department of Corrections (ADC)
spending has increased by $64.9 million
compared to the prior year. The FY 2019 General
Appropriation Act added a footnote requiring
ADC to transfer its entire annual employer
contribution to the Corrections Officer Retirement
Plan by August 1. In prior years, ADC's employer
contributions were made throughout the fiscal
year.
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Agency Dec 18
Change from 

Dec 17 Year-to-Date
YTD Change 
from FY 18

Dept. of Admin./Automation Projects Fund                    773.1               (1,027.3)                9,258.4            (13,124.8)
ADOA – Sale/Leaseback Debt Service                             -                             -              84,112.0                       (3.1)
Office of Administrative Hearings                        7.4                        7.4                    437.2                    (19.1)
Commission of African-American Affairs                        8.2                       (0.7)                      51.9                    (16.7)
Department of Agriculture                    601.4                    (37.8)                5,261.8                    351.5 
AHCCCS            167,354.0              22,308.4            957,772.9            (11,229.9)
Attorney General                1,635.8                      70.3              12,537.9                    (32.6)
State Board of Charter Schools                      73.1                        4.5                    557.8                      41.1 
Department of Child Safety              12,176.4               (9,143.3)            158,201.1            (28,146.3)
AZ Commerce Authority                1,866.7                      75.0              10,900.2                             - 
Community Colleges                1,552.6                    (16.6)              27,866.8                      82.1 
Corporation Commission                      79.0                      53.3                1,162.0                  (111.9)
Department of Corrections              58,831.5               (6,731.7)            607,207.9              64,902.9 
County Funding              20,566.2              20,566.2              20,566.2                4,915.5 
AZ State Schools for the Deaf & Blind                    252.3                  (101.0)              10,445.3                  (592.5)
Office of Economic Opportunity                      35.4                        7.2                    219.7                    (26.6)
Department of Economic Security                6,791.7               (2,489.0)            541,575.4              37,072.1 
State Board of Education                      47.5                       (6.0)                    339.3                  (239.8)
Department of Education            320,757.8              52,462.8        2,769,282.9            197,855.8 
DEMA                    796.0                    344.0                3,551.6               (1,948.9)
DEQ – WQARF                             -                             -                             -               (2,823.6)
Office of Equal Opportunity                             -                    (12.8)                        0.1                    (95.5)
State Board of Equalization                      21.7                       (1.5)                    280.6                    (51.3)
Board of Executive Clemency                      62.3                        5.8                    520.1                      11.3 
Department of Financial Institutions                      91.3                    (51.6)                    854.7                  (124.4)
Department of Forestry and Fire Management                    655.9                      61.1                4,582.5                  (551.6)
Department of Gaming                             -                             -                1,779.5                             - 
Governor/OSPB                    659.3                  (221.3)                5,609.2                  (295.1)
Department of Health Services                6,794.3                1,184.5              47,202.8                  (423.8)
Arizona Historical Society                    205.9                      31.1                1,242.0                        8.2 
Prescott Historical Society of AZ                      60.5                        5.6                    457.4                      36.0 
Department of Housing                             -                             -                             -                  (248.9)
Independent Redistricting Comm.                             -                       (0.2)                             -                       (0.8)
Department of Insurance                    319.5                    (25.5)                2,707.3                      27.6 
Judiciary

Supreme/Superior Court                2,591.9                    357.1              49,776.0                1,791.2 
    Court of Appeals                1,134.5                      66.4                7,872.8                    809.1 
Department of Juvenile Corrections                    399.3                    449.1              11,021.9                1,307.5 

Table 7
General Fund Spending 

($ in Thousands)
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Agency Dec 18
Change from 

Dec 17 Year-to-Date
YTD Change 
from FY 18

State Land Department                    642.2                      32.8                5,657.6                  (283.4)
Legislature
     Auditor General                1,635.5                      36.1              10,413.7                  (386.6)
     House of Representatives                1,033.8                  (144.3)                6,703.7                      35.8 
     Joint Legislative Budget Comm.                    174.1                        3.8                1,181.4                    (61.8)
     Legislative Council                    441.6                      48.2                3,136.4                  (158.5)
     Senate                    695.9                      19.2                4,618.4                    228.7 
Mine Inspector                      74.2                       (1.7)                    594.8                    (10.5)
Nav. Streams & Adjudication                        8.1                       (0.7)                      64.8                       (1.7)
Phoenix Convention Center                             -                             -              22,996.3                    497.3 
Comm. for Postsecondary Ed.                             -                             -                    823.4                             - 
Department of Public Safety                2,771.7                    593.2              84,898.0              36,306.2 
Public Safety Personnel Retirement System                             -                             -                7,000.0                1,000.0 
Radiation Regulatory Agency                             -                    (55.0)                             -                  (622.8)
Real Estate Department                    161.8                        8.3                1,301.9                    (15.6)
Department of Revenue                2,514.7                    895.7              14,911.7                    (97.2)
School Facilities Board                      50.0                    (52.6)            201,557.9               (9,408.8)
Secretary of State                2,179.2                1,647.8                8,400.3                    456.9 
Tax Appeals Board                      10.1                      10.1                    145.1                        8.6 
Office of Tourism                             -                             -                3,698.2               (1,280.2)
Department of Transportation                1,572.2                1,571.6                7,261.8                7,233.6 
Governor's Office on Tribal Relations                        0.8                       (0.0)                      32.8                      18.6 
Universities
     Board of Regents                    430.5                    (67.9)                5,324.3                  (212.4)
     Arizona State University              26,425.3                  (263.0)            162,265.4                2,135.9 
     Northern Arizona University                8,976.5                    (74.5)              55,975.0                1,668.6 
     University of Arizona              22,265.2                  (261.7)            138,867.1                4,347.8 
Department of Veteran Services                    278.9                  (171.3)                2,797.0                      36.5 
Department of Water Resources                    892.7                  (157.2)                6,736.6               (1,181.9)
Department of Weights & Measures                             -                             -                             -                        1.0 
Other - State Treasurer/JP Salaries                      52.7                      48.2                    557.6                      70.3 
Other                             -                             -                             -                             - 
 Total            680,489.9              81,858.5        6,113,136.0            289,429.2 

Table 7 (Continued)
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2,932,100 jobs
(December 2018)

3.3% Y/Y Growth
(December 2018)

JLBC 33

Average Hourly Earnings – Private Sector 
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$25.77 / Hour
(November 2018)

JLBC 44

Initial Claims for Unemployment Insurance
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12,964 Claims
(December 2018)

(9.6)% Y/Y Growth
(December 2018)



JLBC 55

State Sales Tax Collections – Retail Category
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10.1% Y/Y Growth
(December 2018)

$229.2 Million
(December 2018)

Excludes temporary 1-cent sales tax
*January 2014 estimate adjusted downward by $30 million to reflect one-time category shift JLBC 66

State Sales Tax Collections – Contracting Category 
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Excludes temporary 1-cent sales tax

14.2% Y/Y Growth
(November 2018)

$47.1 Million
(December 2018)

JLBC 77

Residential Building Permits
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Subject to the 2018‐19 Catalog
Mon 01 Jul 2019 Classes End (5 week)
Thu 04 Jul 2019 College Closed / Independence Day
Mon 08 Jul 2019 Grades Due (5 week)
Mon 15 Jul 2019 Last Day for Withdrawal (8 week)
Mon 22 Jul 2019 Classes End (8 week)
Thu 25 Jul 2019 Grades Due (8 week)
Wed 31 Jul 2019 Academic Year 2018‐19 Ends

FALL SEMESTER ‐ 2019
Thu 01 Aug 2019 Academic Year 2019‐20 Begins
Mon 12 Aug 2019 Resident Faculty Return
Mon 26 Aug 2019 Add/Drop Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)
Mon 26 Aug 2019 Classes Begin (15 & 1st 8 week)
Mon 02 Sep 2019 College Closed / Labor Day
Tue 03 Sep 2019 Add/Drop Period Ends (15 & 1st 8 week)
Wed 04 Sep 2019 Application Period for Fall Graduation Opens
Wed 04 Sep 2019 Withdrawal Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)
Fri 06 Sep 2019 College Closed / All Staff Day
Mon 23 Sep 2019 Add/Drop Period Begins (12 week)
Mon 23 Sep 2019 Classes Begin (12 week)
Mon 30 Sep 2019 Add/Drop Period Ends (12 week)
Tue 01 Oct 2019 Withdrawal Period Begins (12 week)
Wed 09 Oct 2019 45th Day
Fri 11 Oct 2019 Last Day for Withdrawal (1st 8 week)
Fri 18 Oct 2019 Classes End (1st 8 week)
Mon 21 Oct 2019 Add/Drop Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
Mon 21 Oct 2019 Classes Begin (2nd 8 week)
Mon 21 Oct 2019 Grades Due (1st 8 week)
Mon 28 Oct 2019 Add/Drop Period Ends (2nd 8 week)
Tue 29 Oct 2019 Withdrawal Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
Mon 11 Nov 2019 College Closed / Veterans Day 
Fri 15 Nov 2019 Application Due for Fall Graduation (late fees charged after this date)
Wed 27 Nov 2019 Last Day for Withdrawal (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Wed 27 Nov 2019 No Classes / College Open
Thu 28 Nov 2019 College Closed / Thanksgiving Holiday
Fri 29 Nov 2019 College Closed / Thanksgiving Holiday
Fri 13 Dec 2019 Application Due for Fall Graduation (with additional fee)
Fri 13 Dec 2019 Classes End (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Mon 16 Dec 2019 Grades Due (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Thu 19 Dec 2019 LATTE
Fri 20 Dec 2019 Resident Faculty Last Day of Accountability
Tue 24 Dec 2019 College Closed / Christmas Holiday
Wed 25 Dec 2019 College Closed / Christmas Holiday
Tue 31 Dec 2019 College Closed / New Year's Eve

Wed 01 Jan 2020 College Closed / New Year's Day
Mon 13 Jan 2020 Resident Faculty Return
Mon 20 Jan 2020 College Closed / Martin Luther King Day
Tue 21 Jan 2020 Add/Drop Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)
Tue 21 Jan 2020 Classes Begin (15 & 1st 8 week)
Tue 28 Jan 2020 Add/Drop Period Ends (15 & 1st 8 week)
Wed 29 Jan 2020 Application period for Spring & Summer Graduation Opens
Wed 29 Jan 2020 Withdrawal Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)
Mon 10 Feb 2020 Add/Drop Period Begins (12 week)

SUMMER SEMESTER ‐ 2019

MOHAVE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

2019‐20 ACADEMIC CALENDAR

Dates listed below which are directly related to instruction refer to the traditional academic year.  Some courses may be 

offered over time periods for which these dates are not applicable.

SPRING SEMESTER ‐ 2020
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Mon 10 Feb 2020 Classes Begin (12 week)
Mon 17 Feb 2020 College Closed / President's Day
Tue 18 Feb 2020 Add/Drop Period Ends (12 week)
Wed 19 Feb 2020 Withdrawal Period Begins (12 week)
Mon 02 Mar 2020 Last Day for Withdrawal (1st 8 week)
Thu 05 Mar 2020 45th Day
Fri 13 Mar 2020 Classes End (1st 8 week)
Mon 16 Mar 2020 Spring Break
Tue 24 Mar 2020 Add/Drop Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
Tue 24 Mar 2020 Classes Begin (2nd 8 week)
Tue 24 Mar 2020 Grades Due (1st 8 weeks)
Tue 31 Mar 2020 Add/Drop Period Ends (2nd 8 week)
Wed 01 Apr 2020 Withdrawal Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
Fri 10 Apr 2020 Application Due for Spring/Summer Graduation & Commencement Participation 

(late fees charged after this date)
Mon 27 Apr 2020 Last Day for Withdrawal (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Mon 11 May 2020 Application Due for Spring Graduation (with additional fee)
Mon 11 May 2020 Classes End (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Thu 14 May 2020 Grades Due (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Fri 15 May 2020 Commencement / Resident Faculty Last Day of Accountability

Mon 18 May 2020 Four‐Day Work Week Begins
Mon 25 May 2020 College Closed / Memorial Day
Tue 26 May 2020 Add/Drop Period Begins (8 & 5 week)
Tue 26 May 2020 Classes Begin (8 & 5 week)
Tue 02 Jun 2020 Add/Drop Period Ends (8 & 5 week)
Wed 03 Jun 2020 Withdrawal Period Begins (8 & 5 week)
Mon 22 Jun 2020 Last Day for Withdrawal (5 week)
Mon 29 Jun 2020 Classes End (5 week)
Tue 30 Jun 2020 Application Due for Summer Graduation (late fees charged after this date)
Thu 02 Jul 2020 College Closed / Independence Day
Mon 06 Jul 2020 Grades Due (5 week)
Wed 08 Jul 2020 Late Summer Grad App Window Opens
Mon 13 Jul 2020 Last Day for Withdrawal (8 week)
Mon 20 Jul 2020 Classes End (5 week)
Mon 20 Jul 2020 Application Due for Summer Graduation (with additional fee)
Mon 20 Jul 2020 Classes End (8 week)
Thu 23 Jul 2020 Grades Due (8 week)
Fri 31 Jul 2020 Academic Year 2019‐20 Ends

* For specific information concerning the last day to apply for graduation, individual class start dates, and final exams, consult 

jics.mohave.edu, the catalog, and/or the syllabi for your course(s).

ǂǂ  Refer to the Academic Policies  section of the catalog for information on withdrawals.

SUMMER SEMESTER ‐ 2020

** Please refer to your course syllabus for exact dates and times of course meetings and exams.
ǂ  See your student schedule in jics.mohave.edu for the Last Day to Withdraw for each class in which you are enrolled.
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Subject to the 2019‐20 Catalog
Mon 18 May 2020 Four‐Day Work Week Begins
Mon 25 May 2020 College Closed / Memorial Day
Tue 26 May 2020 Classes Begin (8 & 5 week)
Tue 26 May 2020 Add/Drop Period Begins (8 & 5 week)
Tue 02 Jun 2020 Add/Drop Period Ends (8 & 5 week)
Wed 03 Jun 2020 Withdrawal Period Begins (8 & 5 week)
Mon 22 Jun 2020 Last Day for Withdrawal (5 week)
Mon 29 Jun 2020 Classes End (5 week)
Tue 30 Jun 2020 Application Due for Summer Graduation (late fees charged after this date)
Thu 02 Jul 2020 College Closed / Independence Day
Mon 06 Jul 2020 Grades Due (5 week)
Wed 08 Jul 2020 Late Summer Grad App Window Opens
Mon 13 Jul 2020 Last Day for Withdrawal (8 week)
Mon 20 Jul 2020 Application Due for Summer Graduation (with additional fee)
Mon 20 Jul 2020 Classes End (8 week)
Thu 23 Jul 2020 Grades Due (8 week)
Fri 31 Jul 2020 Academic Year 2019‐20 Ends

Sat 01 Aug 2020 Academic Year 2020‐21 Begins
Mon 10 Aug 2020 Resident Faculty Return
Mon 24 Aug 2020 Classes Begin (15 & 1st 8 week)
Mon 24 Aug 2020 Add/Drop Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)
Mon 31 Aug 2020 Add/Drop Period Ends (15 & 1st 8 week)
Tue 01 Sep 2020 Application Period for Fall Graduation Opens
Tue 01 Sep 2020 Withdrawal Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)
Mon 07 Sep 2020 College Closed / Labor Day
Fri 11 Sep 2020 College Closed / All Staff Day
Mon 14 Sep 2020 Classes Begin (12 week)
Mon 14 Sep 2020 Add/Drop Period Begins (12 week)
Mon 21 Sep 2020 Add/Drop Period Ends (12 week)
Tue 22 Sep 2020 Withdrawal Period Begins (12 week)
Wed 07 Oct 2020 45th Day
Fri 09 Oct 2020 Last Day for Withdrawal (1st 8 week)
Fri 16 Oct 2020 Classes End (1st 8 week)
Mon 19 Oct 2020 Classes Begin (2nd 8 week)
Mon 19 Oct 2020 Add/Drop Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
Mon 19 Oct 2020 Grades Due (1st 8 week)
Mon 26 Oct 2020 Add/Drop Period Ends (2nd 8 week)
Tue 27 Oct 2020 Withdrawal Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
Wed 11 Nov 2020 College Closed / Veterans Day 
Fri 13 Nov 2020 Application Due for Fall Graduation (late fees charged after this date)
Wed 25 Nov 2020 Last Day for Withdrawal (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Wed 25 Nov 2020 No Classes / College Open
Thu 26 Nov 2020 College Closed / Thanksgiving Holiday
Fri 27 Nov 2020 College Closed / Thanksgiving Holiday
Fri 11 Dec 2020 Application Due for Fall Graduation (with additional fee)
Fri 11 Dec 2020 Classes End (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Wed 16 Dec 2020 Grades Due (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Thu 17 Dec 2020 LATTE
Fri 18 Dec 2020 Resident Faculty Last Day of Accountability

FALL SEMESTER ‐ 2020

MOHAVE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

2020‐21 ACADEMIC CALENDAR

Dates listed below which are directly related to instruction refer to the traditional academic year.  Some courses may be 

offered over time periods for which these dates are not applicable.
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Thu 24 Dec 2020 College Closed / Christmas Holiday
Fri 25 Dec 2020 College Closed / Christmas Holiday
Thu 31 Dec 2020 College Closed / New Year's Eve

Fri 01 Jan 2021 College Closed / New Year's Day
Mon 11 Jan 2021 Resident Faculty Return
Mon 18 Jan 2021 College Closed / Martin Luther King Day
Tue 19 Jan 2021 Classes Begin (15 & 1st 8 week)
Tue 19 Jan 2021 Add/Drop Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)
Tue 26 Jan 2021 Add/Drop Period Ends (15 & 1st 8 week)
Wed 27 Jan 2021 Application period for Spring & Summer Graduation Opens
Wed 27 Jan 2021 Withdrawal Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)
Mon 08 Feb 2021 Classes Begin (12 week)
Mon 08 Feb 2021 Add/Drop Period Begins (12 week)
Mon 15 Feb 2021 College Closed / President's Day
Tue 16 Feb 2021 Add/Drop Period Ends (12 week)
Wed 17 Feb 2021 Withdrawal Period Begins (12 week)
Fri 26 Feb 2021 Last Day for Withdrawal (1st 8 week)
Thu 04 Mar 2021 45th Day
Fri 12 Mar 2021 Classes End (1st 8 week)
Mon 15 Mar 2021 Spring Break
Mon 22 Mar 2021 Classes Begin (2nd 8 week)
Mon 22 Mar 2021 Add/Drop Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
Mon 22 Mar 2021 Grades Due (1st 8 weeks)
Mon 29 Mar 2021 Add/Drop Period Ends (2nd 8 week)
Tue 30 Mar 2021 Withdrawal Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
Fri 09 Apr 2021 Application Due for Spring/Summer Graduation & Commencement Participation 

(late fees charged after this date)
Mon 26 Apr 2021 Last Day for Withdrawal (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Mon 10 May 2021 Application Due for Spring Graduation (with additional fee)
Mon 10 May 2021 Classes End (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Thu 13 May 2021 Grades Due (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Fri 14 May 2021 Commencement / Resident Faculty Last Day of Accountability

Mon 17 May 2021 Four‐Day Work Week Begins
Mon 31 May 2021 College Closed / Memorial Day
Tue 01 Jun 2021 Classes Begin (8 & 5 week)
Tue 01 Jun 2021 Add/Drop Period Begins (8 & 5 week)
Tue 08 Jun 2021 Add/Drop Period Ends (8 & 5 week)
Wed 09 Jun 2021 Withdrawal Period Begins (8 & 5 week)
Tue 29 Jun 2021 Last Day for Withdrawal (5 week)
Mon 05 Jul 2021 College Closed / Independence Day
Tue 06 Jul 2021 Classes End (5 week)
Wed 07 Jul 2021 Application Due for Summer Graduation (late fees charged after this date)
Thu 08 Jul 2021 Grades Due (5 week)
Mon 19 Jul 2021 Last Day for Withdrawal (8 week)
Mon 26 Jul 2021 Application Due for Summer Graduation (with additional fee)
Mon 26 Jul 2021 Classes End (8 week)
Thu 29 Jul 2021 Grades Due (8 week)
Sat 31 Jul 2021 Academic Year 2020‐21 Ends

* For specific information concerning the last day to apply for graduation, individual class start dates, and final exams, consult 

jics.mohave.edu, the catalog, and/or the syllabi for your course(s).
** Please refer to your course syllabus for exact dates and times of course meetings and exams.

SPRING SEMESTER ‐ 2021

SUMMER SEMESTER ‐ 2021

ǂ  See your student schedule in jics.mohave.edu for the Last Day to Withdraw for each class in which you are enrolled.
ǂǂ  Refer to the Academic Policies  section of the catalog for information on withdrawals.
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Subject to the 2020‐21 Catalog
Mon 17 May 2021 Four‐Day Work Week Begins
Mon 31 May 2021 College Closed / Memorial Day
Tue 01 Jun 2021 Classes Begin (8 & 5 week)
Tue 01 Jun 2021 Add/Drop Period Begins (8 & 5 week)
Tue 08 Jun 2021 Add/Drop Period Ends (8 & 5 week)
Wed 09 Jun 2021 Withdrawal Period Begins (8 & 5 week)
Tue 29 Jun 2021 Last Day for Withdrawal (5 week)
Mon 05 Jul 2021 College Closed / Independence Day
Tue 06 Jul 2021 Classes End (5 week)
Wed 07 Jul 2021 Application Due for Summer Graduation (late fees charged after this date)
Thu 08 Jul 2021 Grades Due (5 week)
Mon 19 Jul 2021 Last Day for Withdrawal (8 week)
Mon 26 Jul 2021 Application Due for Summer Graduation (with additional fee)
Mon 26 Jul 2021 Classes End (8 week)
Thu 29 Jul 2021 Grades Due (8 week)
Sat 31 Jul 2021 Academic Year 2020‐21 Ends

Sun 01 Aug 2021 Academic Year 2021‐22 Begins
Mon 09 Aug 2021 Resident Faculty Return
Fri 20 Aug 2021 Semester Ends ‐ Summer
Mon 23 Aug 2021 Classes Begin (15 & 1st 8 week)
Mon 23 Aug 2021 Add/Drop Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)
Mon 30 Aug 2021 Add/Drop Period Ends (15 & 1st 8 week)
Tue 31 Aug 2021 Application Period for Fall Graduation Opens
Tue 31 Aug 2021 Withdrawal Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)
Mon 06 Sep 2021 College Closed / Labor Day
Fri 10 Sep 2021 College Closed / All Staff Day
Mon 13 Sep 2021 Classes Begin (12 week)
Mon 13 Sep 2021 Add/Drop Period Begins (12 week)
Mon 20 Sep 2021 Add/Drop Period Ends (12 week)
Tue 21 Sep 2021 Withdrawal Period Begins (12 week)
Wed 06 Oct 2021 45th Day
Fri 08 Oct 2021 Last Day for Withdrawal (1st 8 week)
Fri 15 Oct 2021 Classes End (1st 8 week)
Mon 18 Oct 2021 Classes Begin (2nd 8 week)
Mon 18 Oct 2021 Add/Drop Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
Mon 18 Oct 2021 Grades Due (1st 8 week)
Mon 25 Oct 2021 Add/Drop Period Ends (2nd 8 week)
Tue 26 Oct 2021 Withdrawal Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
Thu 11 Nov 2021 College Closed / Veterans Day 
Fri 12 Nov 2021 Application Due for Fall Graduation (late fees charged after this date)
Wed 24 Nov 2021 Last Day for Withdrawal (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Wed 24 Nov 2021 No Classes / College Open
Thu 25 Nov 2021 College Closed / Thanksgiving Holiday
Fri 26 Nov 2021 College Closed / Thanksgiving Holiday
Fri 10 Dec 2021 Application Due for Fall Graduation (with additional fee)
Fri 10 Dec 2021 Classes End (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Wed 15 Dec 2021 Grades Due (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Thu 16 Dec 2021 LATTE
Fri 17 Dec 2021 Resident Faculty Last Day of Accountability
Thu 23 Dec 2021 College Closed / Christmas Holiday
Fri 24 Dec 2021 College Closed / Christmas Holiday
Thu 30 Dec 2021 College Closed / New Year's Eve

FALL SEMESTER ‐ 2021

MOHAVE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

2021‐22 ACADEMIC CALENDAR

Dates listed below which are directly related to instruction refer to the traditional academic year.  Some courses may be 

offered over time periods for which these dates are not applicable.

SUMMER SEMESTER ‐ 2021
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Sat 01 Jan 2022 College Closed / New Year's Day
Mon 10 Jan 2022 Resident Faculty Return
Mon 17 Jan 2022 College Closed / Martin Luther King Day
Tue 18 Jan 2022 Classes Begin (15 & 1st 8 week)
Tue 18 Jan 2022 Add/Drop Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)
Tue 25 Jan 2022 Add/Drop Period Ends (15 & 1st 8 week)
Wed 26 Jan 2022 Application period for Spring & Summer Graduation Opens
Wed 26 Jan 2022 Withdrawal Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)
Mon 07 Feb 2022 Classes Begin (12 week)
Mon 07 Feb 2022 Add/Drop Period Begins (12 week)
Tue 15 Feb 2022 Add/Drop Period Ends (12 week)
Wed 16 Feb 2022 Withdrawal Period Begins (12 week)
Mon 21 Feb 2022 College Closed / President's Day
Mon 28 Feb 2022 Last Day for Withdrawal (1st 8 week)
Thu 03 Mar 2022 45th Day
Fri 11 Mar 2022 Classes End (1st 8 week)
Mon 14 Mar 2022 Spring Break
Mon 21 Mar 2022 Classes Begin (2nd 8 week)
Mon 21 Mar 2022 Add/Drop Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
Mon 21 Mar 2022 Grades Due (1st 8 weeks)
Mon 28 Mar 2022 Add/Drop Period Ends (2nd 8 week)
Tue 29 Mar 2022 Withdrawal Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
Fri 08 Apr 2022 Application Due for Spring/Summer Graduation & Commencement Participation 

(late fees charged after this date)
Mon 25 Apr 2022 Last Day for Withdrawal (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Mon 09 May 2022 Application Due for Spring Graduation (with additional fee)
Mon 09 May 2022 Classes End (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Thu 12 May 2022 Grades Due (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
Fri 13 May 2022 Commencement / Resident Faculty Last Day of Accountability

Mon 16 May 2022 Four‐Day Work Week Begins
Tue 24 May 2022 Classes Begin (8 & 5 week)
Tue 24 May 2022 Add/Drop Period Begins (8 & 5 week)
Mon 30 May 2022 College Closed / Memorial Day
Tue 31 May 2022 Add/Drop Period Ends (8 & 5 week)
Wed 01 Jun 2022 Withdrawal Period Begins (8 & 5 week)
Tue 21 Jun 2022 Last Day for Withdrawal (5 week)
Tue 28 Jun 2022 Classes End (5 week)
Wed 29 Jun 2022 Application Due for Summer Graduation (late fees charged after this date)
Mon 04 Jul 2022 College Closed / Independence Day
Wed 06 Jul 2022 Grades Due (5 week)
Wed 06 Jul 2022 Application Due for Summer Graduation (late fees charged after this date)
Tue 12 Jul 2022 Last Day for Withdrawal (8 week)
Tue 19 Jul 2022 Application Due for Summer Graduation (with additional fee)
Tue 19 Jul 2022 Classes End (8 week)
Mon 25 Jul 2022 Grades Due (8 week)
Sun 31 Jul 2022 Academic Year 2021‐22 Ends

* For specific information concerning the last day to apply for graduation, individual class start dates, and final exams, consult 

jics.mohave.edu, the catalog, and/or the syllabi for your course(s).
** Please refer to your course syllabus for exact dates and times of course meetings and exams.

SPRING SEMESTER ‐ 2022

SUMMER SEMESTER ‐ 2022

ǂ  See your student schedule in jics.mohave.edu for the Last Day to Withdraw for each class in which you are enrolled.
ǂǂ  Refer to the Academic Policies  section of the catalog for information on withdrawals.
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 2019‐20, 2020‐21, 2021‐22 Academic and Internal Calendar ‐ DRAFT

2019‐20 2020‐21 2021‐22 **
In
te
rn
al

CALENDAR ITEM (New format suggestions)

07/04/19 07/02/20 07/05/21 College Closed / Independence Day
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 07/01/19 06/29/20 07/06/21 Classes End (5 week)

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 07/07/21 Application Due for Summer Graduation (late fees charged after this date)
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 07/09/19 07/08/20 07/07/21 ** Late Summer Grad App Window Opens
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 07/08/19 07/06/20 07/08/21 Grades Due (5 week)
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 07/15/19 07/13/20 07/19/21 Last Day for Withdrawal (8 week)
28 29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 07/20/20 07/26/21 Application Due for Summer Graduation (with additional fee)

07/22/19 07/20/20 07/26/21 Classes End (8 week)
07/25/19 07/23/20 07/29/21 Grades Due (8 week)

Starts new award year Starts new award year Starts new award year 07/31/19 07/31/20 07/31/21 Academic Year Ends

08/01/19 08/01/20 08/01/21 Academic Year Begins
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 08/12/19 08/10/20 08/09/21 Resident Faculty Return

1 2 3 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 08/20/21 Semester Ends ‐ Summer
4 5 6 7 8 9 10 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 08/26/19 08/24/20 08/23/21 Add/Drop Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 08/26/19 08/24/20 08/23/21 Classes Begin (15 & 1st 8 week)
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 09/03/19 08/31/20 08/30/21 Add/Drop Period Ends (15 & 1st 8 week)
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 29 30 31 09/04/19 09/01/20 08/31/21 Application Period for Fall Graduation Opens

30 31 09/04/19 09/01/20 08/31/21 Withdrawal Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)

09/02/19 09/07/20 09/06/21 College Closed / Labor Day
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 09/06/19 09/11/20 09/10/21 College Closed / All Staff Day
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 09/23/19 09/14/20 09/13/21 Add/Drop Period Begins (12 week)
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 09/23/19 09/14/20 09/13/21 Classes Begin (12 week)
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 09/30/19 09/21/20 09/20/21 Add/Drop Period Ends (12 week)
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 10/01/19 09/22/20 09/21/21 Withdrawal Period Begins (12 week)
29 30 27 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30

10/09/19 10/07/20 10/06/21 45th Day
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 10/11/19 10/09/20 10/08/21 Last Day for Withdrawal (1st 8 week)

1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 1 2 10/18/19 10/16/20 10/15/21 Classes End (1st 8 week)
6 7 8 9 10 11 12 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10/21/19 10/19/20 10/18/21 Add/Drop Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 10/21/19 10/19/20 10/18/21 Classes Begin (2nd 8 week)
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 10/21/19 10/19/20 10/18/21 Grades Due (1st 8 week)
27 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 10/28/19 10/26/20 10/25/21 Add/Drop Period Ends (2nd 8 week)

31 10/29/19 10/27/20 10/26/21 Withdrawal Period Begins (2nd 8 week)

11/11/19 11/11/20 11/11/21 College Closed / Veterans Day 
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 11/15/19 11/13/20 11/12/21 Application Due for Fall Graduation (late fees charged after this date)

1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 6 11/16/19 11/14/20 11/16/21 ** Late Grad App Window Opens
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 11/27/19 11/25/20 11/24/21 Last Day for Withdrawal (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11/27/19 11/25/20 11/24/21 No Classes / College Open
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 11/28/19 11/26/20 11/25/21 College Closed / Thanksgiving Holiday
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 30 28 29 30 11/29/19 11/27/20 11/26/21 College Closed / Thanksgiving Holiday

3 Years at a Glance

October, 2020

September, 2019

November, 2019

September, 2021

October, 2021

November, 2021

September, 2020

October, 2019

November, 2020

July, 2020

August, 2019 August, 2020 August, 2021

July, 2019 July, 2021
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 2019‐20, 2020‐21, 2021‐22 Academic and Internal Calendar ‐ DRAFT

2019‐20 2020‐21 2021‐22 **
In
te
rn
al

CALENDAR ITEM (New format suggestions)3 Years at a Glance

12/13/19 12/11/20 12/10/21 Application Due for Fall Graduation (with additional fee)
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 12/13/19 12/11/20 12/10/21 Classes End (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 12/16/19 12/16/20 12/15/21 Grades Due (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12/19/19 12/17/20 12/16/21 LATTE
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 12/20/19 12/18/20 12/17/21 Resident Faculty Last Day of Accountability
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 12/24/19 12/24/20 12/23/21 College Closed / Christmas Holiday
29 30 31 27 28 29 30 31 26 27 28 29 30 31 12/25/19 12/25/20 12/24/21 College Closed / Christmas Holiday

12/31/19 12/31/20 12/30/21 College Closed / New Year's Eve

01/01/20 01/01/21 01/01/22 College Closed / New Year's Day
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 01/13/20 01/11/21 01/10/22 Resident Faculty Return

1 2 3 4 1 2 1 01/20/20 01/18/21 01/17/22 College Closed / Martin Luther King Day
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 01/21/20 01/19/21 01/18/22 Add/Drop Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 01/21/20 01/19/21 01/18/22 Classes Begin (15 & 1st 8 week)
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 01/28/20 01/26/21 01/25/22 Add/Drop Period Ends (15 & 1st 8 week)
26 27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 01/29/20 01/27/21 01/26/22 Application period for Spring & Summer Graduation Opens

31 30 31 01/29/20 01/27/21 01/26/22 Withdrawal Period Begins (15 & 1st 8 week)

02/10/20 02/08/21 02/07/22 Add/Drop Period Begins (12 week)
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 02/10/20 02/08/21 02/07/22 Classes Begin (12 week)

1 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 02/18/20 02/16/21 02/15/22 Add/Drop Period Ends (12 week)
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 02/19/20 02/17/21 02/16/22 Withdrawal Period Begins (12 week)
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 02/17/20 02/15/21 02/21/22 College Closed / President's Day
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 03/02/20 02/26/21 02/28/22 Last Day for Withdrawal (1st 8 week)
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 27 28

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 03/05/20 03/04/21 03/03/22 45th Day
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 03/13/20 03/12/21 03/11/22 Classes End (1st 8 week)
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 03/16/20 03/15/21 03/14/22 Spring Break
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 03/24/20 03/22/21 03/21/22 Add/Drop Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 03/24/20 03/22/21 03/21/22 Classes Begin (2nd 8 week)
29 30 31 28 29 30 31 27 28 29 30 31 03/24/20 03/22/21 03/21/22 Grades Due (1st 8 weeks)

03/31/20 03/29/21 03/28/22 Add/Drop Period Ends (2nd 8 week)

04/01/20 03/30/21 03/29/22 Withdrawal Period Begins (2nd 8 week)
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 04/10/20 04/09/21 04/08/22 Application Due for Spring/Summer Graduation & Commencement Participation 

(late fees charged after this date)
1 2 3 4 1 2 3 1 2 04/11/20 04/10/21 04/09/22 ** Late Spring Grad App Window Opens

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 04/27/20 04/26/21 04/25/22 Last Day for Withdrawal (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 10 11 12 13 14 15 16
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
26 27 28 29 30 25 26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30

April, 2022

March, 2022

January, 2020

April, 2020

February, 2020

April, 2021

December, 2021December, 2019

March, 2020

December, 2020

January, 2021

February, 2021

March, 2021

January, 2022

February, 2022
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 2019‐20, 2020‐21, 2021‐22 Academic and Internal Calendar ‐ DRAFT

2019‐20 2020‐21 2021‐22 **
In
te
rn
al

CALENDAR ITEM (New format suggestions)3 Years at a Glance

05/11/20 05/10/21 05/09/22 Application Due for Spring Graduation (with additional fee)
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 05/11/20 05/10/21 05/09/22 Classes End (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)

1 2 1 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 05/14/20 05/13/21 05/12/22 Grades Due (15, 12 & 2nd 8 week)
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 05/15/20 05/14/21 05/13/22 Commencement / Resident Faculty Last Day of Accountability
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 05/18/20 05/17/21 05/16/22 Four‐Day Work Week Begins
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 05/26/20 06/01/21 05/24/22 Add/Drop Period Begins (8 & 5 week)
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 29 30 31 05/26/20 06/01/21 05/24/22 Classes Begin (8 & 5 week)
31 30 31 05/25/20 05/31/21 05/30/22 College Closed / Memorial Day

06/02/20 06/08/21 05/31/22 Add/Drop Period Ends (8 & 5 week)

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 06/03/20 06/09/21 06/01/22 Withdrawal Period Begins (8 & 5 week)
1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 06/22/20 06/29/21 06/21/22 Last Day for Withdrawal (5 week)

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 06/29/20 07/06/21 06/28/22 Classes End (5 week)
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 06/30/20 07/07/21 06/29/22 Application Due for Summer Graduation (late fees charged after this date)
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 19 20 21 22 23 24 25
28 29 30 27 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30

07/02/20 07/05/21 07/04/22 College Closed / Independence Day
S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S 07/07/21 07/06/22 Application Due for Summer Graduation (late fees charged after this date)

1 2 3 4 1 2 3 1 2 07/06/20 07/08/21 07/06/22 Grades Due (5 week)
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 07/13/20 07/19/21 07/12/22 Last Day for Withdrawal (8 week)
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 07/20/20 07/26/21 07/19/22 Application Due for Summer Graduation (with additional fee)
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 07/20/20 07/26/21 07/19/22 Classes End (8 week)
26 27 28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 07/23/20 07/29/21 07/25/22 Grades Due (8 week)

31 07/31/20 07/31/21 07/31/22 Academic Year Ends

Legend
Bold Date = Calendar Item Scheduled
College Closed / Holidays & Training
College Closed / Spring Break & Summer Hours
Commencement

July, 2022

June, 2022

May, 2022

June, 2020

July, 2020

May, 2020 May, 2021

July, 2021

June, 2021
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December 12, 2018 
 
To the Residents of Mohave County Community College District: 
 
This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report has been created to provide a 
complete financial picture of Mohave Community College District, in order to 
offer transparent information to the public and other interested parties. 
 
This marks the eighth year that the District has produced a Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report as financial reporting and analysis have remained vital 
to both the internal management of the College and concerned taxpayers 
seeking assurance of proper management of public funds. 
 
Mohave Community College continues the distinctive vision for the future by 
prioritizing a debt-free budget. Continuing to focus on the College’s Strategic 
Plan that prioritizes student success, expanding the welding and heating, 
ventilation and air conditioning (HVAC) programs in Bullhead City and Lake 
Havasu City.  Additionally, a new building on the Kingman Campus is currently 
underway that will include space for a new electrical program. 
 
The College has increased and improved financial reporting in every available 
area and this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report reflects those efforts. 
The College will continue to carry out its mission in the most efficient and 
effective way possible to help continue the goal of improving the lives of 
Mohave County citizens through higher education. 
 
Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Michael J. Kearns 
President
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December 12, 2018 

 
To the Residents of Mohave County Community College District: 

 
Mohave Community College District is pleased to present the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2018. The District is responsible for the accuracy, completeness, 
and fairness of the data presented in this report. 
 
To the best of our knowledge, the following report is accurate in all 
material respects. It has been prepared in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles and all standards prescribed by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We believe the report 
contains all disclosures necessary for the reader to understand the 
District’s financial affairs.  Since the cost of a control should not exceed the 
benefits to be derived, the objective within inherent limitations is to 
provide reasonable, rather than absolute assurance, that the financial 
statements are free of any material misstatements. 
 
District management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
adequate financial controls to ensure that assets are protected from loss, 
theft or misuse, and to ensure accounting data is compiled to allow for the 
preparation of financial statements in conformance with GASB and GAAP 
requirements. 
 
Arizona Revised Statutes requires community college districts to prepare 
an annual budgeted expenditure limitation report and annual financial 
statements. The Auditor General or a certified public accountant must 
audit these documents on an annual basis. For the 2017-18 year, the 
statements are audited by Snyder & Butler, CPAs, PLLC with offices in 
Tempe, Arizona. The auditors have provided the District with an 
unmodified opinion meaning they believe the financial statements to be 
fairly and appropriately presented. 
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Institutional Profile 
 
Mohave Community College was formally established in 1970 and now serves the entirety of Mohave 
County through four separate physical campuses located in Kingman, Bullhead City, Lake Havasu City, and 
Colorado City.  
 
Bullhead City is located along the Colorado River across 
from Laughlin, Nevada, the third largest gaming industry 
destination in Nevada. Laughlin is a primary employer for 
the residents of Bullhead City. The campus serves students 
from the surrounding areas of Mohave Valley, Fort 
Mohave, Needles, CA, and Laughlin, NV. 

 

Kingman is the county seat and is located on Interstate 40. 
Kingman’s initial economy was built on mining and 
ranching; however, with the closure of the local mines, 
light industry, tourism and service industries have begun to 
drive the local economy. 

 

Lake Havasu City is located on Lake Havasu, one of four 
major lakes on the Colorado River. Lake Havasu City, home 
of the London Bridge, is a modern, planned community; it 
is also a well-known tourist destination. While its local 
economy includes some light manufacturing, it is primarily 
a tourism-based economy. 

 

North Mohave County, separated from the rest of the MCC 
campuses by the Grand Canyon, is served by a campus in 
Colorado City. Colorado City shares a border with Hildale, 
Utah and serves the residents of the Paiute/Kaibab Indian 
Reservation. The campus also attracts many students from 
Hurricane and St. George, Utah. 

 

In 1971, the first academic year, 27 courses were offered with 1,068 students attending (duplicated 
headcount). The District now offers a wide variety of degrees and certifications for vocational and 
university transfer purposes for approximately 6,000 students.  
 
As a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, Mohave Community College District is subject to the 
oversight of the District’s Governing Board which is comprised of five elected members. According to 
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Arizona Revised Statutes, the Governing Board is charged with managing the business and education 
needs of the District while the administrative staff of the District remains responsible for the operation 
and administration of all District activities. Although the District shares the same geographic boundaries 
with Mohave County, financial accountability over all activities related to public community college 
education in Mohave County is exercised solely by the District. 
 
The District is accredited by the Higher Learning Commission and most recently completed a visit for a 
mid-cycle review in February, 2016. The District met or exceeded the expectations of the Higher Learning 
Commission and was recommended for reaccreditation through 2022. 
 
Performance and Planning 
 
With enrollment and state appropriations stabilized, the District continued an active budget management 
philosophy. Active and responsive budgeting ensured the District was able to finish the year with a positive 
financial gain. 
 
The District maintains a five year budget model based on projected revenues. However, because the 
method for funding higher education across the nation is changing, the District has sought to create more 
adaptable budget models and accounting tools which focus on the primary instructional mission of the 
College. Management tracks the financial health of the College through financial ratios that relate to 
accreditation standards and also serve as a metric for assessing major initiatives from an accounting and 
finance perspective.  
 
Strategically budgeting expenses based on the operational areas of the District has enabled the District to 
better distribute funding to the mission-sensitive areas of the College. Additionally, presenting major 
financial decisions in a way that is not simply reactive, but instead illustrates the effect on the entire 
balance sheet across several years and not solely a given fiscal year budget in addition to connecting the 
data to established benchmarks has enhanced the planning process for the District’s finances.  
 
The District also maintains a five year Facilities Renovation Master Plan. The plan allows for the cyclical 
improvement of College facilities in line with budget considerations. This plan, in addition to academic 
and enrollment specific plans, are all outlined and required by the District’s Governing Board approved 
Strategic Plan. The Plan represents collective decision making and planning by administration, staff, 
students, and community members. It seeks to strengthen the school as a learning-centered institution 
and provide resources, both human and financial, to this end. 
 
Growth and Initiatives 

The District continues to emphasize a number of successful initiatives with key highlights listed below: 
 
 Significant investment in both internal and external LED lighting transition to ensure resource 

conservation and a long-term sustainable utility budget. 
 Continued construction of a building on the Kingman campus for new classrooms, electrical 

programming space and faculty offices. 
 Program expansion for HVAC and welding programs in Bullhead City and Lake Havasu City. 
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Financial Reporting 
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the District was formulated with data from several 
sources, including District financial records, Mohave County, and the US Census Bureau. The District’s 
CAFR is distributed to the District Governing Board and administration, the State Legislature, Federal and 
State agencies, financial institutions, and the citizens of Mohave County. Internal management reports 
are customized and provided to aid in management decision making processes.  See Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis beginning on page 14 as a complement to this transmittal letter. 
 
Independent Audit 
 
Snyder & Butler, CPAs, PLLC performed the audit services for Mohave Community College for the 2017-
18 fiscal year. The Report of the Independent Auditors is included in the financial section of this report on 
page 12. The District received an unmodified opinion for fiscal year 2017-18. 
 
GFOA Certificate of Achievement 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement in Excellence in Financial Reporting to Mohave Community College for its 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2017. In order to be awarded a 
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized 
comprehensive annual financial report. The report must satisfy generally accepted accounting principles 
and applicable legal requirements. 
 
A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The District believes that its current 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievements Program’s 
requirements and will submit the 2017-18 report to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another 
certificate.  
 
Acknowledgement 
 
The District would like to extend genuine appreciation to the staff members in the Financial Services 
Department as well as those throughout the District whose efforts helped compile this report. The efforts 
of Administration and the Governing Board for their continuous efforts to improve Mohave Community 
College through responsible financial planning are also appreciated. Also, many thanks are extended to 
the professionals at Snyder & Butler, CPAs, PLLC for completing a timely and productive audit. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
 
Sonni Marbury 
Chief Financial Officer
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Mission - The mission of Mohave Community College is to be a learning-centered college, serving all 
constituencies, inspiring excellence through innovative learning methodologies and empowering students 
to succeed. 
 
Goals - Mohave Community College strives to provide high quality, affordable and accessible higher 
education to all who seek it. 

 Educational: Mohave Community College supports an academic learning-centered community 
through implementation of quality teaching initiatives, professional development, integration of 
learning technology, development of partnerships, delivery of effective student support services, 
and by providing accurate information and advising. 

 Cultural: Become a conduit between businesses, organizations, foundations and the arts to 
strengthen understanding of the world through education. 

 Civic: Promote active citizenship within the college community. 
 Resources: Provide resources needed to achieve the mission and vision. 

Values Statement - These values govern our actions and our interactions with the members of our 
communities. This statement represents what we value most about the service provided by MCC. 

 Building a Better Tomorrow through Learning: Learning is the core of the Mohave Community 
College mission. We acknowledge the importance of continuous learning to ensure the best 
possible future for everyone. 

 Accountability for the Future: The decisions made today affect individuals in the future. At 
Mohave Community College, we accept responsibility for our actions and decisions. We hold 
ourselves accountable to our students, our communities, and to the generations who come after 
us. MCC decisions will be designed to fulfill our vision for the future, aiming to achieve reliable, 
long-term improvements over short-term expediency. 

 Integrity: We remain committed to our values. Our decisions are consistently and courageously 
made in alignment with our convictions. We consciously foster an atmosphere of openness and 
trust, making data-driven decisions that are balanced by a cultivated sense of compassion. 

 Responsiveness: We take pride in flexibly responding to our changing environment, promptly 
providing programs that are needed by our students and communities. 

 Quality: We aim for excellence in all that we do while embracing the concept of efficiency. 
 Providing a Supportive Environment: Mohave Community College is committed to student 

success. We show respect to all and work to overcome barriers to honesty, trust and sincerity. 
We take pride in providing friendly service to our students and communities. 

 Having Fun: We embrace the concept of having fun and finding joy in our work and services. 

Vision Statement - Mohave Community College is recognized as the center of educational, cultural and 
civic activities by the communities it serves.
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Auditor General of the State of Arizona 
The Governing Board of 
Mohave County Community College District  
 

Report on the Financial Statements  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and discretely presented 
component unit of Mohave County Community College District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as 
listed in the table of contents.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  

Auditors’ Responsibility  

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the 
financial statements of the discretely presented component unit.  Those statements were audited by other auditors 
whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the 
discretely presented component unit, is based solely on the other auditors’ report.  We conducted our audit in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.  The other auditors did not audit the discretely presented 
component unit’s financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions  

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities and discretely 
presented component unit of Mohave County Community College District as of June 30, 2018, and the respective 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  
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Emphasis of matter 

As discussed in note 1 to the financial statements, for the year ended June 30, 2018, the District adopted new 
accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters  

Required Supplementary Information  

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management’s discussion and analysis on pages 14 
through 23 and the schedule of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension/OPEB liability and schedule of 
district pension/OPEB contributions on page 54 through 56 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing 
standards, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.   

Other Information  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise 
the District’s basic financial statements. The introductory and statistical sections listed in the table of contents are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements.  

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.  

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards  

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we will issue our report on our consideration of the District’s 
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters at a future date. The purpose of that report is solely to describe 
the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Tempe, Arizona 
January 15, 2019 
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Our discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance provides an overview of the District’s 
financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2018. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal 
letter which precedes this section and the District’s basic financial statements, which immediately follow. 
 
Mohave County Community College District in 2018 
 
Financial Report 
 
The College presents this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) in accordance with the 
pronouncements issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). In addition to the basic 
financial statements described below, the CAFR presents a statistical section following the required 
footnotes. 
 
The District’s basic financial statements consist of the following: 
 
 The Statement of Net Position reflects the District’s financial position as of June 30, 2018.  It shows 

the various current and noncurrent assets owned or controlled, deferred outflows of resources, 
related liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and the various categories of net position. Capital 
assets are depreciated over their useful life with annual depreciation being reported as a current 
year expense.  
   

 The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position reflects the results of 
operations and other changes for the year ended June 30, 2018.  It shows the various revenues 
and expenses, both operating and non-operating reconciling the beginning net position amount 
to the ending net position amount, which is shown on the Statement of Net Position described 
above. 
 

 The Statement of Cash Flows reflects the inflows and outflows of cash and cash equivalents for 
the year ended June 30, 2018.  

 
GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units, requires 
reporting as a component unit those organizations that raise and hold economic resources for the direct 
benefit of the District.  Accordingly, the financial statements of the Mohave Community College 
Foundation, Inc. are discretely presented.  
 
The following Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) applies only to the District and does not 
reflect financial information from the component unit. 

Although the primary focus of this document is on the results of activity for fiscal year 2017-18, 
comparative data is presented for the previous fiscal year 2016-17.  This MD&A uses the prior fiscal year 
as a reference point in illustrating issues and trends for determining whether the District’s financial health 
may have improved or deteriorated. 
 
Questions concerning any of the information provided in the basic financial statements or requests for 
additional financial information should be addressed to the Financial Services Department, Mohave 
Community College, 1971 Jagerson Ave., Kingman, AZ 86409-1238. 
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Financial Highlights and Analysis 

Fiscal year 2017-18 was highlighted by the continued construction of a new building on the Kingman 
campus that will house classroom space and a large lab area for a new electrical program. Commitment 
by the District continues with improvement to facilities on all campuses and transition to LED lighting in 
both internal and external areas to improve safety while ensuring resource conservation and utility budget 
sustainability. Through a continual active budgeting model, the District was able to maintain capital 
investments and continue to prioritize student-centered initiatives. The District continues to demonstrate 
the ability to maintain financial stability in financially challenging times and still emphasize completing the 
strategic plan initiatives. 
 
The graphs and information on the following pages provide further detail on the 2017-18 fiscal year. 
 
Economic Outlook 
 
Mohave County has continued a challenging wave of economic conditions with the unemployment rate 
at 5.6% in July 2018. The District experiences an inverse effect to economic conditions, where enrollment 
numbers normally increase during years of economic struggle as an unemployed/underemployed 
workforce return to school in order to increase skill levels. The district enrollment reflected this economic 
pattern with a slight increase in enrollment in 2017-18. Preliminary enrollment figures indicate that 
enrollment should experience a minor increase in 2018-19. 
 
The District continues to see itself as a primary driver of economic improvement in the county and as a 
resource for an underemployed workforce to return to work at a greater earning capacity. Continued 
development of career-ready programs are a priority to the District and result in consistent expanded 
enrollment numbers. 
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*The District implemented GASB Statement 75 during fiscal year 2018. The provisions of GASB Statement 
75 required the District to include the Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) of Health Benefit and Long 
Term Disability (LTD).  

The Statement of Net Position for 2017-18 shows an increase in the District’s net position of $7,607,698 
representing an increase of 31.7% over prior year.  This is due to the District’s active budget management, 
significant program expansion on campuses as well as substantial investment in program capital 
equipment needs. 

Current assets are considered those resources that are available to meet the operating needs of the 
District and are convertible to cash within one year. Current assets for the District increased 17.5% over 
last year mainly resulting from strong revenues and active budget management. 

Overall, unrestricted net position increased as a result of the operating performance discussed above as 
well as funding for the new Kingman campus building.  Deferred outflows decreased resulting from a net 
difference between the actuarially determined projected earnings on pension investments and actual 
earnings. 

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, as well as net investment in capital assets, increased by 
6.5% as the new building on the Kingman campus is continuing construction and major renovation of 
other campus facilities including parking lot expansion, and campus safety improvements were completed 
in 2017-18.  

Condensed Statement of Net Position As of 
June 30, 2018 

As of 
June 30, 2017 Increase / (Decrease) 

   
Amount % Change 

Current assets $     27,744,983 $     23,607,026 $    4,137,957 17.5% 

Capital assets, net of depreciation 25,405,204 23,862,886 1,542,318 6.5% 

Net other postemployment benefits asset 72,509 - 72,509 N/A 

     Total assets 53,222,696    47,469,912    5,752,784 12.1% 

Deferred outflows of resources 2,526,724       4,165,110        (1,638,386)   -39.3% 
  

   

Long-term liabilities 20,803,812  22,565,872   (1,762,060) -7.8% 

Other liabilities 956,707 1,171,801 (215,094) -18.4% 

     Total liabilities 21,760,519 23,737,673 (1,977,154) -8.3% 

Deferred inflows of resources 2,350,595 3,866,741 (1,516,146) -39.2% 
 

    

Net position:     
 

    

Net investment in capital assets 25,405,204 23,862,886 1,542,318 6.5% 

Restricted  171,693 85,285 86,408 101.3% 

Unrestricted  6,061,409 82,437 5,978,972 7252.8% 

     Net Position, End of year* $     31,638,306 $     24,030,608 $      7,607,698 31.7% 
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Position 

For the Year 
Ended 

June 30, 2018 

For the Year 
Ended 

June 30, 2017 
Increase / (Decrease) 

 
  Amount % Change 

Operating revenues $       5,645,946 $       5,381,620 $        264,326 4.9% 
Operating expenses     
     Educational and general 29,018,192 28,615,507 402,685 1.4% 
     Auxiliary enterprises 327,094 434,945 (107,851) -24.8% 
     Depreciation 1,299,793 1,191,097 108,696 9.1% 
          Total operating expenses 30,645,079 30,241,549 403,530 1.3% 
Operating loss (24,999,133) (24,859,929) (139,204) -0.6% 
     
Non-operating revenues 32,606,831 31,373,221   1,233,610 3.9% 
Non-operating expenses - 15,241 (15,241) -100.0% 
     
Increase in net position 7,607,698 6,498,051 1,109,647 17.1% 
Net position, Beginning of year*, as restated 24,030,608 17,532,557 6,498,051 37.1% 
Net position, End of year  $     31,638,306 $     24,030,608 $     7,607,698 31.7% 

*The District implemented GASB Statement 75 during fiscal year 2018. The provisions of GASB Statement 
75 required the District to include the Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) with Health Benefit and Long 
Term Disability (LTD).  Therefore, the District’s June 30, 2017 net position has been restated to 
$24,030,608. 

The condensed financial information above highlights the main categories of the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. Tuition and fees minus scholarship allowances are included in 
operating revenue. The construction and acquisition of capital assets, although budgeted and recorded as 
an expense in the accounting system, is not reported as an expense in these statements.  Such 
transactions are instead capitalized and reported as assets – with the systematic allocation of such costs 
(depreciation) expensed over the useful lives of the assets constructed or acquired. The District shows an 
increase in net position attributable to decreased outside expenses, controlled expenses, and substantial 
capital improvements.  
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Revenues by Source 
For the Year 

Ended 
June 30, 2018 

For the Year 
Ended 

June 30, 2017 
Increase / (Decrease) 

 
  Amount % Change 

Operating revenues       
 

Tuition and fees (net of allowances) $      5,049,361 $      4,871,154 $        178,207 3.7% 
Private contracts 431,085 370,550 60,535 16.3% 
Bookstore income 12,105 19,521 (7,416) -38.0% 
Other operating revenues 153,395 120,395 33,000 27.4% 
          Total operating revenues 5,645,946 5,381,620 264,326 4.9% 
     
Non-operating revenues     
Government grants 6,946,483 6,460,432 486,051 7.5% 
Property taxes 23,375,115 22,539,150 835,965 3.7% 
State appropriations 1,658,000 1,820,200 (162,200) -8.9% 
Other    627,233 553,439 73,794 13.3% 
          Total non-operating revenues 32,606,831 31,373,221 1,233,610 3.9% 
     
     
Total revenues $    38,252,777 $    36,754,841 $     1,497,936 4.1% 
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Revenues 

Revenues for the District increased slightly for the 2017-18 year. Property taxes increased 4% as new 
construction in the County increased revenues beyond the 2% increase in the levy approved by the 
Governing Board.  FTSE levels for 2017-18 and previous years are also shown below.  

 

State appropriations revenue continues to decline and represents only less than 4.3% of unrestricted 
revenue for the District.  Government grants revenue increased 7.5% due to increased Pell disbursements 
following the slight increase in enrollment. In summary, the District continues to manage tuition rates and 
expenses to ensure the educational mission of the District is unaffected and college education is accessible 
to all.  
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Expenses 

Total operating expenses for the 2017-18 year increased by 1.3% in comparison to the prior fiscal year. 
The District elected to provide a salary increase averaging 2.4% to MCC employees following the 2016-17 
year though the overall number of budgeted positions decreased. Scholarship expenses increased slightly 
by 4.0% as all funding sources for student assistance were maximized. Depreciation rose by 9.1% as the 
new building construction in North Mohave was included as a depreciable asset upon its completion. The 
District remained committed to energy efficiency projects which in turn stabilized the communications 
and utilities expense. Descriptions of the expenses included in the functional areas of the District are 
shown below. 

Functional Classification Description of Included Expenses 

Instruction Includes all faculty costs and expenses for resources used 
directly for instruction in the classroom. 

Public Service Includes expenses for SBDC (Small Business Development 
Center) 

Academic Support Costs directly supporting the instructional mission. Includes 
library services and program directors 

Student Services Includes costs for Registrar, Financial Aid, Enrollment 
Services and other expenses 

Institutional Support Includes Administration, financial operations, human 
resources, computing support and other expenses 

Operation & Maintenance of Plant Costs relating to the upkeep and operation of physical plant 
including grounds and repair 

Scholarships Expenses for the awarding of scholarships and grants from 
Institutional, Federal, or State funds 

Auxiliary Enterprises District operated bookstore costs and public relations 
expenses are included 

Depreciation Capital assets are expensed over the course of their 
estimated useful lives 
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Operating Expenses by Function 
For the Year 

Ended 
June 30, 2018 

For the Year 
Ended  

June 30, 2017 
Increase / (Decrease) 

Operating Expenses   Amount % Change 

Education and General:     

     Instruction $     11,008,405 $     10,681,488 $        326,918 3.1% 

     Public Service 88,148 126,997 (38,849) -30.6% 

     Academic Support 2,935,545 2,877,590 57,955 2.0% 

     Student Services 3,011,035 3,041,063 (30,028) -1.0% 

     Institutional Support 5,022,945 5,254,459 (231,514) -4.4% 

     Operation & Maintenance of Plant 2,853,952 2,693,854 160,098 5.9% 

     Scholarships 4,098,162 3,940,056 158,106 4.0% 

Auxiliary Enterprises 327,094 434,945 (107,851) -24,8% 

Depreciation 1,299,793 1,191,097 107,696 9.1% 

          Total Operating Expense 30,645,079 30,241,549 403,530 1.3% 

Non-operating Expense     

Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets - 15,241 (15,241) -100.0% 

          Total Non-operating Expenses - 15,241 (15,241) -100.0% 

Total Expenses * $    30,645,079 $    30,256,790 $       388,289 1.3% 

*The District implemented GASB Statement 75 during fiscal year 2018. The provisions of GASB Statement 
75 required the District to include the Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) of Health Benefit and Long 
Term Disability (LTD).  
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*The District implemented GASB Statement 75 during the fiscal year 2018. The provisions of GASB 
Statement 75 required the District to include the Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) of Health Benefit 
and Long Term Disability (LTD).  
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Operating Expenses by Natural 
Classification 

For the Year 
Ended 

June 30, 2018 

For the Year 
Ended 

June 30, 2017 
Increase / (Decrease) 

   
Amount % 

Change 
Personnel Services  $   18,532,112       $   18,331,146      $     200,966 1.1% 
Contract Services 2,443,677 2,580,235 (136,558) -5.3% 
Supplies & Other Services 3,032,013 2,675,897 356,116   13.3% 
Communications & Utilities 977,753 1,028,760 (51,007) -5.0% 
Scholarships 3,955,821 3,940,056 15,765 0.4% 
Depreciation 1,299,793 1,191,097 108,696 9.1% 
Other 403,910 494,358  (90,448) -18.3% 
Total Operating Expenses *  $   30,645,079      $   30,241,549       $     403,530 1.3% 
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Capital Assets and Debt Management 
  
Capital assets increased by $1,542,318 net of accumulated depreciation. This was due to the new 
construction project of a classroom and lab building on the Kingman campus as well as fleet vehicle 
replacements. Physical asset reinvestment ratio increased due to reclassifying the North Mohave building 
construction from construction in process to assets. The 2016-17 ratio has been adjusted to reflect actual 
figures.  
 
The District seeks to budget capital expenditures at least at the level of expected depreciation in order for 
facilities to stay current and not fall into extended states of disrepair requiring more advanced and 
expensive remodels and upgrades. The graph below illustrates the amount used for the purchase of 
capital assets versus depreciation expense for the last five fiscal years. As demonstrated for the past 3 
years, a ratio greater than 1:1 indicates a growth in facilities. 

The District has developed a five year facilities update plan. The plan calls for 20% of the existing buildings 
and classroom space to be renovated or updated each year. After the five year cycle is completed each 
campus will have received a renovation of all facilities. Further information on the District’s capital asset 
activity is available in Note 5 of the notes to the financial statements. 

The District carries no debt in order to improve current cash flow. The District Governing Board has sought 
to restrict the use of debt as a means of financing capital projects and has approved of debt reduction 
wherever possible. 
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Statement of Net Position—Primary Government 
June 30, 2018 
 Business-Type 

 Activities 
Assets  
Current assets:  
     Cash and cash equivalents  $     14,506,291 
     Investments 9,094,793 
     Receivables:  
          Accounts 41,749  
          Donors 3,885 
          Property taxes 1,760,681 
          Government grants and contracts 1,762,197 
          Student receivables (net of allowances of $139,687) 25,845 
          Other 2,897 
     Prepaid items 498,375 
     Restricted assets:  
          Cash and cash equivalents 48,270 
                    Total current assets 27,744,983 

  
Noncurrent assets:  
     Net other postemployment benefits asset 72,509 
     Capital assets, net: 25,405,204 
                    Total noncurrent assets 25,477,713 

  
                    Total assets  53,222,696 
  
Deferred Outflows of Resources  
 Deferred outflows related to pensions and other postemployment 

benefits 2,526,724 
                    Total deferred outflows of resources $      2,526,724  

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Statement of Net Position—Primary Government 
June 30, 2018 (Continued) 

 Business-Type 
 Activities 

Liabilities  
Current liabilities:   
     Accounts payable $          554,267 
     Accrued payroll and employee benefits 200,673 
     Due to federal government 49,727 
     Deposits held in custody for others 48,270 
     Unearned revenues 85,825 
     Current portion of compensated absences payable 17,945 
                    Total current liabilities 956,707 
  
Noncurrent liabilities:  
     Compensated absences payable 101,695 
     Net pension and other postemployment benefits liability 20,702,117 
                    Total noncurrent liabilities 20,803,812 

  
                    Total liabilities 21,760,519 

  
Deferred Inflows of Resources  
     Deferred inflows related to pensions and other postemployment benefits 2,350,595 
                    Total deferred inflows of resources 2,350,595 
  
Net Position  
     Net investment in capital assets  25,405,204 
     Restricted:  
          Expendable:  
               Grant and contracts 168,532 
               Capital projects 3,161 
     Unrestricted 6,061,409 

  
                    Total net position $    31,638,306 

  
  
  

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Statement of Net Position—Component Unit 

June 30, 2018 
Assets 

 Mohave Community 
College Foundation 

Current assets  
     Cash and cash equivalents - unrestricted $        262,643 
     Investments - unrestricted 824,773 
     Accounts receivable 2,613 
     Prepaid expenses 72 
               Total current assets 1,090,101 
  
Property and equipment  
     Furniture, fixtures & equipment 3,802 
          Less: accumulated depreciation (3,802) 
               Total fixed assets - 
  
Other assets  
     Transfers 12,764 
     Investments - restricted 3,370,341 
     Unimproved real estate 232,094 
               Total other assets 3,615,199 
               Total assets $      4,705,300 

  
Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current Liabilities  
     Accounts payable $                 420 
     Program liabilities 5,296 
     Scholarship Liabilities 55,071 
               Total current liabilities 60,787 
  
               Total liabilities 60,787 
  
Net position  
     Net position – permanently restricted 2,292,313 
     Net position – temporarily restricted 723,927 
     Net position – unrestricted 1,628,273 
               Total net position 4,644,513 
               Total liabilities and net position $      4,705,300 

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position—
Primary Government 
Year ended June 30, 2018 

 Business-Type Activities 
Operating revenues:  
     Tuition and fees (net of scholarship allowances of $3,899,110) $      5,049,361 
     Private contracts 431,085 
     Bookstore income 12,105 
     Food service income 6,953 
     Other 146,442 
                    Total operating revenues 5,645,946 
  
Operating expenses:  
     Educational and general:  
          Instruction 11,008,405 
          Public service 88,148 
          Academic support 2,935,545 
          Student services 3,011,035 
          Institutional support 5,022,945 
          Operation and maintenance of plant 2,853,952 
          Scholarships 4,098,162 
     Auxiliary enterprises 327,094 
     Depreciation 1,299,793 
                    Total operating expenses 30,645,079 
  
                    Operating loss (24,999,133) 
  
Nonoperating revenues:  
     Property taxes 23,375,115 
     State appropriations 1,658,000 
     Share of state sales taxes 545,269 
     Government grants  6,946,483 
     Investment earnings 80,647 
     Gain on disposal of capital assets 1,317 
                    Total nonoperating revenues 32,606,831 

  
          Increase in net position 7,607,698 
  
Net position as restated, July 1, 2017 24,030,608 
  
Net position, June 30, 2018 $     31,638,306 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Statement of Activities – Component Unit 
Year ended June 30, 2018 
 

Unrestricted  
 Temporarily 

Restricted  
 Permanently 

Restricted  
 

Totals 
Public support and 
revenues: 

       

     Contributions $          2,550  $     300,374  $                    -  $       302,924 
     Member dues 

contributions 27,290  -  -  27,290 

     In-kind contributions 512  10,903  -  11,415 
     Interest and dividend 

income 324,973  -  -  324,973 

     Special event income 48,592  -  -  48,592 
 403,917  311,277  -  715,194 
        
     Releases from 

restrictions 314,321  (314,321)  -  - 

          Total public support 
and revenues 718,238  (3,044)  -  715,194 

        
Expenses and losses:        
     Program service 318,349  -  -  318,349 
     Administration 31,044  -  -  31,044 
     Fundraising 36,192  -  -  36,192 
          Total expenses and 

losses 385,585  -  -  385,585 

        
Increase (decrease) in net 
assets 332,653  (3,044)  -  329,609 

        
Net assets, beginning of 
year 1,770,047  887,145  1,602,869  4,260,061 

Prior period adjustment  54,843  -  -  54,843 
Transfers  (529,270)  (160,174)  689,444  - 
Net assets at end of year $   1,628,273  $     723,927  $   2,292,313  $   4,644,513 

  

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Statement of Cash Flows—Primary Government 
Year ended June 30, 2018 

 Business-Type 
 Activities 

Cash flows from operating activities:  
     Tuition and fees $      5,045,070 
     Contracts 427,200 
     Bookstore receipts 12,105 
     Food services receipts 6,953 
     Other receipts 146,176 
     Payments to employees for services (20,459,271) 
     Payments to suppliers for goods/services (6,744,028) 
     Payments to students for scholarships (4,098,162) 
                    Net cash used for operating activities (25,663,956) 

  
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:  
     Grants 6,372,665 
     Property taxes 23,529,132 
     State appropriations 1,658,000 
     Share of state sales taxes 545,269 
     Federal direct lending receipts 3,372,871 
     Federal direct lending disbursements (3,378,355) 
     Deposits held in custody for others received 168,116 
     Deposits held in custody for others disbursed (177,493) 
                    Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 32,090,205 

  
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:  
     Acquisition of capital assets (2,843,907) 
     Proceeds from sale of capital assets 3,114 
                    Net cash used for capital and related financing activities (2,840,793) 

  
Cash flows from investing activities:  
     Interest 80,647 
     Purchases of investments (3,073,146) 
                    Net cash provided by investing activities (2,992,499) 

  
                    Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 592,957 

  
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2017 13,961,604 

  
Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2018 $     14,554,561 

 
  
  

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Statement of Cash Flows—Primary Government 
Year ended June 30, 2018 (Continued) 
  

 Business-Type 
 Activities 
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the Statement of Net Position:  
  
     Cash and cash equivalents per the statement of net position $     14,506,291 
     Restricted cash and cash equivalents 48,270 
                    Total $     14,554,561 
  
  
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities:  

     Operating loss $   (24,999,133) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used for operating activities  
     Depreciation 1,299,793 
Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of 
resources:  

     Decrease (increase) in net other postemployment benefits asset (72,509) 
     Increase (decrease) in net pension and other postemployment benefits liability (1,736,848) 
     Decrease (increase) in deferred outflows related to pensions and other postemployment 

benefits 1,638,386 

     Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows related to pensions and other postemployment 
benefits (1,516,146) 

     Decrease (increase) in student receivables 1,473,801 
     Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (505) 
     Decrease (increase) in donor receivables (3,885) 
     Decrease (increase) in other receivables 239 
     Decrease (increase) in prepaid items (43,765) 
     Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 14,750 
     Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue (1,478,092) 
     Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll (210,379) 
     Increase (decrease) in compensated absences payable (29,663) 
  
Net cash used for operating activities $   (25,663,956) 
  

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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Note 1 –  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Mohave County Community College District’s accounting policies conform to generally accepted 
accounting principles applicable to public institutions engaged only in business-type activities adopted by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, as amended by 
GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017.  GASB Statement No. 75 established standards for measuring and 
recognizing net assets or liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and 
expenses/expenditures related to other postemployment benefits (OPEB) provided through defined 
benefit OPEB plans. In addition, Statement No. 75 requires disclosure of information related to OPEB. 
 
A. Reporting Entity 
 
The District is a special-purpose government that a separately elected governing body governs. It is legally 
separate and fiscally independent of other state and local governments. The accompanying financial 
statements present the activities of the District (the primary government) and its discretely presented 
component unit, the Mohave Community College Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation). 
 
The Mohave Community College Foundation is a legally separate, tax-exempt organization. It acts 
primarily as a fund-raising organization that receives gifts and bequests, administers those resources, and 
disburses payments to or on behalf of the District for scholarships and programs. Although the District 
does not control the timing or amount of receipts from the Foundation, the Foundation’s restricted 
resources can be used only by, or for the benefit of, the District or its constituents. Consequently, the 
Foundation is considered a component unit of the District and is discretely presented in the District’s 
financial statements. 
 
For financial reporting purposes, the Foundation follows the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
statements for not-for-profit organizations. As such, certain revenue recognition criteria and presentation 
features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and presentation features. No modifications 
have been made to the Foundation’s financial information included in the District’s financial report. 
Accordingly, those financial statements have been reported on separate pages following the District’s 
respective counterpart financial statements. For financial reporting purposes, only the Foundation’s 
statements of financial position and activities are included in the District’s financial statements as required 
by generally accepted accounting principles for public colleges and universities. The Foundation has a June 
30 year-end. 
 
During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Foundation distributed $314,321 to the District for both 
restricted and unrestricted purposes. Complete financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained 
from https://foundation.mohave.edu/about/financial-statements/. 
 

https://foundation.mohave.edu/about/financial-statements/
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B. Basis of Presentation and Accounting 

The financial statements include a statement of net position; a statement of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position; and a statement of cash flows. 
 
A statement of net position provides information about the District’s assets, deferred outflows of 
resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position at the end of the fiscal year. Assets 
and liabilities are classified as either current or noncurrent. Net position is classified according to external 
donor restrictions or availability of assets to satisfy the District’s obligations. Net investment in capital 
assets represents the value of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, less any outstanding debt 
incurred to acquire or construct the assets.  Nonexpendable restricted net position includes gifts that have 
been received for endowment purposes and federal contributions for the Federal Perkins Loan Program, 
the corpus of which cannot be expended. Expendable restricted net position represents grants, contracts, 
gifts, and other resources that have been externally restricted for specific purposes. Unrestricted net 
position consists of all other resources, including those that have been designated by management to be 
used for other than general operating purposes. 
 
A statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position provides information about the District’s 
financial activities during the year. Revenues and expenses are classified as either operating or non-
operating, and all changes in net position are reported. Operating revenues and expenses generally result 
from exchange transactions. Accordingly, revenues, such as tuition, bookstore, and food service charges, 
in which each party receives and gives up essentially equal values, are considered operating revenues. 
Other revenues, such as property taxes, state appropriations, and government grants, result from 
transactions in which the parties do not exchange equal values and are considered non-operating 
revenues. Operating expenses include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. Other expenses, such as interest expense, are considered non-operating 
expenses. 
 
A statement of cash flows provides information about the District’s sources and uses of cash and cash 
equivalents during the year. Increases and decreases in cash and cash equivalents are classified as 
operating, non-capital financing, capital financing, or investing. 
 
The financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual 
basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities 
are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Property taxes are recognized as 
revenue in the year for which they are levied. State appropriations are recognized as revenue in the year 
in which the appropriation is first made available for use. Grants and donations are recognized as revenue 
as soon as all eligibility requirements the provider imposed have been met. It is the District’s policy to first 
apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted resources are available. 
 
The effect of internal activity has been eliminated from the financial statements. 
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C. Cash and Investments 
 
For the statement of cash flows, the District’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on 
hand, demand deposits, and cash and investments held by the County Treasurer. All investments are 
stated at fair value.  
 
D. Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are reported at actual cost (or estimated historical cost if historical records are not 
available). Donated assets are reported at acquisition value. 
 
Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital asset 
accounts), depreciation methods, and estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows: 
 

 Capitalization 
Threshold 

Depreciation 
Method Estimated Useful Life 

Land $1 N/A N/A 
Land Improvements $1 N/A N/A 
Buildings $5,000 Straight-line 20-40 years 
Equipment $5,000 Straight-line 5 years 
Improvements other 
than buildings $5,000 Straight-line 15 years 

Library Books $1 Straight-line 10 years 
Software $5,000 Straight-line 15 years 

 
E. Investment Earnings 
 
Investment earnings are composed of interest, dividends, and net changes in the fair value of applicable 
investments. 
 
F. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources  
 
The statement of net position includes separate sections for deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies 
to future periods that will be recognized as an expense in future periods. Deferred inflows of resources 
represent an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and will be recognized as a revenue 
in future periods. 
 
G. Postemployment Benefits  
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB) asset and 
liabilities, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB, 
and pension and OPEB expense, information about the plans’ fiduciary net position and additions 
to/deductions from the plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by the plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) 
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are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at 
fair value. 
 
H. Compensated Absences 
 
Compensated absences payable consists of Paid Time Off (PTO) and Paid Sick Leave (PSL) that employees 
earn based on services already rendered. PTO provides time off to cover vacation, sick leave, and 
personal/emergency leave. All regular full-time, benefits-eligible, non-temporary employees, including 
resident faculty scheduled to work less than twelve months annually, are eligible to accrue PTO credits.  
 
In accordance with Arizona Proposition 206, all employees are entitled to accrue a minimum of one hour 
of earned paid sick leave for every 30 hours worked. Employers must also allow the use of forty hours sick 
leave per year without penalty. PSL provides time off to cover medical care or mental or physical illness, 
injury, or health condition; a public health emergency; and an absence due to domestic violence, sexual 
violence, abuse, or stalking affecting the employee or any of the employee’s family members. 
 
Employees may accrue up to 480 hours (60 days) but are subject to a $4,500 cap on hours that may apply 
to termination payout. The Employee Leave Buyback program requires a minimum of 10 years of service 
to be eligible for payout calculated at a flat rate of $75 per day. Employees may also take part in a program 
that uses donated unused leave to be used by staff and faculty in a catastrophic health situation. 
 
I. Scholarship Allowances 
 
A scholarship allowance is the difference between the stated charge for goods and services the District 
provides and the amount that the student or third parties making payments on the student’s behalf pays. 
Accordingly, some types of student financial aid, such as Pell grants and scholarships the District awards, 
are considered scholarship allowances. These allowances are netted against tuition and fees revenues in 
the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 
 
Note 2 –  Change in Accounting Principle 

Net position as of July 1, 2017, has been restated as follows for the implementation of GASB Statement 
No. 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB), as 
amended by GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017.  

 Primary 
Government 

Net position as previously reported at June 30, 2017 $    24,023,191 
Prior period adjustment – implementation of GASB 75:  
     Net OPEB liability (measurement date as of June 30, 2016) (85,288) 
     Deferred Outflows – District contributions made during fiscal year 2017 92,705 
          Total prior year adjustment 7,417 
Net position as restated, July 1, 2017 $    24,030,608 
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Note 3 –  Deposits and Investments 

Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) requires the District to deposit special tax levies for the District’s 
maintenance or capital outlay with the County Treasurer. A.R.S does not require the District to deposit 
other public monies in its custody with the County Treasurer; however, the District must act as a prudent 
person dealing with another’s property when making investment decisions about those monies. A.R.S. 
requires collateral for deposits at 102 percent of all deposits not covered by federal depository insurance. 
A.R.S. does not include any requirements for credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, or 
foreign currency risk for the District’s investments. 
 
Deposits — As of June 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the District’s deposits were $14,452,187, and the 
bank balance was $14,733,439. The District does not have a formal policy with respect to custodial credit 
risk. 
 
Investments — The District’s investments as of June 30, 2018, were as follows:  

 
External investment pools measured at fair value Amount 
County Treasurer’s investment pool  $  101,604 
Arizona State Treasurer’s investment pool 500  $ 9,094,793 
Total  $ 9,196,397 

 
Investments in the State Treasurer’s investment pools are valued at the pool’s share price multiplied by 
the number of shares the District held. The fair value of a participant’s position in the pools 
approximates the value of that participant’s pool shares. The investment in the County Treasurer’s pool 
is valued using the District’s proportionate participation in the pool because the pool’s structure does 
not provide for shares. The State Board of Investment provides oversight for the State Treasurer’s 
investment pools. No comparable oversight is provided for the County Treasurer’s investment pool. 
 
Credit Risk – The District does not have a formal policy with respect to credit risk. All investment 
considerations are brought before the Board of Governors for approval. At June 30, 2018, credit risk for 
the District’s investments was as follows: 
 

Investment Type Rating Rating Agency Amount 
County Treasurer’s investment pool Unrated Not applicable $ 101,604 
Arizona State Treasurer’s investment pool 500 Unrated Not applicable $ 9,094,793 
Total   $ 9,196,397 

 
Interest Rate Risk – The District does not have a formal policy with respect to the interest rate risk. All 
investment considerations are brought before the Board of Governors for approval.  
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At June 30, 2018, the District had the following investments in debt securities: 
 

Investment Type Amount 
Investment 
Maturities  

Less Than 1 Year 

Investment 
Maturities 
1-5 Years 

County Treasurer’s investment pool $ 101,604  $ 101,604  - 
Arizona State Treasurer’s investment pool 500 $ 9,094,793   - $ 9,094,793 
Total $ 9,196,397  $ 101,604 $ 9,094,793 

 
A reconciliation of cash, deposits, and investments to amounts shown on the Statement of Net Position 
follows: 
 

 
Note 4 – Receivables 
 
Property taxes receivable represents taxes levied by the District which have yet to be collected. The 
County has maintained a historical collection rate close to 100%. As a result, the District does not 
provide for allowance for doubtful tax collections. Student receivables are reported as net of allowance 
for doubtful accounts. 
 
  

Cash, deposits, and investments:                             Statement of Net Position: 

Cash on hand $ 770 Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,506,291 
  Investments  9,094,793 
Amount of deposits  14,452,187 Restricted assets:  
Amount of investments  9,196,397 Cash and cash equivalents  48,270 
Total $ 23,649,354 Total $ 23,649,354 



[Financial Statements] Financial Section 

  

 
37 

Note 5 – Capital Assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018, was as follows: 

 
Note 6 –  Construction and Other Commitments  
 
The District has completed the new capital project of a multi-purpose building on the North Mohave 
Campus in Colorado City and the facility is now fully operational.  At June 30, 2018, the District had spent 
a total of $2,083,864 on this project.  This project and other various capital projects are funded without 
incurring new debt and will draw on reserve funds already in place.  As of June 30, 2018, another new 
building on the Kingman campus has been contracted at a construction cost of $2,000,000 of which 
$191,530 has been paid to the contractor.  Anticipated completion date of this building is November 2019. 
 
  

 Balance 
July 1, 2017 Increases Decreases Balance 

June 30, 2018 
Capital assets not being depreciated:     

  Land $          638,098 - - $            638,098 
  Construction in progress 132,150 $ 2,173,157 $ 2,089,035 216,272 
    Total capital assets not being depreciated         770,248 2,173,157 2,089,035 854,370 
Capital assets being depreciated:     
  Buildings and improvements 36,913,869 2,553,292 - 39,467,162 
  Improvements other than buildings 3,818,590 67,670 - 3,886,260 
  Equipment 4,102,914 104,894 31,041 4,176,767 
  Library books 1,993,459 33,928 - 2,027,387 
  Software systems 1,570,088 - - 1,570,088 
    Total capital assets being depreciated 48,398,920 2,759,785 31,041 51,127,664 
Less accumulated depreciation for:     
  Buildings and improvements 15,970,244 867,505 - 16,837,749 
  Improvements other than buildings 3,252,435 96,312 - 3,348,747 
  Equipment 3,466,909 199,739 29,243 3,637,405 
  Library books 1,809,599 31,564 - 1,841,163 
  Software systems 807,095 104,673 - 911,768 
    Total accumulated depreciation 25,306,282 1,299,793 29,243 26,576,832 
    Total capital assets being depreciated, net 23,092,638 1,459,992 1,798 24,550,832 
Capital assets, net $    23,862,886 3,633,149 2,090,833 $       25,405,202 
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Note 7 – Long-Term Liabilities 
 
The following schedule details the District’s long-term liability and obligation activity for the year ended 
June 30, 2018: 

 

 
Balance 

July 1, 2017 Additions Reductions Balance 
June 30, 2018 

Due 
within 
1 year 

Net pension and other 
postemployment liability $ 22,438,965 $            - $1,736,848 $ 20,702,117 - 

Compensated absences                                                                               
payable 149,302  24,322      53,984 119,640 $ 17,945 

Total long-term liabilities $ 22,588,267 $ 24,322 $1,790,832 $ 20,821,757 $ 17,945 
 
Compensated absences payable amount indicated as due within one year is an estimate based on the 
longevity of the current employees eligible for payout and average employee turnover. 
 
Note 8 – Risk Management 
 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District participates with 
other community college districts and Arizona school districts in the Arizona School Risk Retention Trust, 
Inc. a public entity risk pool. The Trust insures the District against liabilities arising from general liability, 
professional liability, property, and commercial crime risks.  
 
The Trust’s operating agreement includes a provision for member assessment in the event that total 
claims paid by the Trust exceed the contributions and reserves in any one year. The assessment is limited 
to the contribution amount paid by the District during the year in which the assessment is applied. The 
Trust has never had such an assessment. The District also carries commercial insurance for other risks of 
loss, including: workers’ compensation and student field trips. Settled claims resulting from these risks 
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 
The District is a member of the Arizona School Boards Association Insurance Trust (Trust), a public entity 
risk pool formed to provide health care benefits to employees of participating school districts and 
community college districts. The District was responsible for paying a portion of the premiums for eligible 
employees, but required those employees to pay premiums for spousal and dependent coverage. The 
District’s contributions are reported as expenses in the financial statements. The Trust’s assets are 
managed by a separate board of trustees. Should the District withdraw from the Trust, the District shall 
have no claim to any portion of any reserves or fund balance of the Trust. Whether the District withdraws 
or the Trust become insolvent, the District remains liable for assessments for liabilities of the Trust 
incurred during the District’s period of membership in the Trust.  
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Note 9 –  Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits 
 
Plan Descriptions — District employees participate in the Arizona State Retirement System (ASRS). The 
ASRS administers a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit health insurance premium benefit (OPEB) plan, and a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit long-term disability (OPEB) plan. The Arizona State Retirement System Board 
governs the ASRS according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Articles 2 and 2.1. The ASRS is 
a component unit of the State of Arizona. The ASRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes 
its financial statements and required supplementary information. The report is available on its website at 
www.azasrs.gov. 
 
Benefits provided — The ASRS provides retirement, health insurance premium supplement, long-term 
disability, and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefit terms. Retirement benefits are 
calculated on the basis of age, average monthly compensation, and service credit as follows:  

Retirement Initial Membership Date:  
Before July 1, 2011 On or After July 1, 2011 

Years of service and age to 
receive benefit 

Sum of years and age equals 80 
10 years, age 62 

5 years, age 50 
any years, age 65 

30 years, age 55 
25 years, age 60 
10 years, age 62 
5 years. Age 50 

any years, age 65 
Final average salary is based 
on 

Highest 36 consecutive months of 
last 120 month 

Highest 60 consecutive 
months of last 120 months 

Benefit percent per year of 
service 2.1% to 2.3% 2.1% to 2.3% 

 
*with actuarially reduced benefits. 
 
Retirement benefits for members who joined the ASRS prior to September 13, 2013, are subject to 
automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on excess investment earning. Members with a membership 
date on or after September 13, 2013, are not eligible for cost-of-living adjustments. Survivor benefits are 
payable upon a member’s death. For retired members, the retirement benefit option chosen determines 
the survivor benefit. For all other members, the beneficiary is entitled to the member’s account balance 
that includes the member’s contributions and employer’s contributions, plus interest earned.  
 
Health insurance premium benefits are available to retired or disabled members with 5 years of credited 
service. The benefits are payable only with respect to allowable health insurance premiums for which the 
member is responsible. For members with 10 or more years of service, benefits range from $150 per 
month to $260 per month depending on the age of the member and dependents. For members with 5 to 
9 years of service, the benefits are the same dollar amounts as above multiplied by a vesting fraction 
based on completed years of service. 
 
Active members are eligible for a monthly long-term disability benefit equal to two-thirds of monthly 
earnings. Members receiving benefits continue to earn service credit up to their normal retirement dates. 

http://www.azasrs.gov/
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Members with long-term disability commencement dates after June 30, 1999, are limited to 30 years of 
service or the service on record as of the effective disability date if their service is greater than 30 years. 
 
Contributions — In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations determine active 
member and employer contribution requirements. The combined active member and employer 
contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of benefits employees earn during the year, with an 
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. For the year ended June 30, 2018, statute 
required active ASRS members to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 11.5 percent (11.34 
percent for retirement and 0.16 percent for long-term disability) of the members’ annual covered 
payroll, and the District was required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 11.5 
percent (10.9 percent for retirement, 0.44 percent for health insurance premium benefit, and 0.16 
percent for long-term disability) of the active members’ annual covered payroll. In addition, the District 
was required by statute to contribute at the actuarially determined rate of 9.49 percent (9.26 percent 
for retirement, 0.1 percent for health insurance premium benefit, and 0.13 percent for long-term 
disability) of annual covered payroll of retired members who worked for the District in positions that an 
employee who contributes to the ASRS would typically fill. The District’s contributions to the pension, 
health insurance premium benefit, and long-term disability plans for the year ended June 30, 2018, were 
$1,404,762, $55,978 and $20,605 respectively.  
 
Liability — At June 30, 2018, the District reported the following assets and liabilities for its proportionate 
share of the ASRS’s net pension/OPEB asset or liability.  
  

ASRS Net pension/OPEB  
(asset) liability 

Pension $  20,654,937       
Health insurance premium benefit (72,509)        
Long-term disability          $          47,180       

 
The net asset and net liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2017. The total liability used to calculate 
the net asset or net liability was determined using updated procedures to roll forward the total liability 
from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, to the measurement date of June 30, 2017. The total 
pension liability as of June 30, 2017, reflects a change in actuarial assumption related to changes in loads 
for future potential permanent benefit increases.  
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The District’s proportion of the net asset or net liability was based on the District’s actual contributions to 
the plan relative to the total of all participating employers’ contributions for the year ended June 30, 2017. 
The District’s proportion measured as of June 30, 2017, and the change from its proportions measured as 
of June 30, 2016 were:  
 

ASRS Proportion 
June 30, 2017 

Increase (decrease) from 
June 30, 2016 

Pension 0.13259%       (0.00590%) 
Health insurance premium benefit 0.13319%       NA 
Long-term disability       0.13016%       NA 

 
The net asset and net liabilities measured as of June 30, 2018, will reflect changes of actuarial assumptions 
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2016. The 
change in the District’s net asset and net liabilities as a result of these changes is not known.  
 
Expense — For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized the following pension and OPEB 
expense.  
 

ASRS Net pension/OPEB expense 

Pension $  1,681,418       
Health insurance premium benefit 11,106       
Long-term disability          $      (5,406)       

 
Deferred outflows/inflows of resources — At June 30, 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and OPEB from the following sources: 
 

Pension Deferred Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 

Differences between expected and actual 
experience $                 148,288 $                 619,349 

Changes of assumptions or other inputs - 617,620 
Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan 
investments 

897,091 - 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between district contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

- 1,024,831 

District contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 1,404,762 - 

Total $              2,450,141 $                 2,261,800 
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Health insurance premium benefit Deferred Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 

Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan 
investments 

- $           81,642 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between district contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

- 88 

District contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date $             55 978 - 

Total $             55 978 $           81,730 
 

Long-term disability Deferred Outflows of 
Resources 

Deferred Inflows of 
Resources 

Net difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan 
investments 

- $             7,058 

Changes in proportion and differences 
between district contributions and 
proportionate share of contributions 

- 7 

District contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date $              20,605 - 

Total $              20,605 $             7,065 
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The amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to ASRS pensions and OPEB resulting 
from district contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the 
net asset or a reduction of the net liability in the year ending June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to ASRS pensions and OPEB will 
be recognized as expenses as follows: 
 

Year ending June 30 Pension Health insurance 
premium benefit 

Long-term 
disability 

2019 (1,446,212) (20,429) (1,765) 
2020      511,913 (20,429) (1,765) 
2021      193,004 (20,429) (1,765) 
2022    (475,125) (20,429) (1,765) 
2023                  -         (14)         (1) 

Thereafter - - (4) 
 
Actuarial assumptions — The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total pension/OPEB 
liability are as follows: 
 

Actuarial valuation date June 30, 2016  
Actuarial roll forward date June 30, 2017  
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal  
Investment rate of return 8%  

Projected salary increases 3–6.75% for pensions/not applicable for 
OPEB  

Inflation 3%  

Permanent benefit increase Included for pensions/not applicable for 
OPEB  

Mortality rates 1994 GAM Scale BB  
Healthcare cost trend rate Not applicable 

 
Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2012.  
 
  



[Financial Statements] Financial Section 

  

 
44 

The long-term expected rate of return on ASRS plan investments was determined to be 8.7 percent using 
a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target 
allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized 
in the following table: 
 

Asset Class Target Allocation Long-Term Expected 
Real Rate of Return 

Equity  58% 6.73% 
Fixed income  25% 3.70% 
Real estate  10% 4.25% 
Multi-asset 5% 3.41% 
Commodities 2% 3.84% 
Total       100%  

 
Discount rate — The discount rate used to measure the ASRS total pension/OPEB liability was 8 percent, 
which is less than the long-term expected rate of return of 8.7 percent. The projection of cash flows used 
to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from participating employers will be made 
based on the actuarially determined rates based on the ASRS Board’s funding policy, which establishes 
the contractually required rate under Arizona statute. Based on those assumptions, the plans’ fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods 
of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension/OPEB liability. 
 
Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the ASRS net pension/OPEB (asset) liability to changes 
in the discount rate — The following table presents the District’s proportionate share of the net 
pension/OPEB (asset) liability calculated using the discount rate of 8 percent, as well as what the District’s 
proportionate share of the net pension/OPEB (asset) liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (7 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (9 percent) than 
the current rate:  
 

District’s proportionate share of the 1% Decrease 
(7%) 

Current Discount 
Rate (8%) 

1% Increase  
(9%) 

Net pension liability  $   26,510,971 $     20,654,937 $   15,761,720 
Net health insurance premium 
benefit liability (asset) $         120,416           $          (72,509) $      (236,462) 

Net long-term disability liability $           56,416  $             47,180  $           39,350   
 
Plan fiduciary net position – Detailed information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued ASRS financial report. 
 
Contributions payable – The District’s accrued payroll and employee benefits included $10,564 of 
outstanding pension and OPEB contribution amounts payable to ASRS for the year ended June 30, 2018.  
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Note 10 – Operating Expenses 
 
The District’s operating expenses are presented by functional classification in the statement of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in net position — primary government. The operating expenses can also be 
classified into the following: 
 

Personnel Services $      18,532,112  
Contract Services 2,443,677   
Supplies & Other Services 3,032,013 
Communications & Utilities 977,753 
Scholarships 3,955,821  
Depreciation  1,299,793  
Other 403,910   
Total $      30,645,079 

 
Note 11 –  Discretely Presented Component Unit Disclosures 
 
Note A – Organization 
 
Organization – Mohave County Community College Foundation, Inc. (“MCCF”) (the “Foundation”) was 
incorporated in Arizona in 1977. MCCF's primary purpose is to support education through the Mohave 
Community College (“MCC”). MCCF is considered a component unit of MCC; therefore, these financial 
statements are included as a component of the primary government entity.   
 
MCCF supports education by using the contributions they receive to provide scholarships, capital 
improvements, and other services for the benefit of MCC's students, faculty, staff, administration and 
community. Funding for MCCF comes primarily from contributions and investment income.  
 
Note B – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
  
Basis of presentation – Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations of the Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”). In its FASB Codification – Not for Profit Entities, the Foundation is 
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of 
net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net 
assets.  
 

 Unrestricted – Unrestricted net assets represent resources that are not subject to donor 
imposed restrictions and are available to support the Organization’s activities. 

 Temporarily restricted – Temporarily restricted net assets represent contributions that 
are limited in use in accordance with donor-imposed stipulations. These stipulations may 
expire with time or may be satisfied by the actions of the Organization according to the 
intention of the donor. Upon satisfaction of such stipulations, the associated net assets 
are released from temporarily restricted net assets and reported as unrestricted. 

 Permanently restricted net assets – Permanently restricted net assets represent 
contributions restricted by the donor for endowment that require the funds be invested 
permanently with the income or investment return to be made available for future use. 
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Use of estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates.  
 
Cash and cash equivalents – MCCF considers all cash and highly liquid investments with an original 
maturity  of  three  months  or  less  to  be  cash  equivalents.  MCCF maintains its cash in bank deposit 
accounts, which, for short periods of time, may exceed federally insured limits. As of June 30, 2018, there 
were no funds in excess of insured limits.  
 
Investments – Investments are reported at fair value, with realized and unrealized gains and losses 
included in the statement of activities. Fair value is based upon quoted market prices, net asset value and 
realized gains or losses are recorded using the specific identification method. Investment transactions, 
including transfers between the levels of fair value inputs, are recognized as of the date of the event. The 
Foundation reviews and evaluates the values provided by the investment managers and agrees with the 
valuation methods and assumptions used in determining the fair value of these investments. These 
estimated fair values may differ significantly from the values that would have been used had a ready 
market for these investments existed.  
 
Unimproved land held for investment – Unimproved land held for investment consists of donated land 
parcels in Kingman, Arizona. The investment is recorded at the lower of cost or fair value. Fair value 
approximates the assessment value from the county assessor office. As of June 30, 2018, the unimproved 
land that was held for investment of $232,094 was not marketed for sale and therefore was classified as 
other assets.  
  
Property and equipment – Purchased equipment is carried at cost. Donated equipment is carried at the 
approximate fair value at the date of donation. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method  
over  the  estimated  useful  lives  of  the  assets;  5  years  for  vehicles.  MCCF capitalizes all expenditures 
for equipment with a useful life of more than one year and greater than $5,000.  
  
Scholarships payable – Scholarships payable consist of funds received for scholarships in which the 
recipient of the scholarship has been named. These funds are passed through MCCF to MCC for the named 
individuals.  
 
Contributions, restricted revenue – Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily 
restricted or permanently restricted support depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor 
restrictions at fair value. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted  net  assets  and  reported  in  the  statements  of  activities  as  net  assets  released  from 
restrictions.  
  
Endowments – MCCF's endowments consist of several individual funds established for specific purposes 
under either donor restriction or as designated by the Board of Directors. As required by generally 
accepted accounting principles, net assets associated with endowment funds are classified and reported 
based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. 
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The State of Arizona adopted the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) 
(the Act). The Board of Directors of MCCF has interpreted the Act as requiring the preservation of the 
fair value of the original gift as of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit 
donor stipulations to the contrary. As a result of this interpretation, MCCF classifies as permanently 
restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment, (b) the original 
value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the permanent 
endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the time 
the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund 
that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets 
until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the organization in a manner consistent with 
the standard of prudence prescribed by the Act. In accordance with the Act, MCCF considers the 
following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate endowment funds:  
  

(1) The duration and preservation of the fund  
(2) The purposes of the organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund  
(3) General economic conditions  
(4) The possible effect of inflation and deflation  
(5) The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments  
(6) Other resources of the organization  
(7) The investment policies of the organization  

 
Donated goods, facilities, and services – Donated goods and facilities are valued at their fair market value. 
Donated services are recognized in the financial statements at their fair market value if the following 
criteria are met:  
  

 The services require specialized skills provided by individuals possessing those skills.  
 The services would typically need to be purchased if not donated.  

 
Although MCCF may utilize the services of outside volunteers, the fair value of these services has not been 
recognized in the accompanying financial statements since they do not meet the criteria for recognition 
under generally accepted accounting principles.  
  
Donated property and equipment – Donations of property and equipment are recorded as contributions 
at their estimated fair values at the date of donation. Such donations are reported as increases in 
unrestricted net assets unless the donor has restricted the donated asset to a specific purpose. Assets 
donated with explicit restrictions regarding their use and contributions of cash that must be used to 
acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted contributions.  
  
Advertising – MCCF expenses all advertising costs as incurred. For the year ended June 30, 2018 
advertising expense was $730.  
 
Alumni projects – MCCF promotes alumni relations through mailings and promotion of the College 
throughout the community. For the year ended June 30, 2018, expenses in alumni projects were mainly 
spent on plaques that were distributed around Mohave County showing the impact of MCCF in the 
community, as well as costs for maintaining updated donor mailing lists.  
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Donor, recipient events – MCCF organizes events to recognize donors. Expenses in this category include 
catering and food expenses, printing and professional fees incurred for the events.  
  
Income tax status – MCCF is exempt from Federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code. However, income from certain activities not directly related to MCCF's tax-exempt 
purpose may be subject to taxation as unrelated business income. In addition, MCCF qualifies for the 
charitable contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) and has been classified as an 
organization other than a private foundation under Section 509(a)(3).  
  
Management of MCCF considers the likelihood of changes by taxing authorities in its filed tax returns and 
recognizes a liability for or discloses potential significant changes if management believes it is more likely 
than not for a change to occur, including changes to the organization's status as a not-for-profit entity. 
Management believes that MCCF met the requirements to maintain its tax-exempt status and has no 
income subject to unrelated business income tax; therefore, no provision for income taxes has been 
provided in these financial statements. MCCF's Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt from Income 
Taxes, and Arizona Form 99, Arizona Exempt Organization Annual Information Return, are generally 
subject to examination by the IRS for three years and the Arizona Department of Revenue for four years, 
respectively, after the date the returns were filed.  
 
Risk and uncertainties – The Foundation invests in various types of securities which are exposed to various 
risks such as interest rates, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain 
investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in values of investment securities will 
occur in the near-term and such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the statements 
of financial position. 
  
Recent Accounting Pronouncement 
 
In May 2014, the Financial Standards Accounting Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 
2014-09 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606). This ASU will replace all current U.S. GAAP 
guidance on this topic and eliminate all industry-specific guidance. The new revenue recognition standard 
provides a unified model to determine when and how revenue is recognized. The core principle is that an 
entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an 
amount that reflects the consideration for which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those 
goods or services. This guidance was scheduled to be effective at the beginning of the Foundation’s 2019 
fiscal year and can be applied either retrospectively to each period presented or as a cumulative-effect 
adjustment as of the date of adoption. However, on July 9, 2015, the FASB approved a proposal to defer 
the effective date of the new revenue standard by one year, but will permit entities to adopt one year 
earlier if they choose (i.e., the original effective date). The deferral results in the new revenue standard 
being effective at the beginning of the Foundation’s 2020 fiscal year. The Foundation will continue to 
evaluate the impact, if any, of adopting this new accounting standard on its financial statements. 
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In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 
2015-07, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosures for Investments in Certain Entities That 
Calculate Net Asset Value per Share (or Its Equivalent). The ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2016, with earlier application permitted. The amendments remove the requirement to 
categorize within the fair value hierarchy all investments for which fair value is measured using the net 
asset value per share practical expedient (NAV). Once adopted, the Foundation will apply the 
amendments retrospectively to all periods presented. Management is determining the specific impact on 
financial reporting. However when adopted, certain investments held by the Foundation and measured 
using NAV will be no longer presented within the fair value hierarchy table. 
 
On August 18, 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-For-Profit Entities 
(Topic 958): Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. This standard was issued to 
improve the information presented in financial statements and notes about not-for-profit entity’s 
liquidity, financial performance, and cash flows. The effective date for the ASU is fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2017 (or the year ending December 31, 2018, for calendar year entities); however, 
early application is permitted. Management is determining the specific impact on the Foundation’s 
financial reporting. 
 
Subsequent events – Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the financial position 
date but before the financial statements are available to be issued. The Foundation recognizes in the 
financial statements the effects of all subsequent events that provide additional evidence about 
conditions that existed at the date of the financial position, including the estimates inherent in the process 
of preparing the financial statements. The Foundation’s financial statements do not recognize subsequent 
events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at the date of the financial position but 
arose after the financial position date and before financial statements are available to be issued. The 
Foundation has evaluated subsequent events through November 30, 2018, which is the date the financial 
statements became available to issue.  
 
Note C – Fair Value Measurements 
 
Fair value measurements and disclosures establish a common definition for fair value to be applied to U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles requiring use of fair value, establishes a framework for 
measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about such fair value measurements. FASB establishes a 
hierarchy for ranking the quality and reliability of the information used to determine fair values. FASB 
requires that assets and liabilities carried at fair value be classified and disclosed in one of the following 
three categories: 
 
Level 1 – Unadjusted quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
 
Level 2 – Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities, unadjusted quoted 
prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or inputs other than quoted 
prices that are observable for the asset or liability. 
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Level 3 – Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
 
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest 
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to 
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value. There 
have been no changes in the methodologies used as of June 30, 2018 and 2017. 
 
Mutual funds – Valued at the daily closing price as reported by the fund. Mutual funds held by the Plan 
are open-end mutual funds that are registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. These 
funds are required to publish their daily net asset value (NAV) and to transact at that price. The mutual 
funds held by the Plan are deemed to be actively traded. 
 
Common stocks – Common stock is valued at the closing price reported on the active market on which 
the individual securities are traded. 
 
Unit trusts – Units held in unit trusts (UT) are valued using the net asset value practical expedient (NAV 
practical expedient) of the UT as reported by the UT managers. The NAV practical expedient is based on 
the fair value of the underlying assets owned by the UT, minus its liabilities, and then divided by the 
number of units outstanding. The NAV practical expedient of a UT is calculated based on a compilation of 
primarily observable market information. 
 
The related fair values of these assets are determined as follows as of June 30, 2018: 
 

 Quoted 
Prices in 
Active 

Market 
(Level 1) 

 
Observable 

Inputs 
(Level 2) 

 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

 Total 

Money market 
funds 

$      143,443  -  -  $      143,443 

Mutual funds 3,817,240  -  -  3,817,240 
Common stocks 164,973  -  -  164,973 
Unit trusts -  $     69,457  -      69,457 
 $  4,125,656  $     69,457  -  $   4,195,113 

 
Note D – Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 
 
Temporarily restricted net asset consist of the following as of the year ended:  
 

2018 
Accumulated endowment earning on scholarships $    1,339,645 
Programs/annual funds/other (615,718)  

$       723,927 
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Note E – Permanently Restricted Net Assets 

Permanently restricted net assets consist of contributions to MCCF's various scholarship endowments and 
restricted by the respective donors. As of June 30, 2018, the balance for permanently restricted net assets 
was $2,292,313. 
 
Note F – Board Designated Net Assets 
  
Board designated net assets are unrestricted net assets that have a defined use or purpose, as determined 
by MCCF’s board of directors. MCCF had the following board designated net assets as of June 30, 2018:  
  

June 30, 2018 
Bullhead City Chapter $         43,201 
Lake Havasu Chapter 113,811 
Kingman Chapter 117,597 
North Mohave Chapter 60,700 
Foundation Operations/Overall 490,164 
 $      825,473 

Note G – Endowments 
  
Funds with deficiencies – From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor- 
restricted endowment funds may fall below the level that the donor or the Act requires the Organization 
to retain as a fund of perpetual duration.  
 
Return objectives and risk parameters – MCCF has adopted investment policies for endowment assets 
that attempt to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while 
seeking to maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those 
assets of donor-restricted funds that the organization must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified 
period(s). Actual returns in any given year may vary.  
  
Spending policy – The investment gain target is 8% and the payout target is 5%. Distribution of income 
and investment gains to the college will utilize a rolling five-year average rate of return to determine the 
proportion of fiscal year income provided to the MCC and the proportion retained use by or growth of the 
Foundation. Annually, the Investment Committee will establish the payout rate, which was 4% for the 
year ended June 30, 2018.  
 
Endowment fund activity – See Note D for endowment related activities in temporarily restricted net 
assets and Note E for donor-restricted endowment related activities in permanently restricted net assets.  
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Net assets in the endowment fund consisted of the following:  

 
Note H – Payments and Transfers to MCC 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, MCCF made the following payments and transfers to MCC or on 
behalf of MCC: 
 

 2018 
Scholarships $     103,675 
Transfer of in-kind contributions 10,903 
Pass through funds 199,743 
Total payments and transfers $   314,321 

 
As of June 30, 2018, MCCF owed $55,071 to MCC, consisting of scholarships liabilities. This liability could 
be subsequently reduced due to refunds, incompletions or other factors. 
 
Note I – Beneficial Interests 

The Foundation has been named the beneficiary of thirteen known trusts over the years but has not been 
able to obtain the information necessary to evaluate its beneficial interest even after making reasonable 
efforts. The Foundation will continue to make reasonable efforts to obtain the necessary information in 
order to measure such interests and record as an asset of the Foundation in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Note J – Subsequent Event 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the corporation has evaluated events and transactions for potential 
recognition or disclosure through November 30, 2018, the dates the financial statements were available 
to be issued. 
 
  

 
Temporarily 
Restricted  Permanently 

Restricted  Total 

Balance, June 30, 2017 $    887,145  $   1,602,869  $   2,490,014 
 Contributions 300,374  -  300,374 
 In-kind contributions 10,903  -  10,903 
 Transfers (160,174)  689,444  529,270 
 Releases/appropriations (314,321)  -  (314,321) 
Balance, June 30, 2018 $    723,927  $   2,292,313  $   3,016,240 
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Note K – Prior Period Adjustments 
 
A net adjustment of $54,853 was made to unrestricted net position for the year ended June 30, 2018.  As 
indicated in Note H, scholarship liabilities are subject to adjustment due to non-attendance and refunds 
which totaled $30,645.  Restricted contribution receivables were also adjusted $24,208 for credit memos 
made to receivables for refunds and unattended classes. 
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Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension/OPEB 
Liability June 30, 2018 
 

 

 

Arizona State Retirement System - Pension Reporting Fiscal Year (Measurement Date) 
 2015 (2014) 2014 through 2009 
District’s proportion of the net pension liability 0.150862% 

Information not 
available 

District’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability $  22,322,417 

District’s covered payroll $  12,877,053 
District’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 173.35% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total pension liability 69.49% 

Arizona State Retirement System - Pension Reporting Fiscal Year (Measurement Date) 
 2018 (2017) 2017 (2016) 2016 (2015) 
District’s proportion of the net pension liability 0.13259% 0.13849% 0.143070% 
District’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability $  20,654,937 $  22,353,677 $  22,284,603 

District’s covered payroll $  13,243,525 $  12,800,817 $  12,960,487 
District’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 155.96% 174.63% 171.94% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total pension liability 69.92% 67.06% 68.35% 

Arizona State Retirement System – Health 
Insurance Premium Benefit Reporting Fiscal Year (Measurement Date) 

 2018 (2017) 2017 through 2009 
District’s proportion of the net OPEB (asset) liability 0.13319% 

Information not 
available 

District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB 
(asset) liability $       (72,509) 

District’s covered payroll $  13,243,525 
District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB 
(asset) liability as a percentage of its covered 
payroll 

-0.55% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total OPEB liability 103.57% 
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Schedule of District’s Pension/OPEB Contributions June 30, 2018 

 

Arizona State Retirement System – Long-term 
Disability Reporting Fiscal Year (Measurement Date) 

 2018 (2017) 2017 through 2009 
District’s proportion of the net OPEB liability 0.13016% 

Information not 
available 

District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability $          47,180 

District’s covered payroll $  13,243,525 
District’s proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll 0.36% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 
total OPEB liability 84.44% 

Arizona State Retirement System - Pension Reporting Fiscal Year 
 2015 2014 2013 through 

2009 
Statutorily required contribution $   1,487,864 $    1,455,107 

Information 
not available 

District’s contributions in relation to the 
statutorily required contribution $   1,487,864 $    1,455,107   

District’s contribution deficiency (excess) - - 
District’s covered payroll $ 12,960,487 $  12,877,053 
District’s contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll 11.48% 11.30% 

Arizona State Retirement System - Pension Reporting Fiscal Year 
 2018 2017 2016 

Statutorily required contribution $    1,404,762 $    1,514,168 $    1,347,501 
District’s contributions in relation to the 
statutorily required contribution $    1,404,762 $    1,514,168 $    1,347,501 

District’s contribution deficiency (excess) - - - 
District’s covered payroll $  12,932,241 $  13,243,525 $  12,800,817 
District’s contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll 10.86% 11.43% 10.53% 
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Arizona State Retirement System – Health 
Insurance Premium Benefit Reporting Fiscal Year 

 2018 2017 2016 through 
2009 

Statutorily required contribution $          55,978 $          74,164 

Information 
not available 

District’s contributions in relation to the 
statutorily required contribution $          55,978 $          74,164 

District’s contribution deficiency (excess) - - 
District’s covered payroll $  12,932,241 $  13,243,525 
District’s contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll 0.43% 0.56% 

Arizona State Retirement System – Long-term 
Disability Reporting Fiscal Year 

 2018 2017 2016 through 
2009 

Statutorily required contribution $          20,605 $          18,541 

Information 
not available 

District’s contributions in relation to the 
statutorily required contribution $          20,605 $          18,541 

District’s contribution deficiency (excess) - - 
District’s covered payroll $  12,932,241 $  13,243,525 
District’s contributions as a percentage of 
covered payroll 0.16% 0.14% 
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In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 44, Economic Condition 
Reporting: The Statistical Section, the District has compiled data to address the following key areas 
relating to the overall economic condition of the institution. 

 
 Financial Trends 

 
Information in this section assists readers in understanding and assessing how the District’s 
financial position has changed over time 
 

 Revenue Capacity 
 

Information in this section assists readers in understanding and assessing the factors 
affecting the District’s ability to generate revenues 
 

 Debt Capacity 
 

Information in this section assists readers in understanding and assessing the District’s debt 
burden and its ability to acquire additional debt 
 

 Demographic and Economic Information 
 

Information in this section assists readers in understanding and assessing the demographic 
and economic environment in which the District operates 
 

 Operating Information 
 

Information in this section assists readers in understanding and assessing data relating to 
capital assets and services provided by the District’s financial resources 
 

 
 
 

  

Net Position by 
Component 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

Net Investment in 
Capital Assets     $ 16,594,144    $ 19,789,389    $ 23,066,456    $ 23,862,886    $ 25,405,204 

Restricted              667,422              589,115              476,630  85,285  171,693  

Unrestricted         16,251,997        (9,271,274)        (6,010,529)              75,020           6,061,409  

Total    $ 33,513,563     $ 11,107,230     $ 17,532,557      $ 24,023,191      $ 31,638,306   
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 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 
Change in Net Position     $    5,079,738    $     2,767,324    $     6,425,327       $     6,490,634       $     7,607,698    

Net Position    $  33,513,563    $  11,107,230    $  17,532,557      $  24,023,191      $  31,638,306   

  
2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 

Change in Net 
Position     $     2,033,585     $     3,533,089     $     5,395,766     $     4,004,041     $    1,642,676  

Net Position    $  13,858,253     $  17,391,342     $  22,787,108     $  26,791,149     $  28,433,825  
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Change in Net Position

Net Position by 
Component 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 

Net Investment in 
Capital Assets    $     4,641,128     $     6,139,634    $   12,178,365    $   14,651,563     $  15,342,457  

 Restricted                86,844              194,575           257,540  440,835              416,548  

 Unrestricted          9,130,281      11,057,133      10,351,202       11,698,751         12,674,820  

 Total   $   13,858,253     $  17,391,342    $   22,787,107    $   26,791,149     $  28,433,825  
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Change in Net Position – Last 10 Years 

Operating Revenues   2008-09   2009-10  2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 

 Tuition and fees  4,510,286  4,168,056  4,526,951 5,331,328 4,887,443 

 Private grants and contracts  329,024  592,730  726,101 2,729,704 624,186 

 Bookstore income  246,254  222,703  134,039 101,768 75,214 

 Food service income  37,971  42,183  26,540 17,105 14,191 

 Other sales and services  127,807 117,277  113,113 114,334 94,311 

 Other   43,466  46,356  16,200 45,031 99,026 

 Total Operating Revenues  5,294,808  5,189,305  5,542,944 8,339,270 5,794,371 

Operating Expenses       

 Instruction  8,569,285  9,502,581  10,743,772 11,703,226 11,642,062 

 Public Service  118,520  144,167  134,167 129,216 120,923 

 Academic Support  3,696,088  4,106,925  3,798,199 3,902,563 3,962,091 

 Student Services  3,844,024  3,009,029  3,310,869 3,605,952 4,180,148 

 Institutional Support  7,981,597  7,578,624  6,118,714 6,468,703 5,761,053 
 Operation and Maintenance of 
Plant  2,684,752  2,871,130  2,757,453 3,121,617 3,104,566 

 Scholarships  4,014,019  7,359,327  7,881,955 6,990,940 5,752,253 

 Auxiliary Enterprises  442,944  280,419  273,818 393,006 422,095 

 Depreciation  1,417,859  1,479,676  1,468,082 1,480,120 1,558,015 

 Other                  

 Total Operating Expenses  32,769,088  36,331,878  36,487,029 37,795,343 36,503,206 

Operating Income (Loss)  (27,474,280) (31,142,573) (30,944,085) (29,456,073) (30,708,835) 
Nonoperating Revenues 
(Expenses)       

 Government Grants  9,512,174  13,939,348  14,468,876 12,627,839 10,771,753 

 Property Taxes  16,235,016  17,048,446  18,085,425 18,759,341 19,438,502 

 State Appropriations  3,748,881  3,682,901  3,682,900 1,792,200 1,785,600 

 Share of State Sales Tax  518,805  491,718  506,197 507,522 490,964 

 Investment Income  77,423  45,313  14,792 7,411 5,658 

 Interest Expense on Debt  (583,862) (543,786) (415,474) (238,162) (231,530) 

 Loss on Extinguishment of Debt - - - - - 
 Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital 
Assets  (572)  11,722  (2,865) 3,963 (11,525) 

 Other Non-Operating Revenues - - - - 102,089 
 Total Nonoperating Revenues 

(Expenses)  29,507,865  34,675,662 36,339,851 33,460,114 32,351,511 

Change in Net Position  2,033,585  3,533,089   5,395,766 4,004,041 1,642,676 
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Change in Net Position – Last 10 Years (Continued) 

Operating Revenues  2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

 Tuition and fees  4,999,502 4,906,285 4,858,683 4,871,154 5,049,361 

 Private grants and contracts  542,238 426,332 424,368 370,550 431,085 

 Bookstore income  41,078 16,990 34,228 19,521 12,105 

 Food service income  14,249 9,631 8,827 10,362 6,953 

 Other sales and services  - - - - - 

 Other   90,071 368,697 260,971 110,033 146,442 

 Total Operating Revenues  5,687,138 5,727,935 5,587,077 5,381,620 5,645,946 

Operating Expenses       

 Instruction  11,518,445 11,457,876 10,817,218 10,681,488 11,008,405 
 Public Service  139,836 129,430 128,259 126,997 88,148 

 Academic Support  3,530,464 3,461,248 2,919,717 2,877,590 2,935,545 

 Student Services  3,655,541 3,436,714 3,284,191 3,041,063 3,011,035 

 Institutional Support  5,365,809 6,431,024 5,223,506 5,254,459 5,022,945 
 Operation and Maintenance of 
Plant  2,719,734 2,827,430 2,690,825 2,693,854 2,853,952 

 Scholarships  5,455,390 4,599,994 3,924,089 3,940,056 4,098,162 

 Auxiliary Enterprises  383,299 362,348 488,843 434,945 327,094 

 Depreciation  1,695,507 1,530,087 1,141,426 1,191,097 1,299,793 

 Total Operating Expenses  34,464,025 34,236,152 30,618,074 30,241,549 30,645,079 

Operating Income (Loss)  (28,776,887) (28,508,217) (25,030,997) (24,859,929) (24,999,133) 
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       
 Government Grants  10,097,575 8,090,065 7,299,553 6,460,432 6,946,483 

 Property Taxes  20,277,352 20,953,642 21,501,186 22,539,150 23,375,115 

 State Appropriations  1,871,100 2,137,000 2,101,700 1,820,200 1,658,000 

 Share of State Sales Tax  1,717,603 545,798 525,719 529,606 545,269 

 Investment Income  5,028 7,899 57,056 23,833 80,647 

 Interest Expense on Debt  (216,009) (166,031) (1,365) - - 

 Loss on Extinguishment of Debt - (204,663) - - - 
 Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital 
Assets  (1,832) (88,169) (27,525) (15,241) 1,317 

 Other Non-Operating Revenues 105,808 - - - - 
 Total Nonoperating Revenues 

(Expenses)  33,856,625 31,275,541 31,456,324 31,357,980 32,606,831 

Change in Net Position  5,079,738 2,767,324 6,425,327 6,498,051 7,607,698 
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Expenses by Function 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 

 Instruction  $   8,569,285  $   9,502,581 $  10,743,772  $  11,703,226  $  11,642,062    
 Public Service     118,520     144,167     134,167     129,216      120,923  
 Academic Support   3,696,088   4,106,925   3,798,199   3,902,563   3,962,091 
 Student Services   3,844,024   3,009,029   3,310,869   3,605,952   4,180,148 
 Institutional Support   7,981,597   7,578,624   6,118,714   6,468,703   5,761,053 
 Operation and Maintenance 
of Plant   2,684,752   2,871,130   2,757,453   3,121,617   3,104,566 

 Scholarships   4,014,019   7,359,327   7,881,955   6,990,940   5,752,253  
 Auxiliary Enterprises     442,944     280,419     273,818     393,006     422,095  
 Depreciation   1,417,859   1,479,676   1,468,082   1,480,120   1,558,015  
 Other Operating expenses  - - - -  -  
      
  Total Operating Expenses  $  32,769,088  $  36,331,878  $  36,487,029  $  37,795,343  $  36,503,206 

 
Expenses by Function 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

 Instruction  $  11,518,445  $  11,457,876  $  10,817,218 $  10,681,488 $  11,008,405 
 Public Service     139,836     129,430     128,259 126,997 88,148 
 Academic Support   3,530,464   3,461,248   2,919,717 2,877,590 2,935,545 
 Student Services   3,655,541   3,436,714   3,284,191 3,041,063 3,011,035 
 Institutional Support   5,365,809   6,431,024   5,223,506 5,254,459 5,022,945 
 Operation and Maintenance 
of Plant   2,719,734   2,827,431   2,690,825 2,693,854 2,853,952 

 Scholarships   5,455,390   4,599,994   3,924,089 3,940,056 4,098,162 
 Auxiliary Enterprises     383,299     362,348     488,843 434,945 327,094 
 Depreciation   1,695,507   1,530,087   1,141,426 1,191,097 1,299,793 
 Other Operating expenses  - - - - - 
      
  Total Operating Expenses  $  34,464,025  $  34,236,152  $  30,618,074 $  30,241,549 $  30,645,079 
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Expenses by Object 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 

Personnel Services $ 18,591,648  $ 20,130,234  $ 20,180,416  $ 21,361,203  $ 21,775,377  
Contract Services      4,245,764       3,439,247       2,765,608       3,225,563       2,870,696  
Supplies and Other Services      2,442,046       2,313,898       2,380,083       2,885,112       2,589,907  
Communications and Utilities      1,098,602      1,024,747       1,119,185       1,238,307       1,225,318  
Scholarships      4,014,019      7,359,327       7,881,955       6,744,325       5,752,253  
Depreciation      1,417,859       1,479,676       1,468,082       1,480,119       1,558,015  
Other         959,150          584,749          691,700          890,714          731,640  
Total Operating Expenses $ 32,769,088  $ 36,331,878  $ 36,487,029  $ 37,795,343  $ 36,503,206   

 
 

Expenses by Object 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

Personnel Services $ 20,503,840  $ 19,953,876  $ 18,833,163  $ 18,331,146  $ 18,532,112 
Contract Services      2,662,596       2,689,785       2,731,526       2,580,235       2,443,677  
Supplies and Other Services      2,351,770       2,465,280       2,561,452       2,675,897       3,032,013  
Communications and Utilities      1,065,725      1,038,673          977,699       1,028,760          977,753 
Scholarships      5,455,390      4,599,994       3,924,089       3,940,056      3,955,821 
Depreciation      1,695,507       1,530,087       1,141,426       1,191,097       1,299,793  
Other         729,197       1,958,457          448,719          494,358          403,910  
Total Operating Expenses $ 34,464,025  $ 34,236,152  $ 30,618,074  $ 30,241,549  $ 30,645,079  
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Revenues by Source 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 
Property Taxes $ 16,235,016  $ 17,048,446  $ 18,085,426  $ 18,759,341  $ 19,438,502  
Government Grants  9,512,174  13,939,348  14,378,844  12,627,839  10,771,753  
Tuition & Fees  4,510,286   4,168,056   4,195,487   5,331,328   4,887,443  
State Appropriations  3,748,881   3,682,901   3,682,901   1,792,200   1,785,600  
Share of State Sales Tax    518,805     491,718     506,198     507,522     490,964  
Private Grants and Contracts    329,024     592,730     726,101   2,729,704     624,186  
Investment Earnings     77,423      45,313      14,793       7,413       5,658  
Gain on Disposal of Capital Assets -     11,722  -      3,963  - 
Bookstore Income    246,254     222,703     134,039     101,768      75,214  
Food Service Income     37,971      42,183      26,540      17,105      14,191  
Other Sales and Services    127,807     117,277     113,113     114,334      94,311  
Other     43,466      46,356      16,200      45,031     201,115       
Total Revenue $ 35,387,107  $ 40,408,753  $ 41,879,642  $ 42,037,548  $ 38,388,937 

 
Revenues by Source 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 
Property Taxes $ 20,277,352  $ 20,953,642  $ 21,501,186 $ 22,539,150 $ 23,375,115 
Government Grants 10,097,575  8,090,065   7,299,553  6,460,432  6,946,483  
Tuition & Fees  4,999,502   4,906,285   4,858,683  4,871,154 5,049,361 
State Appropriations  1,871,100   2,137,000   2,101,700   1,820,200 1,658,000 
Share of State Sales Tax  1,717,603    545,798    525,719    529,606 545,269 
Private Grants and Contracts    542,238     426,332     424,368    370,550 431,085 
Investment Earnings      5,028      7,899      57,056      23,833 80,647 
Gain on Disposal of Capital Assets -     -     - - - 
Bookstore Income     41,078      16,990      34,228     19,521 12,105 
Food Service Income     14,249      9,631       8,827      10,362 6,953 
Other Sales and Services     90,071 - - - - 
Other    105,808    368,697    260,971    110,033 146,442 
Total Revenue $ 39,761,604  $ 37,462,339  $ 37,072,291  $ 36,754,841 $ 38,251,460 
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Budgeted Expenditure Limitation 
 

 
 

  
2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 

Statutory Expenditure 
Limitation  $ 24,835,230  $ 31,134,362  $ 34,950,321  $ 36,395,014  $ 37,273,118 

Budgeted Expenditures 
Subject to Limitation  $ 24,835,230  $ 31,134,362  $ 34,950,321  $ 36,395,014 $ 33,554,312 

Amount Under Expenditure 
Limitation  - - - -  $   3,718,806 

  
2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

Statutory Expenditure 
Limitation  $ 36,697,479 $ 27,695,757 $ 27,785,046 $ 24,590,105 $ 26,271,380 

Budgeted Expenditures 
Subject to Limitation  $ 31,859,142 $ 27,695,757 $ 26,534,954 $ 24,590,105 $ 26,271,380 

Amount Under Expenditure 
Limitation  $   4,838,337 - $   1,250,092 - - 

 
Note (1) – The Statutory Expenditure Limitation is calculated by the Arizona Department of Revenue 
Economic Estimates Commission. 
 
Note (2) – Budgeted expenditures are calculated net of allowable exclusions.
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Assessed Value and Net Assessed Value of All Taxable Property – Last 10 Years (dollars in thousands) 
 

Tax 
Year 

 Utilities Commercial Vacant/  
Agriculture Residential Railroads 

2009 Primary $     950,442  $ 2,121,941  $  5,165,680  $ 13,527,586   $  0,042,092  
2009 Secondary $     950,442  $ 2,395,606  $  8,096,478  $ 15,040,180   $  0,047,635  
2010 Primary $     999,461  $ 2,292,834  $  4,818,197  $ 11,535,591   $  0,044,103  
2010 Secondary $     999,461  $ 2,370,512  $  6,191,328  $ 11,823,140   $  0,050,846  
2011 Primary $     982,569  $ 2,064,887  $  4,017,440  $   9,408,362   $  0,058,821  
2011 Secondary $     982,578  $ 2,092,899  $  4,590,747  $   9,469,028   $  0,064,168  
2012 Primary $  1,209,963 $ 2,940,093 $  5,208,516 $   9,098,324  $  0,074,371 
2012 Secondary $  1,209,863 $ 3,002,823 $  5,507,223 $   9,208,318  $  0,074,949 
2013 Primary $  1,240,676 $ 2,816,215 $  5,906,217 $   9,216,855  $  0,078,728 
2013 Secondary $  1,240,676 $ 2,862,607 $  5,526,596 $   9,297,274  $  0,079,328 
2014 Primary $  1,316,354 $ 3,109,015 $  4,906,217 $   9,216,855  $  0,078,728 
2014 Secondary $  1,316,354 $ 3,155,792 $  5,526,596 $   9,297,274  $  0,079,328 
2015 Primary $  1,176,570 $ 2,898,238 $  4,596,475 $   9,623,943  $  0,081,877 
2015 Secondary $  1,176,570 $ 3,008,336 $  5,186,888 $ 10,680,888  $  0,083,029 
2016 Primary $  1,135,893 $ 2,846,725 $  4,192,318 $ 10,128,539 $  0,089,197 
2016 Secondary $  1,135,893 $ 3,228,851 $  5,362,145 $ 12,150,616 $  0,093,670 
2017 Primary $  1,983,319 $ 2,973,933 $  4,168,735 $ 10,751,684 $  0,095,608 
2017 Secondary $  1,983,319 $ 3,419,030 $  5,780,037 $ 13,173,101 $  0,107,177 
2018 Primary $  1,931,112 $ 3,138,490 $  4,163,782 $ 11,417,486 $  0,112,531 
2018 Secondary $  1,931,112 $ 3,735,791 $  5,888,627 $ 13,948,693 $  0,128,058 

 
Source: Mohave County Assessor’s Office 
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Assessed Value and Net Assessed Value of All Taxable Property – Last 10 Years (dollars in thousands) 

 
Tax 
Year 

 Historic Enterprise 
Zone 

Environmental 
Tech 

Capital 
Improvements 

Net Assessed 
Value ALL 

2009 Primary $     2,442  $    1,131   -  - $  2,520,925  
2009 Secondary $     2,628  $    1,866   -  - $  3,032,797  
2010 Primary $     2,379  $  20,598   -  - $  2,314,646  
2010 Secondary $     2,556  $  22,971   -  - $  2,496,568  
2011 Primary $     1,841  $    1,386   -  - $  1,926,852  
2011 Secondary $     1,841  $    1,898   -  - $  1,986,954  
2012 Primary $     2,154 $    1,083 - - $  1,995,767 
2012 Secondary $     2,278 $    1,093  - - $  2,071,604 
2013 Primary $     2,184 $    1,442 - - $  2,030,619 
2013 Secondary $     2,422 $    1,451 - - $  2,078,444 
2014 Primary $     2,184 $    1,442 - - $  1,996,554 
2014 Secondary $     2,422 $    1,451 - - $  2,072,397 
2015 Primary $     2,219 $    1,514 - - $  1,942,868 
2015 Secondary $     3,556 $    1,544 - - $  2,119,897 
2016 Primary $     3,127   $    1,589 - - $  1,928,845 
2016 Secondary $     4,880 $    1,800 - - $  2,292,492 
2017 Primary $     3,289   $    2,082 - - $  1,991,472 
2017 Secondary $     5,430 $    2,153 - - $  2,443,656 
2018 Primary $     3,444   $    5,032 - - $  2,066,343 
2018 Secondary $     6,345 $    5,802 - - $  2,565,548 

 
Source: Mohave County Assessor’s Office 
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Property Tax Rates for Direct and Overlapping Governments – Last 10 Years 

 

Tax 
Year 

Mohave 
County School Districts Cities or Fire 

Districts 

Sanitary or 
Improvement 

Districts 

Irrigation & 
Drainage Districts 

Other Districts 
(Water/Lighting) 

2009 $  1.3309  0.0500 - 10.0415 0.6038 - 3.2500 0.0182 - 0.5425 1.75 - 100.74/acre 3.56/acre - 1.5167 
2010 $  1.2637  0.0500 - 9.5000 0.5834 - 3.2500 0.0698 - 0.4769 0.77 - 156.78/acre 3.56/acre - 1.5567 
2011 $  1.4637  0.0500 - 8.5000 0.5834 - 3.2500 0.0841 - 0.4925 1.00 - 212.75 acre 3.56/acre - 1.5474 
2012 $  1.8196  0.0500 - 9.0000 0.7264 - 3.2500 0.0838 - 0.6095 1.00 - 268.86 acre 3.56/acre - 2.6672 
2013 $  1.8196  0.0500 - 9.0000 0.7332 - 3.2500 0.0838 - 0.6762 1.50 - 268.86 acre 3.56/acre - 2.6885 
2014 $  1.8196  0.0500 - 8.0000 0.7408 - 3.2500 0.0509 - 0.7983 1.50 - 268.85 acre 0.0179 - 376.35/Lot 
2015 $  1.9696  0.0500 - 6.0000 0.7235 - 3.2500 0.0406 - 0.8748 1.50 - 268.85 acre 0.0176 - 376.35/Lot 
2016 $  1.9696  0.0500 - 4.5868 0.7000 - 3.2500 0.0429 - 1.0028 1.50 - 268.85 acre 0.0176 - 376.35/Lot 
2017 $  1.9696  0.0500 - 6.0297 0.6718 - 3.2500 0.0379 - 0.8764 1.50 - 268.85 acre 0.0130 - 374.89/Lot 
2018 $  1.9696  0.0500 - 6.5602 0.6718 - 3.2500 0.1040 - 1.2610 1.50 - 268.85 acre 0.0125 - 374.89/Lot 

 
Source: Mohave County Finance Office 
 
Note (1) - Mohave County applies to the General and State Education Equalization, and to the General, 
Library District and Fire District Assistance Funds. Fire, Sanitary, Improvement, Irrigation, Water and 
Lighting District levies are based on secondary values.  

Tax Year MCC Primary Levy MCC Secondary Levy MCC Total 
2009 $  0.6791 - $  0.6791 
2010 $  0.7866 - $  0.7866 
2011 $  0.9779 -   $  0.9779 
2012 $  1.0951 - $  1.0951 
2013 $  1.2215 - $  1.2215 
2014 $  1.2215 - $  1.2215 
2015 $  1.2927 - $  1.2927 
2016 $  1.3288 - $  1.3288 
2017 $  1.3430 - $  1.3430 
2018 $  1.3412 - $  1.3412 
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Historic Resident Tuition Rates – Last 10 Fiscal Years 
  

Tuition Per Credit 
Hour Annual Cost $ Increase % Increase 

2008-09 $             59 $       1,870 $         170 10% 
2009-10 $             64 $       2,020 $         150 8% 
2010-11 $             69 $       2,310 $         290 14% 
2011-12 $             74 $       2,460 $         150 6% 
2012-13 $             76 $       2,520 $          60 2% 
2013-14 $             78 $       2,550 $          30 1% 
2014-15 $             80 $       2,610 $          60 2% 
2015-16 $             81 $       2,640 $          30 1% 
2016-17 $             81 $       2,640 - - 
2017-18 $             81 $       2,640 - - 

 
Source: District Records 
 
Note (1) – Tuition rate shown is for in-state students. Annual cost based on in-state rate for one year of 
full-time equivalent (30 credit hours) plus mandatory semester fees. 
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Debt Service Coverage – Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 
Note (1) – Pledged revenues include tuition and fees, bookstore income, food service income, investment 
income, and other. Tuition and fees are reported minus scholarship allowances. 
 
Note (2) – In 2006-07 revenue refunding bonds were issued to pay remaining principal of $3,150,000. In 
2010-11 unrestricted net position were used to pay off the remaining principal of $3,720,000 and 
$2,115,000 for the 2000 and 2001 Pledged Revenue Obligations. In 2014-15, all remaining principal and 
interest were paid off with reserve funds. There are currently no bonds held. 
 
Debt Burden Ratio – Last 10 Fiscal Years 

 

Note (1) – In 2006-07 revenue refunding bonds were issued to pay remaining principal of $3,150,000. In 
2010-11 unrestricted net position were used to pay off the remaining principal of $3,720,000 and 
$2,115,000 for the 2000 and 2001 Pledged Revenue Obligations. In 2014-15, all remaining principal and 
interest were paid off with reserve funds. There are currently no bonds held.  

 
Pledged 

Revenues Principal Interest Total Debt as % of 
Pledged Revenue 

2008-09 $      4,999,741      $     465,000  $  569,146    $ 1,034,146  21% 
2009-10 $      4,595,532      $  1,075,000  $  549,934    $ 1,624,934  35% 
2010-11 $      4,483,972      $  5,920,000  $  351,063    $ 6,271,063  140% 
2011-12 $      5,571,948      $        85,000  $  175,451    $     260,451  5% 
2012-13 $      5,076,817      $        95,000  $  173,279    $     268,279  5% 
2013-14 $      5,149,928     $        95,000 $  169,713   $     264,713 5% 
2014-15 - - - - - 
2015-16 - - - - - 
2016-17 - - - - - 
2017-18 - - - - - 

 
Operating 
Expenses Principal Interest Total Debt as % of 

Operating Expenses 
2008-09  $     32,769,088   $      465,000  $   569,146  $ 1,034,146  3% 
2009-10  $     36,331,878   $  1,075,000 $   549,934  $ 1,624,934  4% 
2010-11  $     36,487,029   $  5,920,000  $   351,063  $ 6,271,063  17% 
2011-12  $     37,795,343   $        85,000  $   175,451  $    260,451  1% 
2012-13  $     36,503,206   $        95,000  $   173,279  $    268,279  1% 
2013-14  $     34,464,025  $        95,000 $   169,713 $    264,713 <1% 
2014-15 $     34,236,152 - - - N/A 
2015-16 $     30,887,905 - - - N/A 
2016-17 $     30,248,966 - - - N/A 
2017-18 $     30,645,079 - - - N/A 
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Debt Service Interest Expense – Last 10 Fiscal Years 
  

2000 PRO 2000 Rev 2001 PRO 2005 PRO 2006 Rev 
2008-09 $    239,250   - $   143,195  $   142,325  $    44,376  
2009-10 $    239,250   - $   128,320  $   140,525  $    41,839  
2010-11 $    111,393   - $     61,219  $   140,258      $    38,193  
2011-12  -  -  - $   140,058  $    35,393  
2012-13  -  -  - $   139,925  $    33,354  
2013-14  -  -  - $   139,525 $    30,188 
2014-15 - - - $   288,504 $    28,391 
2015-16 - - - - - 
2016-17 - - - - - 
2017-18 - - - - - 

 
Source: District Records 
 
Note (1) - PRO – Pledged Revenue Obligations. Rev – Revenue Refunding Bonds. 

 
Debt Service Principal Expense – Last 10 Fiscal Years 
  

2000 PRO 2000 Rev 2001 PRO 2005 PRO 2006 Rev 
2008-09 -   -     $      350,000  $     45,000    $          70,000  
2009-10 $      630,000  -     $      365,000  $       5,000    $          75,000  
2010-11 $   3,720,000  -     $  2,115,000  $       5,000    $          80,000  
2011-12 -   -  - $       5,000    $          80,000  
2012-13 -   -  - $     10,000    $          85,000  
2013-14 -  - - $     10,000    $          85,000  
2014-15 -  - - $   710,000    $   3,310,000  
2015-16 - - - - - 
2016-17 - - - - - 
2017-18 - - - - - 

 
Source: District Records 
 
Note (1) – PRO – Pledged Revenue Obligations. Rev – Revenue Refunding Bonds. 
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Ratios of Outstanding Debt – Last 10 Fiscal Years 
  

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 
       
 Revenue Bonds  $   3,345,000  $    3,340,000  $     3,335,000  $       3,330,000 $      3,320,000  
 Pledged Revenue 

Obligations $   7,495,000  $    6,875,000  $         960,000  $         880,000 $         795,000  

 Capital Leases  $      261,195  $       181,102  $     1,310,614  $      1,223,507 $      1,035,091  
Total Outstanding Debt  $ 11,551,195  $ 10,396,102  $     5,605,614  $       5,433,507 $      5,150,091  
 Per Capita  $                 59  $                 54  $                   29  $                    27 $                   26  
 Per FTSE  $      3,283,46  $      2,629.93  $       1,410.22  $         1,574.93 $        1,724.17  
 % of Personal Income  0.22% 0.20% Note (1) Note (1)  Note (1)  

  
2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18  

     
 Revenue Bonds  $     3,310,000        -            -             -             - 
 Pledged Revenue 

Obligations  $        710,000         -            -             -             - 

 Capital Leases  $        926,906     $         832,511     - - - 
Total Outstanding Debt  $     4,946,906  $        832,511  - - - 
 Per Capita  $                  24   $                    4   - - - 
 Per FTSE  $        1,694.73 $           325.97 - - - 
 % of Personal Income      0.43% Note (1)    

 
Source: District Records, US Census Bureau 
 
Note (1) – Data not available for this time period 
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Computation of Legal Debt Margin – Last 10 Fiscal Years 
  

2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 
Assessed Value of Real and 
Personal Property $ 2,286,744,927  $ 2,533,640,810  $ 2,321,464,632  $ 1,932,681,722  $ 1,791,765,155 

Debt Limit, 15% of 
Secondary Assessed Value $    343,011,739  $    380,046,122  $    351,822,906  $    289,902,258  $    268,764,773 

Total Debt Applicable to 
Debt Limit -   -   -   -   - 

Legal Debt Margin $    343,011,739  $    380,046,122 $    351,822,906 $    289,902,258 $    268,764,773 
  

2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 
Assessed Value of Real and 
Personal Property $ 1,771,371,842 $ 1,727,793,369 $ 1,685,788,538 $ 1,696,199,992 $ 1,811,189,489 

Debt Limit, 15% of 
Secondary Assessed Value $    265,705,776 $    259,169,005 $    252,868,281 $    254,429,999 $    271,678,423 

Total Debt Applicable to 
Debt Limit - - - - - 

Legal Debt Margin $    265,705,776 $    259,169,005 $    252,868,281 $    254,429,999 $    271,678,423 
 
Source: District Records 
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Mohave County Leading Employers 
 

 
Source: Mohave County Economic Development Office- Latest Information Updated 2017 

Company Business Description Business Type Location Employment 

Kingman Regional 
Medical Center Hospital Medical Kingman 1,620 

Havasu Regional Medical 
Center Hospital Medical Lake Havasu City 928 

Freeport-McMoran Mine Copper Ore Mining Industrial Wikieup/Bagdad 810 
Western AZ Regional 
Medical Center Hospital Medical Bullhead City 748 

American Woodmark Cabinets Manufacturing Kingman 650 

Hualapai Enterprises Tourism/Hospitality Service Peach Springs 620 
Mohave Community 
College College School Mohave County 604 

Mohave County Miner Newspaper 
Publication Service Kingman 497 

GEO Group/AZ Dept. of 
Corrections 

Min/Med. Security 
Prison Service Golden Valley 334 

Valley View Medical 
Center Hospital Medical Fort Mohave 309 
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Full-Time Student Equivalent Totals – Last 10 Fiscal Years 
 

 
 
Source: Office of the Arizona Auditor General 
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Employment Information by Group 

 
Source: District Records 
 
Note (1) – Totals not based on budgeted positions. Totals represent individuals paid during the year under 
respective pay groups. 
 
Student Enrollment and Demographic Information – Last 10 Fiscal Years 
  

African 
American 

Native 
American Asian Hispanic White, Non-

Hispanic 
Other/ 

Unknown Male Female 

 2008-09  76  141  113  729  4,948  175  2,178  4,004  
 2009-10  88  125  127  875  5,328  159  2,464  4,238  
 2010-11  82  125  132  1,024  5,158  165  2,459  4,227  
 2011-12  86  91  103  1,012  4,597  218  2,178  3,929  
 2012-13  66  88  85  910  3,869  180  1,839  3,351  
 2013-14  61 108 75 962 3,819 202 1,894 3,333 
 2014-15 108 46 153 1,533 5,442 489 2,880 4,886 
 2015-16 120 180 145 1,733 5,463 357 2,843 5,155 
 2016-17 64 121 108 1,318 3,790 284 1,942 3,743 
 2017-18 56 110 116 1,395 3,820 312 2,043 3,766 

 
Source: Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System 
  

 
2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

Part-time Faculty 352 290 295 216 214 
Full-time Faculty 78 78 81 76 76 
Full-time Administration 
and Staff 235 230 185 193 182 

Part-time Staff, Temp and 
Student Workers 320 318 253 234 120 
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Facilities and Capital Asset Information 
 
2014-15 
 

Location  Building Square Footage Campus Acreage Campus Vehicles 

Bullhead City Campus  116,408 360 2 
Kingman Campus  106,979 160 9 
Lake Havasu City Campus  100,499 14 3 
North Mohave Campus  10,800 15 3 
Total  334,686 549 17 

 
2015-16 
 

Location  Building Square Footage Campus Acreage Campus Vehicles 

Bullhead City Campus  114,908 360 2 
Kingman Campus  125,547 160 9 
Lake Havasu City Campus  100,499 14 4 
North Mohave Campus  10,800 8 3 
Total  338,954 542 18 

 
2016-17 
 

Location Building Square Footage Campus Acreage Campus Vehicles 

Bullhead City Campus  114,908 360 2 
Kingman Campus  125,547 160 9 
Lake Havasu City Campus  100,499 14 4 
North Mohave Campus  10,800 8 3 
Total  338,954 542 18 

 
2017-18 
 

Location Building Square Footage Campus Acreage Campus Vehicles 

Bullhead City Campus  114,908 360 2 
Kingman Campus  125,854 160 9 
Lake Havasu City Campus  100,499 14 4 
North Mohave Campus  18,396 8 3 
Total  359,657 542 18 

 
Source: District Records 



                    Page 1 Expenditures by Function ‐ General and Capital Fund

January 31, 2019

 58% of fiscal year completed

Annual Budget

Year to Date 

Actual

Actual as % 

of Budget

Year to Date 

Prior Year

% Change Expenses

Current Year vs. Prior

Instruction 12,702,194     5,490,574       43% 5,767,689    ‐5%

Academic Support 3,389,524       1,896,357       56% 1,801,760    5%

Student Services 3,519,625       1,698,901       48% 1,720,313    ‐1%

Institutional Support 6,033,566       2,632,429       44% 2,975,397    ‐12%

Maintenance of Plant 5,735,854       2,895,283       50% 1,943,808    49%

Student Financial Aid 1,159,000       888,164          77% 864,783       3%

   Total 32,539,763     15,501,709    48% 15,073,750  3%
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                    Page 2 Primary Revenue Sources

January 31, 2019

 58% of fiscal year completed

Annual Budget

Year to Date 

Actual

Actual as % of 

Budget

Year to Date 

Prior Year

% Change Revenue Received

Current Year vs. Prior

Property Taxes 23,364,864 16,307,028 70% 16,523,848 ‐1%

Tuition & Fees 8,706,402 7,882,842        91% 7,964,422 ‐1%

State Appropriations 1,935,839 1,199,700 62% 1,243,500 ‐4%

   Total 34,007,105         25,389,570    75% 25,731,770  ‐1%
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                    Page 3 Expenditures by Object ‐ General and Capital Fund

January 31, 2019

 58% of fiscal year completed

Annual Budget

Year to Date 

Actual

Actual as % of 

Budget

Year to Date 

Prior Year

% Change Expenses

Current Year vs. Prior

Personnel Services 14,692,658       7,855,826    53% 7,974,402       ‐1%

Benefits 4,788,401         2,552,205    53% 2,518,560       1%

Comm. and Utilities 1,193,412         534,524       45% 512,888          4%

Travel 478,710            65,402         14% 61,307            7%

Contracted Services 2,722,220         1,373,601     50% 1,410,616       ‐3%

Supplies and Materials 1,989,685         931,961       47% 867,042          7%

Student Financial Aid 1,159,000         888,164       77% 864,783          3%

Fixed Charges 674,369            551,527         82% 516,399          7%

Capital 2,446,250         1,110,508     45% 296,880          274%

Other/Contingency 2,395,058         85,735         4% 50,874            69%

   Total 32,539,763           15,949,452      49% 15,073,751         6%
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                    Page 4 Capital Expenditures by Function

January 31, 2019

 58 % of fiscal year completed

Annual Budget

Year to Date 

Actual

Actual as % 

of Budget

Year to Date 

Prior Year

% Change Expenses

Current Year vs. Prior

Grant Funded 

Expenses

Instruction 0 0 0% 0 0% 0

Academic Support 36,250 19,969 55% 22,897 ‐13% 0

Student Services 0 0 0% 0 0% 0

Institutional Support 760,000 683,440 90% 0 0% 0

Maintenance of Plant 2,400,000 1,110,508 46% 273,982 305% 0

   Total Expenses 3,196,250 1,813,917 57% 296,879 511% 0
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Monthly Cash Flow

Invested in
State
Treasury

Deposits
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Fund Balance



Human Resources Report
Month Ending January 31, 2019

NEW HIRES

Name
Effective

Date Position Campus Salary

Brian Butti 1/2/2019 Maintenance Technician NCK $14.31
Carey Minnis 1/2/2019 Director, Assessment & Curriculum NCK $68,000.00
Sierra Stewart 1/7/2019 Resident Faculty, Social/Behavioral ScienNCK $50,293.00

Matthew Wienke 1/7/2019 Resident Faculty, Mathematics NCK $55,948.00
Rebbecca Plowman 1/7/2019 Resident Faculty, Mathematics BHC $47,130.00

Jason Medlin 1/7/2019 Resident Faculty, EMS NCK $51,648.00

Cynthia Francisco 01/07/2019 Resident Faculty, Nursing LHC $53,968.00

Jakob Stone 1/15/2019 Custodian/Driver NCK $11.00

Natalie Gebicke 01/16/2019 Director, Advising & Testing NCK $70,000.00

Christine Newman 01/18/2019 Custodian/Driver NCK $11.22

John Roe 01/22/2019 Resident Faculty, Electrical NCK $64,590.00
    

TRANSFERS

Name
Effective

 Date From Campus To Salary
Cole Stewart 1/7/2019 Resident Faculty, Social/Behavioral ScienNCK Resident Faculty, Social/Behavioral Scie $54,318.00
Alex Exley 1/14/2019 Student Services Technician, 25hpw NCK Student Services Technician, Full-Time $14.40

RECLASSIFICATION

Name
Effective

 Date From Campus To Annualized Salary

 

TITLE CHANGE

Name
Effective

 Date From Campus To Annualized Salary

SEPARATIONS

Name
Effective

 Date Position Campus Date of Hire Reason Salary

Bernard Oviatt 01/11/2019 Custodian/Driver BHC 11/26/2018 Resignation 11.00$           
Joshua Zeman 01/11/2019 Student Success Center Coordinator LHC 1/16/2018 Resignation 11.33$           
Christopher Wilson 01/11/2019 Student Services Technician NCK 8/11/2014 Resignation 15.72$           
Melinda Kretschmer 01/30/2019 Corporate/Community Education Coordin BHC 7/2/2018 Resignation 38,000.00$    
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